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Capital Adequacy Framework 2018

INTRODUCTION
BACKGROUND:

Prior to 1988, there was no uniform international regulatory standard for setting bank capital
requirements. In 1988, the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (BCBS)! developed the Capital
Accord, which is known as Basel I, to align the capital adequacy requirements applicable especially
to banks in G-10 countries. Basel | introduced two key concepts. First, it defined what banks could
hold as capital, as well as designating capital as Tier 1 or Tier 2 according to its loss-absorbing or
creditor-protecting characteristics. The second key concept introduced in Basel | was that capital
should be held by banks in relation to the risks that they face. The major risks faced by banks relate to
the assets held on balance sheet. Thus, Basel I calculated banks’ minimum capital requirements as a
percentage of assets, which are adjusted in accordance with their riskiness and assigning risk weights
to assets. Higher weights are assigned to riskier assets such as corporate loans, and lower weights are
assigned to less risky assets, such as exposures to government.

The BCBS released the "International Convergence of Capital Measurements and Capital Standards:
Revised Framework", popularly known as Basel 11, on June 26, 2004. This framework was updated in
November 2005 and a comprehensive version of the framework was issued in June 2006. Basel Il
builds significantly on Basel | by increasing the sensitivity of capital to key bank risks. In addition,
Basel Il recognizes that banks can face a multitude of risks, ranging from the traditional risks
associated with financial intermediation to the day-to-day risks of operating a business as well as the
risks associated with the ups and downs of the local and international economies. As a result, the
framework more explicitly associates capital requirements with the particular categories of major
risks that banks face.

The Basel Il capital framework also recognizes that large, usually internationally active banks have
already put in place sophisticated approaches to risk measurement and management based on
statistical inference rather than judgment alone. Thus, the framework allows banks, under certain
conditions, to use their own ‘internal’ models and techniques to measure the key risks that they face,
the probability of loss, and the capital required to meet those losses. In developing the new
framework, the Basel Committee incorporated many elements that help to promote a sound and
efficient financial system over and above the setting of minimum capital requirements. Keeping this
in mind, the Basel II framework incorporates three complementary ‘pillars’ that draw on the range of
approaches to help ensure that banks are adequately capitalized commensurate with their risk profile.

The Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (BCBS) released a comprehensive reform package
entitled “Basel III: A global regulatory framework for more resilient banks and banking systems”
(known as Basel 11 capital regulations) in December 2010. Basel 11l reforms are the response of the
Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (BCBS) to improve the banking sector’s ability to absorb
shocks arising from financial and economic stress, whatever the source, thus reducing the risk of spill
over from the financial sector to the real economy. Basel Il reforms strengthen the bank-level i.e.
micro prudential regulation, with the intention to raise the resilience of individual banking institutions
in periods of stress. Besides, the reforms have a macro prudential focus also, addressing system wide

1 The Basel Committee on Banking Supervision is a committee of banking supervisory authorities that was established by the
central bank governors of the Group of Ten countries in 1975. It consists of senior representatives of bank supervisory authorities
and central banks from Belgium, Canada, France, Germany, lItaly, Japan, Luxembourg, the Netherlands, Spain, Sweden,
Switzerland, the United Kingdom, and the United States. It usually meets at the Bank for International Settlements in Basel,
Switzerland where its permanent Secretariat is located.
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risks, which can build up across the banking sector, as well as the procyclical amplification of these
risks over time. These new global regulatory and supervisory standards mainly seek to raise the
quality and level of capital (Pillar 1) to ensure that banks are better able to absorb losses on both a
going concern and a gone concern basis, increase the risk coverage of the capital framework,
introduce leverage ratio to serve as a backstop to the risk-based capital measure, raise the standards
for the supervisory review process (Pillar 2) and public disclosures (Pillar 3) etc. The macro
prudential aspects of Basel 111 are largely enshrined in the capital buffers. Both buffers i.e. the capital
conservation buffer and the countercyclical buffer are intended to protect the banking sector from
periods of excess credit growth.

The recommendations of Basel Committee on Banking Supervision's (BCBS) on capital accord are
important guiding frameworks for the regulatory capital requirement to the banking industry all over
the world and Nepal is no exception. Realizing the significance of capital for ensuring the safety and
soundness of the banks and the banking system, at large, Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) has developed
and enforced capital adequacy requirement based on international practices with an appropriate level
of customization based on domestic state of market developments.

With a view of adopting the international best practices, NRB has already issued the Basel Il
implementation action plan and expressed its intention to adopt the Basel Il framework, albeit in a
simplified form. In line with the international development and thorough discussion with the
stakeholders, evaluation and assessment of impact studies at various phases, this framework has been
drafted. This framework provides the guidelines for the implementation of Basel 11l framework in
Nepal. The Basel Il capital regulations continue to be based on three-mutually reinforcing Pillars,
viz. minimum capital requirements, supervisory review of capital adequacy, and market discipline of
the Basel 11 capital adequacy framework.

OBJECTIVE:

The main objective of this framework is to develop the safe and sound financial system by way of
sufficient amount of qualitative capital and risk management practices. This framework is intended to
ensure that each bank maintains a level of capital which,

(i) isadequate to protect its depositors and creditors.
(i) is commensurate with the risk associated activities and profile of the bank.

(iii) promotes public confidence in the banking system.

PRE-REQUISITES:

The effective implementation of this framework is dependent on various factors. Some such pre-
requisites are:

(i) Implementation of Basel Core Principles for effective Banking Supervision.
(i) Adoption of the sound practices for the management of Operational Risk.
(iii) Formulation and adoption of comprehensive risk management policy.

(iv) Adherence to high degree of corporate governance.

RESPONSIBILITY:

The board of directors of each bank shall be responsible for establishing and maintaining, at all times,
an adequate level of capital. The capital standards herein are the minimum that is acceptable for
banks that are fundamentally sound, well managed, and have no material financial or operational
weaknesses. Thus, banks are generally expected to operate above the limits prescribed by this
framework.
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SCOPE OF APPLICATION:

This framework shall be applicable to all Infrastructure Development Banks licensed to conduct
banking business in Nepal under the Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073.

This capital adequacy framework shall be applicable uniformly to all Infrastructure Development
Bankson a stand-alone basis and as well as on a consolidated basis, where the bank is member of a
consolidated banking group. For the purpose of capital adequacy, the consolidated bank means a
group of financial entities, parent or holding company of which a bank is a subsidiary. All banking
and other relevant financial activities (both regulated and unregulated) conducted within a group
including a bank shall be captured through consolidation. Thus, majority owned or controlled
financial entities should be fully consolidated. If any majority owned subsidiary institutions are not
consolidated for capital purposes, all equity and other regulatory capital investments in those entities
attributable to the group will be deducted and the assets and liabilities, as well as third party capital
investments in the subsidiary will be removed from the bank’s balance sheet for capital adequacy
purposes.

APPROACHES TO IMPLEMENTATION:

"International Convergence for Capital Measurements and Capital Standards: Revised Framework",
Basel Il under Pillar 1, provides three distinct approaches for computing capital requirements for
credit risk and three other approaches for computing capital requirements for operational risk. These
approaches for credit and operational risk are based on increasing risk sensitivity and allow banks to
select an approach that is most appropriate to the stage of development of banks’ operations.

The products and services offered by the Nepalese Banks are still largely conventional, in comparison
to other economies. Considering the starting phase of credit rating practice of Nepal, Standardized
Approach (SA) to measure credit risk while Basic Indicator Approach and an indigenous Net Open
Position Approach for measurement of Operational Risk and Market Risk is adopted respectively.
These approaches have been customized to deal with Nepalese financial and banking sector
development.

IMPLEMENTATION OF ADVANCED APPROACHES:

This framework prescribes the simplest of the available approaches at the initial phase with a vision
to move onto more complex and risk sensitive approaches as the market gradually gains maturity.
Banks willing to adopt advanced approaches, even for internal purposes, should obtain prior written
approval from Nepal Rastra Bank on providing evidence that they have the resources and the
capability to adopt the proposed approaches.

A bank will not be allowed to choose to revert to a simpler approach once it has been approved for a
more advanced approach without supervisory approval. However, if a supervisor determines that a
bank using a more advanced approach no longer meets the qualifying criteria for an advanced
approach, it may allow the bank to revert to a simpler approach for some or all of its operations, until
it meets the conditions specified by the supervisor for returning to a more advanced approach.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY REQUIREMENT
Capital ratios will be as follows:-

S.No. Regulatory Capital Percentage

1. |Minimum Common Equity Capital Ratio 4.50

2. |Capital Conservation Buffer 2.50

3. |Minimum common equity plus capital conservation buffer 7.00

4. |Minimum Tier 1 Capital 6.00
(Excluding conservation buffer)

5. |Minimum Total Capital 8.50
(Excluding conservation buffer)




6. |Minimum Total Capital (including conservation buffer ) 11.00
7. |Counter Cyclical Buffers* 0-2.5

Leverage Ratio 3

*For FY 2081/82 countercyclical buffer will remain at 0 percent with effect from 2081 Shrawn.

2.1

REQUIREMENTS FOR CAPITAL FUNDS

DEFINITION OF CAPITAL.:
The qualifying regulatory capital shall consist of the sum of the following components:
a.Tier 1 Capital (Core Capital)
A. Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1)
B. Additional Tier 1 (AT1)
b.Tier 2 Capital (Supplementary Capital)
The detailed description of the components of regulatory capital and their elements are as follows:
I. Tier 1 Capital (Core Capital)

The key element of capital on which the main emphasis should be placed is Tier 1 (core) capital,
which is comprised of equity capital and disclosed reserves. This key element of capital is the basis
on which most market judgments of capital adequacy are made; and it has a crucial bearing on profit
margins and a bank's ability to compete.

The BCBS has therefore concluded that capital, for supervisory purposes, should be defined in two
tiers in a way, which will have the effect of requiring at least 50% of a bank's capital base to consist
of a core element comprised of equity capital and published reserves from post-tax retained earnings.

In order to rank as Tier 1, capital must be fully paid up, have no fixed servicing or dividend costs
attached to it and be freely available to absorb losses ahead of general creditors. Capital also needs to
have a very high degree of permanence if it is to be treated as Tier 1.

Tier 1 Capital shall consist of Common Equity Tier 1 Capital and Additional Tier 1 Capital and the
sum of these two capitals shall be total Tier 1 Capital.

A.Common Equity Tier 1Capital

Common Equity is recognized as the highest quality component of capital and is the primary form of
funding which ensures that a bank remains solvent. Common Equity Tier 1 Capital consists of the
sum of the following elements:

(i)  Common shares issued by the bank that meet the criteria for classification as common shares for
regulatory purposes;

(if)  Stock surplus (share premium) resulting from the issue of instruments included in Common Equity
Tier 1;

(iii)  Statutory General Reserve;
(iv) Retained Earnings available for distribution to shareholders;

(v)  Un-audited current year cumulative profit, after all provisions including staff bonus and taxes.
Where such provisions are not made, this amount shall not qualify as Common Equity Tier 1 capital,

(vi) Capital Redemption Reserves created in lieu of redeemable instruments
(vii) Capital Adjustment reserves created in respect of increasing the capital base of the bank
(viii) Dividend Equalization Reserves;

(ix)  Other free reserves if any
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(xi)

Any other type of instruments notified by NRB from time to time for inclusion in Common Equity
Tier 1 capital;and

Less: Regulatory adjustments / deductions applied in the calculation of Common Equity
Tier 1 capital.

Criteria for common shares issued by the bank for inclusion in Common Equity:

Common shares must meet the following criteria to be included in Common Equity Tier 1 Capital:

1.
2.
3.

10.

11.
12.

13.

14.

15.

All common shares should be voting shares.
Represent the most subordinate claim in liquidation of the bank.

Be entitled to a claim on the residual assets which is proportional to its share of paid up
capital, after all senior claims have been repaid in liquidation (i.e. has an unlimited and
variable claim, not a fixed or capped claim).

Principal is perpetual and never repaid outside of liquidation (except discretionary
repurchases / buy backs or other means of effectively reducing capital in a discretionary
manner with the prior approval of NRB which is allowable under relevant law as well as
guidelines, if any, issued by NRB in the matter).

The bank does nothing to create an expectation at issuance that the instrument will be
bought back, redeemed or cancelled nor do the statutory or contractual terms provide any
feature which might give rise to such an expectation.

Distributions are paid out of distributable items. The level of distributions is not in any way
tied or linked to the amount paid up at issuance and is not subject to a contractual cap
(except to the extent that a bank is unable to pay distributions that exceed the level of
distributable items). As regards ‘distributable items’, it is clarified that the dividend on
common shares will be paid out of the current year’s profit and retained earnings only.

There are no circumstances under which the distributions are obligatory. Non-payment is
therefore not an event of default.

Distributions are paid only after all legal and contractual obligations have been met and
payments on more senior capital instruments have been made. This means that there are no
preferential distributions, including in respect of other elements classified as the highest
quality issued capital.

It is the paid up capital that takes the first and proportionately greatest share of any losses
as they occur. Within the highest quality capital, each instrument absorbs losses on a going
concern basis proportionately and pari passu with all the others.

The paid up amount is classified as equity capital (i.e. not recognised as a liability) for
determining balance sheet insolvency.

The paid up amount is classified as equity under the relevant accounting standards.

It is directly issued and paid up and the bank cannot directly or indirectly have funded the
purchase of the instrument. Banks should also not extend loans against their own shares.

The paid up amount is neither secured nor covered by a guarantee of the issuer or related
entity nor subject to any other arrangement that legally or economically enhances the
seniority of the claim.

Paid up capital is only issued with the approval of the owners of the issuing bank, either
given directly by the owners or, if permitted by applicable law, given by the Board of
Directors or by other persons duly authorized by the owners.

Paid up capitalis clearly and separately disclosed in the bank’s balance sheet.



B. Additional Tier 1 Capital

Additional Tier 1 Capital mainly include the instruments either classified as equity under relevant
accounting standards but are not the common equity share and hence not includible in common
equity tier 1 or the instrument which are classified as liabilities under relevant accounting
standards, however it is includible in additional tier 1 capital. Under Basel 1l hon-common equity
elements to be included in Tier 1 capital should absorb losses while the bank remains a going
concern. Towards this end, one of the important criteria for Additional Tier 1 instruments is that
these instruments should have principal loss absorption through either (i) conversion into common
shares at an objective pre-specified trigger point or (ii) a write-down mechanism which allocates
losses to the instrument at a pre-specified trigger point. Banks should not issue Additional Tier 1
capital instruments to the retail investors.

Additional Tier 1 capital consists of the sum of the following elements:

(i)  Perpetual Non Cumulative Preference Share (PNCPS) and Perpetual Debt Instruments (PDI) issued
by the bank that meet the criteria for inclusion in Additional Tier 1 capital;

(i)  Stock surplus (share premium) resulting from the issue of PNCPS instruments included in
Additional Tier 1 capital; and

(iii)  Less: Regulatory adjustments / deductions applied in the calculation of Additional Tier 1 capital.
Criteria for Instruments issued by the bank for inclusion in Additional Tier 1:

Perpetual Non Cumulative Preference Share (PNCPS) and Perpetual Debt Instruments (PDI)
issued by the bank must meet the following criteria to be included in Additional Tier 1 Capital:

1. The instruments should be issued by the Bank (i.e. not by any ‘Special Purpose Vehicle’ etc.
set up by the bank for this purpose)and fully paid up.

2. The claim of investors of the instruments shall be:
(A)  Incase of Perpetual Non Cumulative Preference Shares:
(i) Superior to the claims of investors in equity shares; and

(if) Subordinated to the claims of PDIs, all Tier 2 regulatory capital instruments, depositors and
general creditors of the bank.

(B) In case of Perpetual Debt Instruments:

(i) Superior to the claims of investors in equity shares and perpetual non-cumulative
preference shares;

(ii) Subordinated to the claims of depositors, general creditors and subordinated debt of the
bank;

3. The instruments should be neither secured nor covered by a guarantee of the issuer or related
entity or other arrangement that legally or economically enhances the seniority of the claim
vis-a-vis bank creditors

4. The instruments should be perpetual, i.e., there is no maturity date and there are no step-ups
or other incentives to redeem

5. The Instruments may be callable at the initiative of the issuer. This means that the
instruments shall not be issued with “Put Option”. However, banks may issue instruments
with a “Call Option” at a particular date subject to following conditions:

a) The call option on the instrument is permissible after ten years of issuance;
b) To exercise a call option a bank must receive prior approval of NRB;

c) A bank must not do anything which creates an expectation that the call will be
exercised.; and

d) Banks must not exercise a call unless:



6.

10.

11.

12.

i. The bank replaces the called instrument with capital of the same or better quality
and the replacement of this capital is done at conditions which are sustainable for
the income capacity of the bank; or

ii. The bank demonstrates that its capital position is well above the minimum capital
requirements after the call option is exercised.

Any repayment of principal (eg. through repurchase, buy-back or redemption) must be with
prior approval of NRB and banks should not assume or create market expectations that
supervisory approval will be given. Banks may repurchase / buy-back / redeem the
instruments only if:

(&) The bank replaces such instrument with capital of the same or better quality and the
replacement of this capital is done at conditions which are sustainable for the income
capacity of the bank; or

(b) The bank demonstrates that its capital position is well above the minimum capital
requirements after the repurchase / buy-back / redemption.

Dividend/coupon discretion:

a. The bank must have full discretion at all times to cancel distributions/payments;

b. Cancellation of discretionary payments must not be an event of default;

c¢. Banks must have full access to cancelled payments to meet obligations as they fall due;and

d. Cancellation of distributions/payments must not impose restrictions on the bank except in
relation to distributions to common stockholders.

Dividends/coupons must be paid out of ‘distributable items’:

As regards ‘distributable items’, it is clarified that the dividend on perpetual non-cumulative
preference shares (PNCPS) will be paid out of current year’s profit only.

In case of coupon on perpetual debt instruments (PDI), it is clarified that if the payment of
coupons on perpetual debt instrument (PDI) is likely to result in losses in the current year,
their declaration should be precluded to that extent.

Dividend on PNCPS and coupons on PDI should not be paid out of retained earnings /
reserves. In other words, payment of dividend/coupons should not have the effect of reducing
retained earnings / reserves.

The instrument cannot have a credit sensitive dividend/coupon feature, that is a
dividend/coupon that is reset periodically based in whole or in part on the banking
organization's credit standing.

The dividend/coupon shall not be cumulative. i.e., dividend/coupon missed in a year will not
be paid in future years, even if adequate profit is available and the level of CAR conforms to
the regulatory minimum. When dividend/coupon is paid at a rate lesser than the prescribed
rate, the unpaid amount will not be paid in future years, even if adequate profit is available
and the level of CAR conforms to the regulatory minimum.

The instrument cannot contribute to liabilities exceeding assets if such a balance sheet test
forms part of requirement to prove insolvency by any law or otherwise.

Instruments classified as liabilities for accounting purposes must have principal loss
absorption through either (i) conversion to common shares at an objective pre-specified
trigger point or (ii) a write-down mechanism which allocates losses to the instrument at a pre-
specified trigger point. The write-down will have the following effects:

a. Reduce the claim of the instrument in liquidation;

b. Reduce the amount re-paid when a call is exercised; and



c. Partially or fully reduce coupon/dividend payments on the instrument.

13. Neither the bank nor a related party over which the bank exercises control or significant
influence(as defined under relevant Nepal Financial Reporting Standards) can have purchased
the instrument, nor can the bank directly or indirectly have funded the purchase of the
instrument

14. The instrument cannot have any features that hinder recapitalization, such as provisions that
require the issuer to compensate investors if a new instrument is issued at a lower price
during a specified time frame.

. Tier 2 (Supplementary) Capital

The Supplementary (Tier 2) Capital includes reserves whichhave been passed through the profit
and loss account and all other capital instruments eligible and acceptable for capital purposes.
Elements of the Tier 2 capital will be reckoned as capital funds up to a maximum of 100 percent
of Tier 1 capital arrived at, after making regulatory adjustments/deductions. In case, where the
Tier 1 capital of a bank is negative, the Tier 2 capital for regulatory purposes shall be considered
as zero and hence the capital fund, in such cases, shall be equal to the core capital.

The Tier 2 Capital consists of the sum of the following elements:

(i)  Preference Share Capital Instruments [Perpetual Cumulative Preference Shares (PCPS) /
Redeemable Non-Cumulative Preference Shares (RNCPS) / Redeemable Cumulative
Preference Shares (RCPS)] issued by the bank with the maturity of 5 years or above;

(i)  Subordinated term debt fully paid up with a maturity of 5 years or above; unsecured and
subordinated to the claim of other creditors, free of restrictive clauses and not redeemable
before maturity. Since, subordinated term debt is not normally available to participate in
the losses; the amount eligible for inclusion in the capital adequacy calculations is limited
to 50% of core capital. Moreover, to reflect the diminishing value of these instruments as a
continuing source of strength, a cumulative discount (amortization) factor of 20% per
annum shall be applied for capital adequacy computations, during the last 5 years to
maturity.

(iii) Hybrid capital instruments combine certain characteristics of debt and certain
characteristics of equity. Each such instrument has a particular feature, which can be
considered to affect its quality as capital. Where these instruments have close similarities to
equity, in particular when they are able to support losses on an ongoing basis without
triggering liquidation, they may be included in Tier 2 capital with approval from Nepal
Rastra Bank.

(iv) Stock surplus (share premium) resulting from the issue of instruments included in Tier 2
capital;

(v)  General loan loss provision limited to a maximum of 1.25% of total Credit Risk Weighted
Exposures. General loan loss provision refers to provisions or loan- loss reserves held
against future, presently unidentified losses are freely available to meet losses which
subsequently materialize and therefore the provisions created in respect of Performing
Loans only qualify for inclusion in Tier 2 Capital. Provisions ascribed to identify
deterioration of particular assets or loan liabilities, whether individual or grouped, should
be excluded. Accordingly, for instances provision on rescheduled/restructured and
classified loans, both an individual account and portfolio level shall be excluded. The
additional loan loss provisions created in respect of Personal Guarantee loans, third party
collateral loans and loans in excess of Single Obligor Limits are specific provisions and
hence cannot be included under this category. Such provisions however can be deducted
from the gross exposures while calculating risk weighted exposures for credit risk.



However, provisions created in excess of the regulatory requirements or provisions which
are not attributable to identifiable losses in any specific loans shall be allowed to be
included in the General Loan Loss Provision.

(vi) Exchange equalization reserves created by banks as a cushion for unexpected losses arising
out of adverse movements in foreign currencies.

(vii) Investment adjustment reserves created as a cushion for adverse price movements in banks’
investments falling under “Available for Sale” category.

(viii) Revaluation reserves often serve as a cushion against unexpected losses but may not be
fully available to absorb unexpected losses due to the subsequent deterioration in market
values and tax consequences of revaluation. Therefore, revaluation reserves will be eligible
up to 50% for treatment as Tier 2 capital and limited to a maximum of 2% of total Tier 2
capital subject to the condition that the reasonableness of the revalued amount is duly
certified by the internal auditor of the bank.

(ixX) Any other type of instruments notified by NRB from time to time for inclusion in Tier 2
capital

(X)  Less: Regulatory adjustments / deductions applied in the calculation of Tier 2 capital.
Criteria for Instruments issued by the bank for inclusion in Tier 2 Capital:

Preference Share Capital Instruments [Perpetual Cumulative Preference Shares (PCPS) /
Redeemable Non-Cumulative Preference Shares (RNCPS) / Redeemable Cumulative Preference
Shares (RCPS)], Subordinated Term Debt and Hybrid Capital Instrument issued by the bank must
meet the following criteria to be included in Tier 2 Capital:

1. The instruments should be issued by the Bank (i.e. not by any ‘Special Purpose Vehicle’ etc.
set up by the bank for this purpose) and fully paid up.

2. These instruments could be either perpetual or dated with a maturity period of minimum 5
years or more and there should be no step-ups or other incentives to redeem. The perpetual
instruments shall be cumulative. The dated instruments could be cumulative or non-
cumulative.

3. The dated instruments (both cumulative and non-cumulative) shall be subjected to a
progressive discount for capital adequacy purposes over the last five years of their tenor, as
they approach maturity as indicated in the table below for being eligible for inclusion in Tier
2 capital.

Remaining Maturity of Instruments Rate of Discount (%0)
Less than one year 100
One year and more but less than two years 80
Two years and more but less than three years 60
Three years and more but less than four years 40
Four years and more but less than five years 20

4. Dividend/Coupon/Rate of Interest

(i)  The dividend/coupon payable to the investors may be either at a fixed rate or at a
floating rate referenced to a market determined rupee interest benchmark rate.

(i)  The instrument cannot have a credit sensitive coupon feature, i.e. a coupon that is
reset periodically based in whole or in part on the banks’ credit standing.

5. The claims of the investors in instruments shall be:
(i)  senior to the claims of investors in instruments eligible for inclusion in Tier 1 capital;
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(i)  subordinate to the claims of all depositors and general creditors of the bank; and

(iii) Neither secured nor covered by a guarantee of the issuer or related entity or other
arrangement that legally or economically enhances the seniority of the claim vis-a-
vis bank creditors.

6. The instruments shall not be issued with “Put Option”. However, the Instruments may be
callable at the initiative of the issuer. Banks may issue instruments with a “Call Option” at a
particular date subject to the following conditions:

(i)  The call option on the instrument is permissible after five years of issuance;
(i)  Toexercise a call option a bank must receive prior approval of NRB; and

(iii) A bank must not do anything which creates an expectation that the call will be
exercised; and

(iv) Banks must not exercise a call unless:

(a) The bank replaces the called instrument with capital of the same or better
quality and the replacement of this capital is done on conditions which are
sustainable for the income capacity of the bank; or

(b) The bank demonstrates that its capital position is well above the minimum
capital requirements after the call option is exercised.

7. Treatment in Bankruptcy / Liquidation

The investor must have no rights to accelerate the repayment of future scheduled payments
(coupon or principal) except in bankruptcy and liquidation

8. Prohibition on Purchase / Funding of Instruments

Neither the bank nor a related party over which the bank exercises control or significant
influence (as defined under relevant Nepal Financial Reporting Standards) should purchase
the instrument, nor can the bank directly or indirectly should fund the purchase of the
instrument. Banks should also not grant advances against the security of the debt instruments
issued by them.

2.2 LOSS ABSORPTION OF ADDITIONAL TIER 1 INSTRUMENTS (AT1) AT THE PRE-
SPECIFIED TRIGGER

I.  Level of Pre-Specified Trigger and Amount of Equity to be Created by Conversion / Write-down

1. As abank’s capital conservation buffer falls to 0.625% of RWE, it will be subject to 100%
profit retention requirements. One of the important objectives of capital conservation buffer
is to ensure that a bank always operates above minimum Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1)
level. Therefore, a pre-specified trigger for loss absorption through conversion/write-down
of the level of Additional Tier 1 (AT1) instruments (PNCPS and PDI) at CET1 of 5.125%
of RWEs (minimum CET1 of 4.5% + 25% of capital conservation buffer of 2.5% i.e.
0.625%) has been fixed.

2. The write-down/conversion must generate CET1 under applicable Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards equal to the written-down / converted amount net of tax, if any.

3. The aggregate amount to be written-down / converted for all such instruments on breaching
the trigger level must be at least the amount needed to immediately return the bank’s CET1
ratio to the trigger level or, if this is not sufficient, the full principal value of the
instruments. Further, the issuer should have full discretion to determine the amount of AT1
instruments to be converted/written-down subject to the amount of conversion/write-down
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not exceeding the amount which would be required to bring the total Common Equity ratio
to 7% of RWEs (minimum CET1 of 4.5% + capital conservation buffer of 2.5%).

The conversion / write-down of AT1 instruments are primarily intended to replenish the
equity in the event it is depleted by losses. Therefore, banks should not use conversion /
write-down of AT1 instruments to support expansion of balance sheet by incurring further
obligations / booking assets. Accordingly, a bank whose total Common Equity ratio slips
below 7% due to losses and is still above 5.125% i.e. trigger point, should seek to expand
its balance sheet further only by raising fresh equity from its existing shareholders or
market and the internal accruals. However, fresh exposures can be taken to the extent of
amortization of the existing ones. If any expansion in exposures, such as due to drawdown
of sanctioned borrowing limits, is inevitable, this should be compensated within the
shortest possible time by reducing other exposures. The bank should maintain proper
records to facilitate verification of these transactions by its internal auditors, statutory
auditors and supervisors.

Il. Types of Loss Absorption Features

5.

Banks may issue AT1 instruments with conversion / write-down features. Further, banks
may issue a single AT1 instrument having both conversion and write-down features with
the option for conversion or write-down to be exercised by the bank. Whichever option is
exercised; it should be exercised across all investors of a particular issue.

When a bank breaches the pre-specified trigger of loss absorbency of AT1 and the equity is
replenished either through conversion or write-down, such replenished amount of equity
will be excluded from the common equity tier 1 of the bank for the purpose of determining
the proportion of earnings to be paid out as dividend in terms of rules laid down for
maintaining capital conservation buffer. However, once the bank has attained a total
Common Equity ratio of 7% without counting the replenished equity capital, that point
onwards, the bank may include the replenished equity capital for all purposes.

The conversion / write-down may be allowed more than once in case a bank hits the pre-
specified trigger level subsequent to the first conversion / write-down which was partial.

I11. Treatment of AT1 Instruments in the event of Liquidation, Merger, Acquisitionof the Bank

8.

10.

11.

If a bank goes into liquidation before the ATL1 instruments have been written-down/
converted, these instruments will absorb losses in accordance with the order of seniority
indicated in the offer document, and legal provisions governing priority of charges. The
order of seniority indicated in the offer document should be in compliance with the
provision of Banking Act.

If a bank goes into liquidation after the AT1 instruments have been written-down, the
holders of these instruments will have no claim on the proceeds of liquidation.

If a bank is merged with/acquired by any other bank before the AT1 instruments have been
written-down/converted, these instruments will become part of the corresponding
categories of regulatory capital of the new bank emerging after the merger/acquisition.

If a bank is merged with any other bank after the non-equity regulatory capital instruments
have been written-down, these cannot be written-up by the merged entity.

IV. Fixation of Conversion Price, Capping of Number of Shares / Voting Rights

12.

13.

Banks may issue AT1 instruments with conversion features either based on price fixed at
the time of issuance or based on the market price prevailing at the time of conversion.

There will be a possibility of the debt holders receiving a large number of shares in the
event the share price is very low at the time of conversion. Thus, debt holders will end up
holding the number of shares and attached voting rights exceeding the legally permissible
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limits. Banks should therefore, always keep sufficient headroom to accommodate the
additional equity due to conversion without breaching any of the statutory / regulatory
ceilings especially that for maximum shareholdings and maximum voting rights per
investors / group of related investors. In order to achieve this, banks should cap the number
of shares and / or voting rights in accordance with relevant laws and regulations on
Ownership and Governance of banks. Banks should adequately incorporate these features
in the terms and conditions of the instruments in the offer document.

V. Order of Conversion / Write-down of Various Types of AT1 Instruments

14. The instruments should be converted / written-down in order in which they would absorb
losses in a gone concern situation. Banks should indicate in the offer document clearly the
order of conversion / write-down of the instrument in question vis-a-vis other capital
instruments which the bank has already issued or may issue in future.

2.3 DEDUCTIONS FROM CORE (TIER 1) CAPITAL:

Banks shall be required to deduct the following items from the CET 1 capital for capital adequacy
purposes. The claims that have been deducted from CET1 capital shall be exempted from risk weights
for the measurement of credit risk.

a.

@ - o o

Book value of goodwill and all other intangible assets.

Goodwill and all other intangible assets should be deducted from CET1 capital including any
goodwill included in the valuation of significant investments in the capital of banking, financial
and insurance entities which are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation.

The full amount of the intangible assets is to be a deducted net of any associated deferred tax
liabilities which would be extinguished if the intangible assets become impaired or
derecognized under the relevant accounting standards. For this purpose, the definition of
intangible assets would be in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards.

Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred Tax Assets computed as under should be deducted from Common Equity Tier 1

(i) Deferred Tax Assets associated with the accumulated tax losses

(ii) Deferred Tax Assets other than associated with the accumulated tax losses, net of Deferred Tax
Liabilities, if any. Where the Deferred Tax Liabilities is in excess of the Deferred Tax Assets
(excluding Deferred Tax Assets associated with accumulated losses), the excess shall neither be
adjusted against item (i) nor added to CET1 capital.

Miscellaneous expenditure to the extent not written off. e.g. VRS expense, preliminary
expense, share issue expense, deferred revenue expenditure, etc.

Investment in Securities of financial institutions licensed by Nepal Rastra Bank?.
All Investments in equity of institutions with financial interest.
Investments in equity of institutions in excess of the prescribed limits.

Investments arising out of underwriting commitments that have not been disposed within a year
from the date of commitment.

Reciprocal crossholdings of bank capital artificially designed to inflate the capital position of
the bank.

Cash Flow Hedge Reserve

2

Investment in shares of institutions, where the waiver has been explicitly provided by NRB are subject to risk weight of 100%

and shall not be deducted from Tier 1 capital.
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2.4

The amount of the cash flow hedge reserve which relates to the hedging of items that are not fair valued
on the balance sheet (including projected cash flows) should be derecognized in the calculation of CET1.
This means that positive amounts should be deducted and negative amounts should be added back. This
treatment specifically identifies the element of the cash flow hedge reserve that is to be derecognized for
prudential purposes. It removes the element that gives rise to artificial volatility in Common Equity, as in
this case the reserve only reflects one half of the picture (the fair value of the derivative, but not the
changes in fair value of the hedged future cash flow).

J-  Defined Benefit Pension Fund Assets and Liabilities

Defined benefit pension fund liabilities, as included on the balance sheet, must be fully recognized in the
calculation of Common Equity Tier 1 capital (i.e. Common Equity Tier 1 capital cannot be increased
through derecognizing or unrecognition of these liabilities). For each defined benefit pension fund that is
an asset on the balance sheet, the asset should be deducted in the calculation of Common Equity Tier 1
net of any associated deferred tax liability which would be extinguished if the asset should become
impaired or derecognized under the relevant accounting standards.

K.  Any other instruments as stipulated by Nepal Rastra Bank, from time to time.
CAPITAL FUNDS:

The capital fund is the summation of Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital and Tier 1 capital is the total of
common equity Tier 1 (CET1) and additional Tier 1 (AT1) capital. A bank should compute capital
ratios in the following manner:

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital
Total Risk Weighted Exposure*
Eligible Tier 1 Capital

Total Risk Weighted Exposure
Eligible Total Capital

Total Risk Weighted Exposure

*Total Risk Weighted Exposure = RWE* on Credit Risk +RWE on Market Risk+ RWE on
Operational Risk + Supervisory Adjustment under Pillar |1

¥RWE= Risk weighted Exposure

Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio =

Tier 1 capital ratio =

Total Capital (CAR?) =

# Capital Adequacy Ratio

(i) Banks shall maintain a minimum total capital (MTC) of 8.5% of total risk weighted assets
(RWAS) i.e. capital to risk weighted assets (CRAR).

(i) Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) capital must be at least 4.5% of risk-weighted assets (RWAS)
i.e. for credit risk + market risk + operational risk on an ongoing basis.

(iii) Tier 1 capital must be at least 6% of RWAs on an ongoing basis. Thus, within the minimum
Tier 1 capital, Additional Tier 1 capital can be admitted maximum at 1.5% of RWAs.

(iv) Total Capital (Tier 1 Capital plus Tier 2 Capital) must be at least 8.5% of RWAs on an
ongoing basis. The sum total of the different components of the Tier 2 capitals will be limited
to the sum total of the various components of the Tier 1 capital net of deductions as specified
in paragraph2.3. In case the Tier 1 capital is negative, Tier 2 capital shall be considered to be
"Nil" for regulatory capital adequacy purposes and hence, in such a situation, the capital fund
shall be equal to the Tier 1 capital.

(v) If a bank has complied with the minimum Common Equity Tier 1 and Tier 1 capital ratios,
then the excess Additional Tier 1 capital can be admitted for compliance with the minimum
CRAR of 8.5% of RWA:s.
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(vi) In addition to the minimum Common Equity Tier 1 capital of 4.5% of RWAs, banks are also
required to maintain a capital conservation buffer (CCB) of 2.5% of RWAs in the form of
Common Equity Tier 1 capital.

For the purpose of all prudential exposure limits linked to capital funds, the ‘capital funds’
will exclude the applicable capital conservation buffer and countercyclical capital buffer as
and when activated, but include Additional Tier 1 capital and Tier 2 capital. It may be noted
that the term ‘Common Equity Tier 1 capital’ does not include capital conservation buffer
and countercyclical capital buffer.

2.5 CAPITAL CONSERVATION BUFFER
A. Objective

1.

The capital conservation buffer (CCB) is designed to ensure that banks build up capital buffers
during normal times (i.e. outside periods of stress) which can be drawn down as losses are
incurred during a stressed period. The requirement is based on simple capital conservation rules
designed to avoid breaches of minimum capital requirements.

Outside the period of stress, banks should hold buffers of capital above the regulatory minimum.
When buffers have been drawn down, one way banks should look to rebuild them is through
reducing discretionary distributions of earnings. Banks may also choose to raise new capital from
the market as an alternative to conserving internally generated capital. However, if a bank decides
to make payments in excess of the constraints imposed as explained above, the bank, with the
prior approval of NRB, would have to use the option of raising capital from the market equal to
the amount above the constraint which it wishes to distribute.

The capital conservation buffer can be drawn down only when a bank faces a systemic or
idiosyncratic stress. A bank should not choose in normal times to operate in the buffer range
simply to compete with other banks and win market share. This aspect would be specifically
looked into by NRB during the Supervisory Review and Evaluation Process. If, at any time, a
bank is found to have allowed its capital conservation buffer to fall in normal times, particularly
by increasing its risk weighted assets without a commensurate increase in the Common Equity
Tier 1 Ratio (although adhering to the restrictions on distributions), this would be viewed
seriously. In addition, such a bank will be required to bring the buffer to the desired level within a
time limit prescribed by NRB. The banks which draw down their capital conservation buffer
during a stressed period should also have a definite plan to replenish the buffer as part of its
Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process and strive to bring the buffer to the desired level
within a time limit agreed to with NRB during the Supervisory Review and Evaluation Process.

The framework of capital conservation buffer will strengthen the ability of banks to withstand
adverse economic environment conditions, will help increase banking sector resilience both going
into a downturn, and provide the mechanism for rebuilding capital during the early stages of
economic recovery. Thus, by retaining a greater proportion of earnings during a downturn, banks
will be able to help ensure that capital remains available to support the ongoing business
operations / lending activities during the period of stress. Therefore, this framework is expected
to help reduce pro-cyclicality.

B. The Framework

5.

Banks are required to maintain a capital conservation buffer of 2.5%, comprised of Common
Equity Tier 1 capital, above the regulatory minimum capital requirement of 8.50%. Banks should
not distribute capital (i.e. pay dividends or bonuses in any form) in case capital level falls within

AL



this range. However, they will be able to conduct business as normal when their capital levels fall
into the conservation range as they experience losses. Therefore, the constraints imposed are
related to the distributions only and are not related to the operations of banks. The distribution
constraints imposed on banks when their capital levels fall into the range increase as the banks’
capital levels approach the minimum requirements. The Table below shows the minimum capital
conservation ratios a bank must meet at various levels of the Common Equity Tier 1 capital
ratios.

Minimum capital conservation standards for individual bank

Common Equity Tier 1 Ratio Minimum Capital Conservation Ratios
(expressed as a percentage of earnings)

4.5% - 5.125% 100%

>5.125% - 5.75% 80%

>5.75% - 6.375% 60%

>6.375% - 7.0% 40%

>7.0% 0%

For example, a bank with a Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio in the range of 5.125% to 5.75%
is required to conserve 80% of its earnings in the subsequent financial year (i.e. payout no more
than 20%).

The Common Equity Tier 1 ratio includes amounts used to meet the minimum Common Equity
Tier 1 capital requirement of 4.5%, but excludes any additional Common Equity Tier 1 needed to
meet the 7% Tier 1 and 8.5% Total Capital requirements. For example, a bank maintains Common
Equity Tier 1 capital of 8.5% and has no Additional Tier 1 or Tier 2 capital. Therefore, the bank
would meet all minimum capital requirements, but would have a zero conservation buffer and
therefore, the bank would be subjected to 100% constraint on distributions of capital by way of
dividends, share-buybacks and discretionary bonuses.

The following represents other key aspects of the capital conservation buffer requirements:

(i) Elements subject to the restriction on distributions: Dividends and share buybacks,
discretionary payments on other Tier 1 capital instruments and discretionary bonus
payments to staff would constitute items considered to be distributions. Payments which do
not result in depletion of Common Equity Tier 1 capital, (for example includes certain scrip
dividend) are not considered distributions.

(if) Definition of earnings: Earnings are defined as distributable profits before the deduction
of elements subject to the restriction on distributions mentioned at (i) above. Earnings are
calculated after the tax which would have been reported had none of the distributable items
been paid. As such, any tax impact of making such distributions are reversed out. If a bank
does not have positive earnings and has a Common Equity Tier 1 ratio less than 7%, it
should not make positive net distributions.

(iii) Additional supervisory discretion: Supervisors have the additional discretion to impose
time limits on banks operating within the buffer range on a case-by-case basis. In any case,
supervisors should ensure that the capital plans of banks seek to rebuild buffers over an
appropriate timeframe.
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2.6 COUNTERCYCLICAL BUFFER

A

1.

Introduction

Losses incurred in the banking sector can be extremely large when a downturn is preceded by a
period of excess credit growth. These losses can destabilize the banking sector and spark a
vicious circle, whereby problems in the financial system can contribute to a downturn in the real
economy that then feeds back on to the banking sector. These interactions highlight the particular
importance of the banking sector building up additional capital defenses in periods where the
risks of system-wide stress are growing markedly.

The countercyclical buffer aims to ensure that banking sector capital requirementstake account of
the macro-financial environment in which banks operate. The primary aim of the countercyclical
capital buffer requirement is to use a buffer of capital to achieve the broader macro prudential
goal of protecting the banking sector from periods of excess aggregate credit growth that have
often been associated with the build-up of system-wide risk.Protecting the banking sector in this
context is not simply ensuring that individual banks remain solvent through a period of stress, as
the minimum capital requirement and capital conservation buffer are together designed to fulfill
this objective. Rather, the aim is to ensure that the banking sector in aggregate has the capital on
hand to help maintain the flow of credit in the economy without its solvency being questioned,
when the broader financial system experiences stress after a period of excess credit growth.
Therefore, excess aggregate credit growth is judged to be associated witha build-up of system-
wide risk to ensure the banking system has a buffer of capital to protectit against future potential
losses.

The countercyclical buffer regime consists of the following elements:

a) Nepal Rastra Bank will monitor credit growth and other indicators that may signal a buildup
of system-wide risk and make assessments of whether credit growth is excessive and
isleading to the buildup of system-wide risk. Based on this assessment Nepal Rastra Bank
will put in place a countercyclical buffer requirement when circumstances warrant.
Thisrequirement will be released when system-wide risk crystallises or dissipates.

b) The countercyclical buffer requirement to which a bank is subject to extend the size of the
capital conservation buffer. Banks will be subject to restrictions on distributions if they do
not meet the requirement.

Countercyclical buffer requirements

Nepal Rastra Bank has adopted the Credit to GDP ratio, macro-economic variable, as guide for
reference point for taking buffer decisions. Nepal Rastra Bank will monitor Credit to GDP ratio
at least annually and calculate Credit to GDP gap, i.e. the gap between Credit to GDP ratio and its
Trend. The intensity of Credit to GDP gap shall be the indication of the extent of thebuildup of
system-wide risk i.e. If the credit-to-GDP ratio is significantly above its trend (i.e. there is a large
positive gap) then this is an indication that credit may have grown to excessive levels relative to
GDP.The Credit to GDP gap shall be calculated as follows:

Credit to GDP Gap(t) = Credit to GDP Ratio(t) — Trend(t)

The countercyclical buffer requirement will vary between 0 and 2.5% of risk weighted assets,
depending on the extent of thebuild- up of system-wide risk. The credit to GDP gap of 5 points
shall be taken as cut off points of excess credit growth level. The increase by additional 1 point of
credit to GDP gap in excess of 5 point shall require buffer requirement of 0.5% i.e. each increase
in every one points in credit to GDP gap in excess of 5 points shall require to raise the buffer
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requirement by each 0.5%. For this purpose, trend is defined as average of credit to GDP ratio of
past 10 years. The following table shows the countercyclical buffer requirement in case of excess
credit growth:

Countercyclical Buffer Requirement

Credit to GDP Gap Buffer Requirement in Terms of CET 1
Up to 5 points 0%

5 to 6 points 0.5%

6 to 7 points 1.0%

7 to 8 points 1.5%

8 to 9 points 2.0%

above 9 points 2.5%

The banks are required to raise level of the buffer by up to 12 months, but shall be allowed to
decrease the level of the buffer with immediate effect. The bank, not being able to maintain the
countercyclical buffer requirement, shall not be allowed to distribute its earnings.

2.7 LEVERAGE RATIO
A. Rationale and Objective

One of the underlying features of the crisis was the build-up of excessive on-and off-balance
sheet leverage in the banking system. In many cases, banks built up excessive leverage while still
showing strong risk based capital ratios. During the most severe part of the crisis, the banking
sector was forced by the market to reduce its leverage in a manner that amplified downward
pressure on asset prices, further exacerbating the positive feedback loop between losses, declines
in bank capital, and contraction in credit availability. Therefore, under Basel Ill, a simple,
transparent, non-risk based leverage ratio has been introduced. The leverage ratio is calibrated to
act as a credible supplementary measure to the risk based capital requirements. The leverage ratio
is intended to achieve the following objectives:

a) Constrain the build-up of leverage in the banking sector, helping avoid destabilising
deleveraging processes which can damage the broader financial system and the economy; and

b) Reinforce the risk based requirements with a simple, non-risk based “backstop” measure.
B. Definition and Calculation of the Leverage Ratio

a) Banks are required to maintain minimum leverage ratio of 3 percent of their total assets.

b) The leverage ratio shall be maintained on a quarterly basis, which is calculated as:

Leverage Ratio = Capital Measure
EXxposure Measure

I. Capital Measure

a) The capital measure for the leverage ratio should be based on the definition of Tier 1
capital as set out in paragraph 2.1

b) Items that are deducted completely from capital do not contribute to leverage, and should
therefore also be deducted from the measure of exposure.
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Exposure Measure

The exposure measure for the leverage ratio should generally follow the accounting measure
of exposure. In order to measure the exposure consistently with financial accounts, the
following should be applied:

a) On-balance sheet, non-derivative exposures will be net of specific provisions and
valuation adjustments (e.g. prudent valuation adjustments for Available for Sale (AFS)
and Held For Trading (HFT) positions, credit valuation adjustments);

b) Physical or financial collateral, guarantees or credit risk mitigation purchased is not
allowed to reduce on-balance sheet exposures; and

¢) Netting of loans and deposits is not allowed.

Component of Exposure Measure

(i)

(i)

On-Balance Sheet Items

Banks should include all items of assets reported in their accounting balance sheet for the
purposes of calculation of the leverage ratio. In addition, the exposure measure should
include the following treatments for Securities Financing Transactions (e.g. repo and reverse
repo agreements, CBLO) and derivatives.

Repurchase agreements and securities finance

Securities Financing Transactions (SFTs) are a form of secured funding and therefore, an
important source of balance sheet leverage that should be included in the leverage ratio.
Therefore, banks should calculate SFT for the purposes of the leverage ratio by applying:

(a) the accounting measure of exposure; and

(b) without netting various long and short positions with the same counterparty.

(iii) Derivatives

Derivatives create two types of exposure: an “on-balance sheet” present value reflecting the
fair value of the contract (often zero at outset but subsequently positive or negative depending
on the performance of the contract), and a notional economic exposure representing the
underlying economic interest of the contract. Banks should calculate exposure in respect of
derivatives, including where a bank sells protection using a credit derivative, for the purposes
of the leverage ratio by applying:

(a) The accounting measure of exposure (positive Marked to Market (MTM) value) plus an
add-on for Potential Future Exposure (PFE) calculated according to the Current Exposure
Method; and

(b) Without netting the MTM values and PFEs in respect of various long and short positions
with the same counterparty.

(iv) Other Off-Balance Sheet Items

Banks should calculate the off balance sheet items. These includecommitments (including
liquidity facilities), unconditionally cancellable commitments, directcredit substitutes,
acceptances, standby letters of credit, trade letters of credit, failedtransactions and unsettled
securities. The off balance sheet items are source of the potentially significant leverage.
Therefore, bank should calculate the above off balance sheet items for the purposes of the
leverage ratio by applying a uniform 100% credit conversion factor (CCF).
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3. Credit Risk — The Standardized Approach

1. As per the standards developed by the BCBS Committee, NRB permits banks a choice between
two broad methodologies for calculating their capital requirements for credit risk. One
alternative, the Standardized Approach, will be to measure credit risk in a standardized manner,
supported by external credit assessments.®

2. The other alternative, the Internal Ratings-based Approach, which is subject to the explicit
approval of the bank’s supervisor, would allow banks to use their internal rating systems for
credit risk.

3. NRB prescribes the standardized approach for credit risk however, the banks could adopt the
advance approach, the Internal Rating-based Approach but they are not allowed to revert to a
simpler approach without approval of NRB.

4. The credit equivalent amount of Securities Financing Transactions (SFT)* and OTC derivatives
that expose a bank to counterparty credit risk®is not included in this section, which will be
updated in next revision. In determining the risk weights in the standardized approach, banks
may use assessments by external credit assessment institutions or external credit rating agencies
recognized as eligible for capital purposes by NRB in accordance with the criteria defined in
part B below. Exposures should be risk-weighted net of specific provisions.

In order to be consistent with the Basel framework, the credit risk for the regulatory capital purpose shall be
computed by segregating the exposure in the following 9 categories®

a) Claims on government & central bank
b) Claims on other official entities
c) Claims on banks
d) Claims on corporate & securities firms
e) Claims secured by commercial real state
f) Past due claims
g) Higher-risk categories
h) Other assets
i) Off balance sheet items

A. Individual claims

a. Claims on sovereigns

1. Claims on sovereigns and their central banks will be risk weighted as follows:

3The banks follow the methodology used by one institution, ICRA Nepal’s, the use of ICRA Nepal’s credit ratings is an example only; those of
some other external credit assessment institutions could equally well be used. The ratings used throughout this document, therefore, do not express
any preferences or determinations on external assessment institutions by the NRB.

4Securities Financing Transactions (SFT) are transactions such as repurchase agreements, reverse repurchase agreements, security
lending and borrowing, and margin lending transactions, where the value of the transactions depends on the market valuations and
the transactions are often subject to margin agreements.

5The counterparty credit risk is defined as the risk that the counterparty to a transaction could default before the final settlement of
the transaction’s cash flows. An economic loss would occur if the transactions or portfolio of transactions with the counterparty has
a positive economic value at the time of default. Unlike a firm’s exposure to credit risk through a loan, where the exposure to credit
risk is unilateral and only the lending bank faces the risk of loss, the counterparty credit risk creates a bilateral risk of loss: the
market value of the transaction can be positive or negative to either counterparty to the transaction. The market value is uncertain
and can vary over time with the movement of underlying market factors.

5Two more categories i.e. claims on regulatory retail portfolio and claims secured by residential properties have been withdrawn.
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Credit AAAto AA- | A+to A- | BBB+to BBB- | BB+ to B- Below B- Unrated
Assessment

Risk Weight | 0% 20% 50% 100% 150% 100%

2. All claims on Government of Nepal and Nepal Rastra Bank could be risk weighed at 0 %.
3. Claims on the Bank for International Settlements, the International Monetary Fund, the European

Central Bank, and European Community may receive a 0% risk weight.

al. Claims on government public sector entities (PSEs)
4. Claims on domestic and foreign public sector entities will be risk-weighted as follows:

Credit AAA to AA- A+to A- | BBB+to BBB- | BB+ to B- Below B- | Unrated
Assessment
Risk Weight 20% 50% 50% 100% 150% 100%

5. Furthermore, claims on domestic PSEs can be assigned risk weight of 0%, if strict lending rules apply to
these entities and a declaration of bankruptcy is not possible because of their special public status and
government or sovereign guarantee in case of default.

b. Claims on other official entities i.e. multilateral development banks (MDBSs)

6. Multilateral Development Banks (MDBs)will be eligible for a 0% risk weight.
7. The standard risk weight for claims on Multilateral Development Banks except above will be assigned
risk weights as per claims on foreign public sector entities.

c. Claims on banks

8. All claims, irrespective of currency and sovereign ownership, excluding investment in equity shares
and other instruments eligible for capital funds, on domestically incorporated banks and financial
institutions that have complied Capital Adequacy Requirements will be risk weighed at 20% while for
the rest, it will be 100%.Banks may use the publicly available information of the immediately
preceding quarter of the respective banks and financial institutions to acquire their status on capital
adequacy.

9. Claims on foreign banks shall be risk weighed as per credit assessment subject to the floor of 20%. The
primary basis for applying the credit assessment shall be the country of incorporation of the bank.

Credit AAA to AA- A+ to A- BBB+ to BBB- BB+ to B- Below B- Unrated
Assessment

Risk Weight 20% 50% 50% 100% 150% 100%
Risk  Weight | 20% 20% 20% 50% 150% 100%
for short- term

claims®

"World Bank Group comprised, of the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (IBRD) and the International
Finance Corporation (IFC), Asian Development Bank (ADB), Asian Infrastructure Investment Bank (AlIB), African Development
Bank (AfDB), European Bank for Reconstruction and Development (EBRD), Inter-American Development Bank (IADB),
European Investment Bank (EIB), European Investment Fund (EIF), Nordic Investment Bank (NIB), Caribbean Development Bank
(CDB), Islamic Development Bank (IDB), and Council of Europe Development Bank (CEDB).
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d. Claims on corporate and securities firms

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Claims on securities firms may be treated as claims on banks provided these firms are subject to
supervisory and regulatory arrangements comparable to those under this Framework (including, in
particular, risk-based capital requirements).® Otherwise such claims would follow the rules for claims
on corporate.

The table provided below illustrates the risk weighting of rated corporate claims, including claims in
insurance companies. The standard risk weight for unrated claims on corporate will be 100%. No claim
on an unrated corporate may be given a risk weight preferential to that assigned to its sovereign of
incorporation.

Credit Assessment | AAA toAA- | A+to A- BBB+ toBB- Below BB- | Unrated

Risk Weight 20% 50% 100% 150% 100%

As part of the supervisory review process, supervisor may also consider whether the credit quality of
corporate claims held by individual banks should warrant a standard risk weight higher than 150%.

Supervisor may increase the standard risk weight for unrated claims where they judge that a higher risk
weight is warranted by the overall default experience in banking system. As part of the supervisory
review process, supervisors may also consider whether the credit quality of corporate claims held by
individual banks should warrant a standard risk weight higher than 100%.

Banks are permitted to risk weight all corporate claims at 100% without regard to external ratings as
defined in paragraph 11. Supervisor should be ensured that banks apply a single consistent approach,
i.e. either to use ratings wherever available or not at all. To prevent “cherry-picking” of external
ratings, banks should obtain supervisory approval before utilising this option to risk weight all
corporate claims at 100%.

e. Claims secured by commercial real estate

15.

16.

In view of the experience in numerous countries that commercial property lending has been a recurring
cause of troubled assets in the banking industry. Over the past few decades, NRB hold to the view that
claims secured by mortgages on commercial real estate do not, in principle, justify other than a 100%
weighting of the loans secured.

Commercial real estate hereby refers to mortgage of office buildings, retail space, multi-purpose
commercial premises, multi-family residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises,
industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction etc.

f. Past due loans

17.

18.

The unsecured portion of any loan, which currently is or has been past due for more than 90 days at
any point of time during last two years, net of specific provisions, will be risk-weighted as follows:

e 150% risk weight when specific provisions are less than 50% of the outstanding amount of the loan;

e 100% risk weight when specific provisions are no less than 50% of the outstanding amount of the
loan;

For the purpose of defining the secured portion of the past due loan, eligible collateral and guarantees
will be the same as for credit risk mitigation purposes.

8Short-term claims are defined as having an original maturity of three months or less. But claims with (contractual) original
maturity under the 3 months which are expected to be or practiced of rolled over (i.e. where the effective maturity is longer than 3
months) do not qualify for this preferential treatment for capital adequacy purposes.

That is, capital requirements that are comparable to those applied to banks in this Framework. Implicit in the meaning of the word
“comparable” is that the securities firm (but not necessarily its parent) is subject to consolidated regulation and supervision with
respect to any downstream affiliates.
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g. Higher-risk categories

19.

The following claims will be risk weighted at 150% or higher:

Claims on sovereigns, PSEs, banks, and securities firms rated below B-.
Claims on corporates rated below BB-.

Past due loans except as set out in paragraph 17.

Investments in the equity and other capital instruments of institutions, which are not listed in the

stock exchange and have not been deducted from Tier 1 capital, shall be risk weighed at 150%

net of provisions.

¢ Investments in the equity and other capital instruments of institutions, which are listed in the
stock exchange and have not been deducted from Tier 1 capital, shall be risk weighed at 100%

net of provisions.
o Investments in mutual fund shall be risk weighted at 100%.

o Reflecting the higher risks associated with some other assets, such as venture capital and private

equity investments shall be applied 150% risk weight.

h. Other assets

20.

21.
22.

The standard risk weight for all other assets will be 100%. Investments in equity or regulatory capital
instruments issued by banks or securities firms will be risk weighted at 100%, unless deducted from

the capital base according to point 2 of this framework.
Interest receivable/claim on government securities will be risk-weighted at 0%.
Cash items in the process of collection can be risk-weighted at 20%.

i. Off-balance sheet items??

23.

Off-balance sheet items will be converted into equivalent risk weight as follows:

Off Balance Sheet Exposure Risk
Weight

Any commitments those are unconditionally cancelable at any time by the bank without 0%
prior notice, or that effectively provide for automatic cancellation due to deterioration in
a borrower’s creditworthiness (for example bills under collection)
Forward exchange contracts. 10%
Short Term Trade-related contingencies 20%
Contingent liabilities arising from trade-related obligations, which are secured against an
underlying shipment of goods for both issuing and confirming bank and are short term in
nature. This includes documentary letters of credit, shipping guarantees issued and any
other trade-related contingencies with an original maturity up to six months.
Undertaking to provide a commitment on an off-balance sheet items 20%
Unsettled!! securities and foreign exchange transactions between bank to bank and 20%
between bank and customer
Long Term Trade-related contingencies 50%

Contingent liabilities arising from trade-related obligations, which are secured against an
underlying shipment of goods for both issuing and confirming bank and are long term in
nature. This includes documentary letters of credit, shipping guarantees issued and any

10Banks can use credit conversion factor as per standardized approach for assigning risk weights. In this document,
uniform credit conversion factors (CCF) as 100% is recommended.
11 An unsettled transaction is one where delivery of the instrument is due to take place against receipt of cash, but
which remain unsettled five business days after the due settlement date.
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other trade-related contingencies with an original maturity of over six months. In case
the usance letter of credit is discounted, the risk weight shall be calculated on net basis.

Performance-related contingencies 50%

Contingent liabilities, which involve an irrevocable obligation to pay a third party in the
event that counterparty fails to fulfill or perform a contractual non-monetary obligation,
such as delivery of goods by a specified date etc. This includes issue of performance
bonds, bid bonds, warranties, indemnities, underwriting commitments and standby
letters of credit in relation to a non-monetary obligation of counterparty under a
particular transaction.

Long term irrevocable Credit Commitments 50%

Any un-drawn portion of committed credit lines sanctioned for a period of more than 1
year. This shall include all unutilized limits in respect of revolving working capital loans
e.g. overdraft, cash credit, working capital loan etc. except for trade finance exposures.

Short term irrevocable Credit Commitments 20%

Any un-drawn portion of committed credit lines sanctioned for a period of upto 1 year.
This shall include all unutilized limits in respect of revolving working capital loans e.g.
overdraft, cash credit, working capital loan etc. except for trade finance exposures.

Repurchase agreements, securities lending, securities borrowing, reverse repurchase 100%
agreements and equivalent transactions

This includes sale and repurchase agreements and asset sales with recourse, where the
credit risk remains with the purchasing bank.

Direct credit substitutes 100%

Any irrevocable off-balance sheet obligations which carry the same credit risk as a direct
extension of credit, such as an undertaking to make a payment to a third party in the
event that a counterparty fails to meet a financial obligation or an undertaking to a
counterparty to acquire a potential claim on another party in the event of default by that
party, constitutes a direct credit substitute. This includes potential credit exposures
arising from the issue of financial guarantees and credit derivatives, confirmation of
letters of credit(acceptances and endorsements), issue of standby letters of credit serving
as financial guarantees for loans, securities and any other financial liabilities, and bills
endorsed under bill endorsement lines (but which are not accepted by, or have the prior
endorsement of, another bank).

Unpaid portion of partly paid shares and securities 100%
Unpaid Guarantee Claim 200%
Other Contingent Liabilities 100%

B. External credit assessment
1. The recognition process

24. External credit assessment institution (ECAI) should meet the criteria listed in the paragraph below.
The assessments of ECAIls may be recognized on a limited basis, e.g. by type of claims or by
jurisdiction. The supervisory process for recognizing ECAIls should be made public to avoid
unnecessary barriers to entry.

2. Eligibility criteria

25. An ECAI must satisfy each of the following six criteria.
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Objectivity: The methodology for assigning credit assessments must be rigorous, systematic, and
subject to some form of validation based on historical experience. Moreover, assessments must be
subject to ongoing review and responsive to changes in financial condition. Before being recognized
by supervisors, an assessment methodology for each market segment, including rigorous back testing,
must have been established for at least one year and preferably three years.

Independence: An ECAI should be independent and should not be subject to political or economic
pressures that may influence the rating. The assessment will not be valid if there exist any kind of
conflict of interest in the assessment process.

International access/Transparency: The individual assessments should be available to both domestic
and foreign institutions with legitimate interests and at equivalent terms. In addition, the general
methodology used by the ECAI should be publicly available.

Disclosure: An ECAI should disclose the following information: its assessment methodologies,
including the definition of default, the time horizon, and the meaning of each rating; the actual default
rates experienced in each assessment category; and the transitions of the assessments, e.g. the
likelihood of AA ratings becoming A over time.

Resources: An ECAI should have sufficient resources to carry out high quality credit assessments.
These resources should allow for substantial ongoing contact with senior and operational levels within
the entities assessed in order to add value to the credit assessments. Such assessments should be based
on methodologies combining qualitative and quantitative approaches.

Credibility: To some extent, credibility is derived from the criteria above. In addition, the reliance on
an ECAI’s external credit assessments by independent parties (investors, insurers, trading partners) is
evidence of the credibility of the assessments of an ECAI. The credibility of an ECAI is also
underpinned by the existence of internal procedures to prevent the misuse of confidential information.

C. Implementation considerations

1. The mapping process

26.

27.

28.

29.

Supervisors will be responsible for assigning eligible ECAIs’ assessments to the risk weights available
under the standardized risk weighting framework, i.e. deciding which assessment categories
correspond to which risk weights. The mapping process should be objective and should result in a risk
weight assignment consistent with that of the level of credit risk reflected in the tables above. It should
cover the full spectrum of risk weights.

When conducting such a mapping process, factors that supervisors should assess include, among
others, the size and scope of the pool of issuers that each ECAI covers, the range and meaning of the
assessments that it assigns, and the definition of default used by the ECALI. In order to promote a more
consistent mapping of assessments into the available risk weights and help supervisors in conducting
such a process, Annex 2 provides guidance as to how such a mapping process may be conducted.
Banks must use the chosen ECAIs and their ratings consistently for each type of claim, for both risk
weighting and risk management purposes. Banks will not be allowed to “cherry-pick” the assessments
provided by different ECAISs.

Banks must disclose ECAIs that they use for the risk weighting of their assets by type of claims, the
risk weights associated with the particular rating grades as determined by supervisors through the
mapping process as well as the aggregated risk-weighted assets for each risk weight based on the
assessments of each eligible ECAL.

2. Multiple assessments

30.

31.

32.

If there is only one assessment by an ECAI chosen by a bank for a particular claim, that assessment
should be used to determine the risk weight of the claim.

If there are two assessments by ECAIs chosen by a bank which map into different risk weights, the
higher risk weight will be applied.

If there are three or more assessments with different risk weights, the assessments corresponding to the
two lowest risk weights should be referred to and the higher of those two risk weights will be applied.
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3. Issuer versus issues assessment

33. Where a bank invests in a particular issue that has an issue-specific assessment, the risk weight of the
claim will be based on this assessment. Where the bank’s claim is not an investment in a specific
assessed issue, the following general principles apply.

e In circumstances where the borrower has a specific assessment for an issued debt — but the bank’s
claim is not an investment in this particular debt — a high quality credit assessment (one which
maps into a risk weight lower than that which applies to an unrated claim) on that specific debt may
only be applied to the bank’s unassessed claim if this claim ranks pari passu or senior to the claim
with an assessment in all respects. If not, the credit assessment cannot be used and the unassessed
claim will receive the risk weight for unrated claims.

e In circumstances where the borrower has an issuer assessment, this assessment typically applies to
senior unsecured claims on that issuer. Consequently, only senior claims on that issuer will benefit
from a high quality issuer assessment. Other unassessed claims of a highly assessed issuer will be
treated as unrated. If either the issuer or a single issue has a low quality assessment (mapping into a
risk weight equal to or higher than that which applies to unrated claims), an unassessed claim on the
same counterparty will be assigned the same risk weight as is applicable to the low quality
assessment.

34. Whether the bank intends to rely on an issuer- or an issue-specific assessment, the assessment must
take into account and reflect the entire amount of credit risk exposure the bank has with regard to all
payments owed to it.*2

35. In order to avoid any double counting of credit enhancement factors, no supervisory recognition of
credit risk mitigation techniques will be taken into account if the credit enhancement is already
reflected in the issue specific rating (see paragraph 49).

4. Domestic currency and foreign currency assessments

36. Where unrated exposures are risk weighted based on the rating of an equivalent exposure to that
borrower, the general rule is that foreign currency ratings would be used for exposures in foreign
currency. Domestic currency ratings, if separate, would only be used to risk weight claims
denominated in the domestic currency.

5. Level of application of the assessment

37. External assessments for one entity within a corporate group cannot be used to risk weight other
entities within the same group.

6. Unsolicited ratings®®

38. As a general rule, banks should use solicited ratings from eligible ECAIs. It is allowed banks to use
unsolicited ratings in the same way as solicited ratings. However, there may be the potential for ECAls
to use unsolicited ratings to put pressure on entities to obtain solicited ratings. Such behaviour, when
identified, should cause supervisors to consider whether to continue recognising such ECAIls as
eligible for capital adequacy purposes.

D. The standardised approach — credit risk mitigation
1. Overarching issues
(i) Introduction

39. Banks use a number of techniques to mitigate the credit risks to which they are exposed. For example,
exposures may be collateralised by first priority claims, in whole or in part with cash, cash items or

L2For example, if a bank is owed both principal and interest, the assessment must fully take into account and reflect the credit risk
associated with repayment of both principal and interest.

13Rating agency's assessment of a borrower's usually based only on publicly available information. The borrower neither involves
nor pays for assessment.
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40.

securities, a loan exposure may be guaranteed by a third party, or a bank may buy a credit derivative to
offset various forms of credit risk. Additionally, banks may agree to net loans owed to them against
deposits from the same counterparty.

Where these techniques meet the requirements for legal certainty as described in paragraph 46 and 47
below, the revised approach to CRM allows a wider range of credit risk mitigants to be recognised for
regulatory capital purposes.

(ii) General remarks

41.

42.

43.

44,

45.

The framework set out in this Section is applicable to the banking book exposures in the standardised
approach.

No transaction in which CRM techniques are used should receive a higher capital requirement than an
otherwise identical transaction where such techniques are not used.

The effects of CRM will not be double counted. Therefore, no additional supervisory recognition of
CRM for regulatory capital purposes will be granted on claims for which an issue-specific rating is
used that already reflects that CRM. As stated in paragraph 34 of the section on the standardised
approach, principal-only ratings will also not be allowed within the framework of CRM.

While the use of CRM techniques reduces or transfers credit risk, it simultaneously may increase other
risks (residual risks). Residual risks include legal, operational, liquidity and market risks. Therefore, it
is imperative that banks employ robust procedures and processes to control these risks, including
strategy; consideration of the underlying credit; valuation; policies and procedures; systems; control of
roll-off risks; and management of concentration risk arising from the bank’s use of CRM techniques
and its interaction with the bank’s overall credit risk profile. Where these risks are not adequately
controlled, supervisors may impose additional capital charges or take other supervisory actions as
outlined in Pillar 2 i.e. supervisory review process.

The Pillar 3 i.e. disclosure requirements must also be observed for banks to obtain capital relief in
respect of any CRM techniques.

(iii) Legal certainty

46.

47.

In order for banks to obtain capital relief for any use of CRM techniques, the following minimum
standards for legal documentation must be met.

All documentation used in collateralised transactions and for documenting on-balance sheet netting,
guarantees and credit derivatives must be binding on all parties and legally enforceable in all relevant
jurisdictions. Banks must have conducted sufficient legal review to verify this and have a well founded
legal basis to reach this conclusion, and undertake such further review as necessary to ensure
continuing enforceability.

2. Overview of Credit Risk Mitigation Techniques

(i) Collateralised transactions

48.

49.

A collateralised transaction is one in which:

o Dbanks have a credit exposure or potential credit exposure; and

o that credit exposure or potential credit exposure is hedged in whole or in part by collateral posted
by a counterparty14 or by a third party on behalf of the counterparty.

Where banks take eligible financial collateral (e.g. cash or securities, more specifically defined in

paragraph 61), they are allowed to reduce their credit exposure to a counterparty when calculating their

capital requirements to take account of the risk mitigating effect of the collateral.

Overall framework and minimum conditions

50.

Banks may opt for either the simple approach, which, similar to the 1988 Accord, substitutes the risk
weighting of the collateral for the risk weighting of the counterparty for the collateralized portion of
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51.

52.

53.

54.

55.

the exposure (generally subject to a 20% floor), or for the comprehensive approach, which allows
fuller offset of collateral against exposures, by effectively reducing the exposure amount by the value
ascribed to the collateral. Banks may operate under either, but not both, approaches in the banking
book, but only under the comprehensive approach in the trading book. Partial collateralization is
recognized in both approaches. Mismatches in the maturity of the underlying exposure and the
collateral will only be allowed under the comprehensive approach.

However, before capital relief will be granted in respect of any form of collateral, the standards set out
below in paragraphs 52 to 55 must be met.

In addition to the general requirements for legal certainty set out in paragraphs 46 and 47, the legal
mechanism by which collateral is pledged or transferred must ensure that the bank has the right to
liquidate or take legal possession of it, in a timely manner, in the event of the default, insolvency or
bankruptcy (or one or more otherwise-defined credit events set out in the transaction documentation)
of the counterparty (and, where applicable, of the custodian holding the collateral). Furthermore, banks
must take all steps necessary to fulfill those requirements under the law applicable to the bank’s
interest in the collateral for obtaining andmaintaining an enforceable security interest, e.g. by
registering it with a registrar, or for exercising a right to net or set off in relation to title transfer
collateral.

In order for collateral to provide protection, the credit quality of the counterparty and the value of the
collateral must not have a material positive correlation. For example, securities issued by the
counterparty — or by any related group entity — would provide little protection and so would be
ineligible.

Banks must have clear and robust procedures for the timely liquidation of collateral to ensure that any
legal conditions required for declaring the default of the counterparty and liquidating the collateral are
observed, and that collateral can be liquidated promptly.

Where the collateral is held by a custodian, banks must take reasonable steps to ensure that the
custodian segregates the collateral from its own assets.

(ii) On-balance sheet netting

56.

Banks are not allowed netting arrangements for loans and deposits from on-balance sheet.

(iii) Guarantees and credit derivatives

o7.

58.

Where guarantees or credit derivatives are direct, explicit, irrevocable and unconditional, and
supervisors are satisfied that banks fulfill certain minimum operational conditions relating to risk
management processes they may allow banks to take account of such credit protection in calculating
capital requirements.

Detailed operational requirements are given below in paragraphs 62 to 63.

(iv) Maturity mismatch

59.

Where the residual maturity of the CRM is less than that of the underlying credit exposure a maturity
mismatch occurs. Where there is a maturity mismatch and the CRM has an original maturity of less
than one year, the CRM is not recognized for capital purposes.

(v) Currency mismatch

60.

Where the credit protection is denominated in a currency different from that in which the exposure is
denominated — i.e. there is a currency mismatch — the amount of the exposure deemed to be
protected will be reduced by the application of a haircut. It shall be subject to supervisory haircut of
10%.

3. Collateral

61.

The following collateral instruments are eligible for recognition in the simple approach:
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(a) Cash (as well as certificates of deposit or comparable instruments issued by the lending bank) on deposit
with the bank which is incurring the counterparty exposure. !>

(b) Gold.
(c) Debt securities rated by a recognized external credit assessment institution where these are either:

o at least BB- when issued by sovereigns or PSEs that are treated as sovereigns by the Nepal rastra
bank; or

o at least BBB- when issued by other entities (including banks and securities firms).
(d) Debt securities not rated by a recognized external credit assessment institution where these are:
e issued by a bank; and
e listed on a recognized exchange; and
e classified as senior debt; and

o all rated issues of the same seniority by the issuing bank must be rated at least BBB- by a
recognised external credit assessment institution; and

e the bank holding the securities as collateral has no information to suggest that the issue justifies a
rating below BBB-; and

o the supervisor is sufficiently confident about the market liquidity of the security.

(e) Equities (including convertible bonds) that are included in a main index.

(f) Undertakings for Collective Investments in Transferable Securities (UCITS) and mutual funds where:
e a price for the units is publicly quoted daily; and
e the UCITS/mutual fund is limited to investing in the instruments listed in this paragraph.’

4. Guarantees and credit derivatives

(i) Operational requirements

Operational requirements common to guarantees and credit derivatives

62. A guarantee (counter-guarantee) or credit derivative must represent a direct claim on the protection provider and
must be explicitly referenced to specific exposures or a pool of exposures, so that the extent of the cover is
clearly defined and incontrovertible. Other than non-payment by a protection purchaser of money due in respect
of the credit protection contract it must be irrevocable; there must be no clause in the contract that would allow
the protection provider unilaterally to cancel the credit cover or that would increase the effective cost of cover as
a result of deteriorating credit quality in the hedged exposure.18 It must also be unconditional; there should be no
clause in the protection contract outside the direct control of the bank that could prevent the protection provider
from being obliged to pay out in a timely manner in the event that the original counterparty fails to make the
payment(s) due.

15 Cash funded credit linked notes issued by the bank against exposures in the banking book which fulfill the criteria for credit
derivatives will be treated as cash collateralized transactions.

16\When cash on deposit, certificates of deposit or comparable instruments issued by the lending bank are held as collateral at a
third-party bank in a non-custodial arrangement, if they are openly pledged/assigned to the lending bank and if the
pledge/assignment is unconditional and irrevocable, the exposure amount covered by the collateral (after any necessary haircuts for
currency risk) will receive the risk weight of the third-party bank.

17 However, the use or potential use by a UCITS/mutual fund of derivative instruments solely to hedge investments
listed in this paragraph and paragraph 76 shall not prevent units in that UCITS/mutual fund from being eligible
financial collateral.

Note that the irrevocability condition does not require that the credit protection and the exposure be maturity
matched; rather that the maturity agreed ex ante may not be reduced ex post by the protection provider.
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Additional operational requirements for guarantees

63.

In addition to the legal certainty requirements in paragraphs 46 and 47 above, in order for a guarantee
to be recognized, the following conditions must be satisfied:

() On the qualifying default/non-payment of the counterparty, the bank may in a timely manner
pursue the guarantor for any monies outstanding under the documentation governing the
transaction. The guarantor may make one lump sum payment of all monies under such
documentation to the bank, or the guarantor may assume the future payment obligations of the
counterparty covered by the guarantee. The bank must have the right to receive any such payments
from the guarantor without first having to take legal actions in order to pursue the counterparty for
payment.

(b) The guarantee is an explicitly documented obligation assumed by the guarantor.

(c) Except as noted in the following sentence, the guarantee covers all types of payments the
underlying obligor is expected to make under the documentation governing the transaction, for
example notional amount, margin payments etc. Where a guarantee covers payment of principal
only, interests and other uncovered payments should be treated as an unsecured amount in
accordance with paragraph 68.

(if) Range of eligible guarantors (counter-guarantors)/protection providers

64.

Credit protection given by the following entities will be recognized:

e sovereign entities, 19 PSEs, banks20 and securities firms with a lower risk weight than the

counterparty;

e other entities rated A- or better. This would include credit protection provided by parent, subsidiary

and affiliate companies when they have a lower risk weight than the obligor.

(iii) Risk weights

65.

66.

The protected portion is assigned the risk weight of the protection provider. The uncovered portion of
the exposure is assigned the risk weight of the underlying counterparty.

Materiality thresholds on payments below which no payment is made in the event of loss are
equivalent to retained first loss positions and must be deducted in full from the capital of the bank
purchasing the credit protection.

Proportional cover

67.

Where the amount guaranteed, or against which credit protection is held, is less than the amount of the
exposure, and the secured and unsecured portions are of equal seniority, i.e. the bank and the guarantor
share losses on a pro-rata basis capital relief will be afforded on a proportional basis: i.e. the protected
portion of the exposure will receive the treatment applicable to eligible guarantees/credit derivatives,
with the remainder treated as unsecured.

(iv) Sovereign guarantees and counter-guarantees

68.

Supervisor may extend this treatment to portions of claims guaranteed by the sovereign (or central
bank), where the guarantee is denominated in the domestic currency and the exposure is funded in that
currency. A claim may be covered by a guarantee that is indirectly counter-guaranteed by a sovereign.
Such a claim may be treated as covered by a sovereign guarantee provided that:

19 This includes the Bank for International Settlements, the International Monetary Fund, the European Central Bank and the

European Community, as well as those MDBs referred to in footnote 6.

20 This includes other MDBs.
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(a) the sovereign counter-guarantee covers all credit risk elements of the claim;

(b) both the original guarantee and the counter-guarantee meet all operational requirements for
guarantees, except that the counter-guarantee need not be direct and explicit to the original claim; and

(c) the supervisor is satisfied that the cover is robust and that no historical evidence suggests that the
coverage of the counter-guarantee is less than effectively equivalent to that of a direct sovereign

guarantee.

5. Other items related to the treatment of CRM techniques

(i) Treatment of pools of CRM techniques

69.

In the case where a bank has multiple CRM techniques covering a single exposure (e.g. a bank has
both collateral and guarantee partially covering an exposure), the bank will be required to subdivide
the exposure into portions covered by each type of CRM technique (e.g. portion covered by collateral,
portion covered by guarantee) and the risk-weighted assets of each portion must be calculated
separately. When credit protection provided by a single protection provider has differing maturities,
they must be subdivided into separate protection as well.

6. Methodology for using CRM
Step 1: Identify the accounts eligible for capital relief under credit risk mitigation.

Step 2: Assess the value of the exposure and the eligible collateral.

Step 3: Adjust the value of the eligible collateral in respect of the supervisory haircut in terms of currency

mismatch and other eligibility requirements.

Step 4: Compare the adjusted value of the collateral with the outstanding exposure.

Step 5: The value of the eligible CRM is the lower of the adjusted value of the collateral and the

outstanding exposure.

Step 6: Plot the eligible CRM in the appropriate category of credit risk.

The sum total of net amount of eligible CRM as per “Form No.4 Exhibit of claims with eligible credit risk
mitigants” shall be consistent with the “Form No.3 Eligible Credit Risk Mitigants” prescribed in this
framework.

4.
41

4.2

OPERATIONAL RISK
GENERAL:

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate internal processes, people, and systems,
or from external events. Operational risk itself is not a new concept, and well run banks have been
addressing it in their internal controls and corporate governance structures. Basel 1l requires banks to
hold capital against the risk of unexpected loss that could arise from the failure of operational
systems.

The most important types of operational risk involve breakdowns in internal controls and corporate
governance. Such breakdowns can lead to financial losses through error, fraud, or failure to perform
in a timely manner or cause the interests of the bank to be compromised in some other way, for
example, by its dealers, lending officers or other staff exceeding their authority or conducting
business in an unethical or risky manner. Other aspects of operational risk include major failure of
information technology systems or events such as major fires or other disasters.

BASIC INDICATOR APPROACH:

Under the basic indicator approach, banks must hold capital for operational risk equal to the average
over the previous three years of a fixed percentage (denoted alpha) of positive annual gross income.
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4.3

The capital charge for operational risk may be expressed as follows:

Keia = [Y.(Glinxa)]/N

where:
Kgia = capital charge under the Basic Indicator Approach
GI = annual gross income, where positive, over the previous three years
N = number of the previous three years for which gross income is positive
o = 15 percent.

NRB shall review the capital requirement produced by this approach for general credibility,
especially in relation to a bank's peers and in the event that credibility is lacking, appropriate
supervisory action under Review Process shall be considered.

Figures for the year, in which annual gross income is negative or zero, should be excluded from both
the numerator and denominator while calculating the average. In case where the gross income for all
of the last three years is negative, 5% of total credit and investments net of specific provisions shall
be considered as the capital charge for operational risk. For this purpose, investments shall comprise
of money at call, placements, investment in government securities and other investments irrespective
of currency.

Similarly, in case of new banks which have not completed a year of operation and whose average
gross income cannot be measured reliably, they shall also be required to compute their capital charge
for operational risk vide the same approach as prescribed for banks with negative gross income.
These banks may use the gross income approach from the second year onwards. But, based on the
reasonableness of the so computed capital charge for Operation Risk, during the first three years of
operation, review process may require additional proportion of capital charge if deemed necessary.

GROSS INCOME:

Gross income is defined as "net Interest Income™ plus "non interest income". It is intended that this
measure should:

a. be gross of any provisions (e.g. for unpaid interest) and write-offs made during the year;

b. be gross of operating expenses, exclude reversal during the year in respect of provisions and
write-offs made during the previous year(s);

c. exclude income/gain recognized from the disposal of items of movable and immovable
property;
d. exclude realized profits/losses from the sale of securities in the “held to maturity” category;
e. exclude other extraordinary or irregular items of income and expenditure
Thus, for the purpose of capital adequacy requirements, gross income shall be summation of:

a. Total operating income as disclosed in Profit and Loss account prepared as per NRB directive
no.4. The total operating income comprises of:

1. Net Interest Income

2. Commission and Discount Income
3. Other Operating Income

4. Exchange Fluctuation Income

b. Addition/deduction in the Interest Suspense during the period.
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Banks shall use the annual audited financials of the last three years for the computation of gross
income under this approach. Hence, the capital requirement for operational risk for a whole financial
year shall remain constant. Until the accounts are finalized for the financial year, banks shall use the
provisional figures for the period, which should be validated by the internal auditor of the bank.

COMPUTATION OF RISK WEIGHT:

Operational risk-weighted assets are determined by multiplying the operational risk capital charge by
9.09 and adding together with the risk weighted exposures for credit risk.

MARKET RISK
DEFINITION OF MARKET RISK:

Market risk is defined as the risk of losses in on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet positions arising
from adverse movements in market prices. The major constituents of market risks are:

a. The risks pertaining to interest rate related instruments;
b. Foreign exchange risk (including gold positions) throughout the bank; and
c. The risks pertaining to investment in equities and commodities.

Banks shall recognize measure, present and disclose the investment instruments as per
the requirement of NFRSs.

NET OPEN POSITION APPROACH:

Out of the various components of market risk, foreign exchange risk is predominating at this time.
The effects of other forms of market risk are minimal. Thus, a net open position approach has been
devised to measure the capital requirement for market risk. As evidenced by its hame, this approach
only addresses the risk of loss arising out of adverse movements in exchange rates. This approach
will be consolidated over time to incorporate other forms of market risks as they start to gain
prominence.

The designated Net Open Position approach requires banks to allocate a fixed proportion of capital in
terms of its net open position. The banks should allocate 5 percentages of their net open positions as
capital charge for market risk.

NET OPEN POSITION:

Net open position is the difference between financial assets and financialliability in a currency. In
other words, it is the uncovered volume of asset or liability which is exposed to changes in the
exchange rates of currencies. For capital adequacy requirements the net open position includes both
net spot positions as well as net forward positions.

For capital adequacy purposes, banks should calculate their net open position in the following
manner:

a. Calculate the net open position in each of the foreign currencies.
b. Convert the net open positions in each currency to NPR as per prevalent exchange rates.

c. Aggregate the converted net open positions of all currencies, without paying attention to long
or short positions.

d. This aggregate shall be the net open position of the bank.
COMPUTATION OF RISK WEIGHT:

Risk-weighted assets in respect of market risk are determined by multiplying the capital charges by
9.09 and adding together with the risk weighted exposures for credit risk.
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6.2

REVIEW PROCESS
GENERAL:

The supervisory review process of the framework is intended not only to ensure that banks have
adequate capital to support all the risks in their business, but also to encourage banks to develop and
use better risk management technigues in monitoring and managing their risks. It is the responsibility
of the bank management in developing an internal capital assessment process and setting capital
targets that are commensurate with the bank’s risk profile and control environment beyond the core
minimum requirements.

Nepal Rastra Bank recognizes the significance of the relationship between the amount of capital held
by the bank against its risks and the strength and effectiveness of the bank’s risk management and
internal control processes. However, increased capital should not be viewed as the only option for
addressing increased risks confronting the bank. Other means for addressing risk, such as
strengthening risk management, applying internal limits, strengthening the level of provisions and
reserves, and improving internal controls, must also be considered. Furthermore, capital should not be
regarded as a substitute for addressing fundamentally inadequate control or risk management
processes.

There are three main areas that is particularly suited to treatment under this process: risks considered
under minimum capital requirements which are not fully captured it (e.g. credit concentration risk);
those factors not taken into account by the minimum capital requirements (e.g. business and strategic
risk); and factors external to the bank (e.g. business cycle effects).

In order to achieve the objectives of the supervisory review process, this process has been broadly
divided into three parts:

a. Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP)
b. Supervisory Review
c. Supervisory Response
INTERNAL CAPITAL ADEQUACY ASSESSMENT PROCESS:

The internal capital adequacy assessment process (ICAAP) is a comprehensive process which
requires board and senior management oversight, monitoring, reporting and internal control reviews
at regular intervals to ensure the alignment of regulatory capital requirement with the true risk profile
of the bank and thus ensure long-term safety and soundness of the bank. The key components of an
effective ICAAP are discussed below.

a. Board and senior management oversight

Bank management is responsible for understanding the nature and level of risk being taken by
the bank and how this risk relates to adequate capital levels. It is also responsible for ensuring
that the formality and sophistication of the risk management processes is commensurate with
the complexity of its operations. A sound risk management process, thus, is the foundation for
an effective assessment of the adequacy of a bank’s capital position.

The board of directors of the bank are responsible for setting the bank’s tolerance for risks. The
board should also ensure that management establishes a mechanism for assessing various risks;
develops a system to relate these risks to the bank’s capital level and sets up a method for
monitoring compliance with internal policies. It is equally important that the board instills
strong internal controls and thereby an effective control environment through adoption of
written policies and procedures and ensures that the policies and procedures are effectively
communicated throughout the bank.

The analysis of a bank’s current and future capital requirements in relation to its strategic
objectives is a vital element of the strategic planning process. The strategic plan should clearly
outline the bank’s capital needs, anticipated capital expenditures, desirable capital level, and
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external capital sources. Senior management and the board should view capital planning as a
crucial element in being able to achieve its desired strategic objectives.

Sound capital assessment

Another crucial component of an effective ICAAP is the assessment of capital. In order to be
able to make a sound capital assessment the bank should, at minimum, have the following:

o Policies and procedures designed to ensure that the bank identifies, measures, and reports
all material risks;

e A process that relates capital to the level of risk;

e A process that states capital adequacy goals with respect to risk, taking account of the
bank’s strategic focus and business plan; and

e A process of internal control, reviews and audit to ensure the integrity of the overall
management process.

Comprehensive assessment of risks

All material risks faced by the bank should be addressed in the capital assessment process.
Nepal Rastra Bank recognizes that not all risks can be measured precisely. However, bank
should develop a process to estimate risks with reasonable certainties. In order to make a
comprehensive assessment of risks, the process should, at minimum, address the following
forms of risk.

1. Credit risk: Banks should have methodologies that enable them to assess the credit risk
involved in exposures to individual borrowers or counterparties as well as at the portfolio
level. The credit review assessment of capital adequacy, at a minimum, should cover risk
rating systems, portfolio analysis/aggregation, large exposures and risk concentrations.

Internal risk ratings are an important tool in monitoring credit risk. Internal risk ratings
should be adequate to support the identification and measurement of risk from all credit
exposures, and should be integrated into an institution’s overall analysis of credit risk and
capital adequacy. The ratings system should provide detailed ratings for all assets, not
only for problem assets.

2. Credit concentration risk: Risk concentrations are arguably the single most important
cause of major problems in banks. A risk concentration is any single exposure or group of
exposures with the potential to produce losses large enough (relative to a bank’s capital,
total assets, or overall risk level) to threaten a bank’s health or ability to maintain its core
operations.

Lending being the primary activity of most banks, credit risk concentrations are often the
most material risk concentrations within a bank. However, risk concentrations can arise in
a bank’s assets, liabilities, or off-balance sheet items, through the execution or processing
of transactions (either product or service), or through a combination of exposures across
these broad categories. Credit risk concentrations are based on common or correlated risk
factors, which, in times of stress, have an adverse effect on the creditworthiness of each of
the individual counterparties making up the concentration.

Such credit concentrations are not addressed in the minimum capital requirements for
credit risk. Thus, banks should have in place effective internal policies, systems and
controls to identify, measure, monitor, and control their credit risk concentrations. Banks
should explicitly consider the extent of their credit risk concentrations in their assessment
of capital adequacy under review processes. These policies should cover the different
forms of credit risk concentrations to which a bank may be exposed to. Such
concentrations include but are not limited to:
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¢ Significant exposures to an individual counterparty or group of related counterparty.
Banks might also establish an aggregate limit for the management and control of all
of its large exposures as a group;

o Credit exposures to counterparties in the same economic sector or geographic region;

o Credit exposures to counterparties whose financial performance is dependent on the
same activity or commodity; and

e Indirect credit exposures arising from a bank’s CRM activities (e.g. exposure to a
similar type of collateral or credit protection provided by a single counterparty or
same collateral in cases of multiple banking).

A bank’s framework for managing credit risk concentrations should be clearly
documented and should include a definition of the credit risk concentrations relevant to
the bank and how these concentrations and their corresponding limits are calculated.
Limits should be defined in relation to a bank’s capital, total assets or, where adequate
measures exist, its overall risk level. A bank’s management should conduct periodic stress
tests of its major credit risk concentrations and review the results of those tests to identify
and respond to potential changes in market conditions that could adversely impact the
bank’s performance.

Operational risk: The failure to properly manage operational risk can result in a
misstatement of an institution’s risk/return profile and expose the institution to significant
losses. Gross income, used in the Basic Indicator Approach is only a proxy for the scale of
operational risk exposure of a bank and can in some cases underestimate the need for
capital. Thus, banks should develop a framework for managing operational risk and
evaluate the adequacy of capital as prescribed by this framework. The framework should
cover the bank’s appetite and tolerance for operational risk, as specified through the
policies for managing this risk, including the extent and manner in which operational risk
is transferred outside the bank. It should also include policies outlining the bank’s
approach to identifying, assessing, monitoring and controlling/mitigating the risk.

Market risk: The prescribed approach for the computation of capital charge for market
risk is very simple and thus may not be directly aligned with the magnitude of risk.
Likewise, the approach only incorporates risks arising out of adverse movements in
exchange rates while ignoring other forms of risks like interest rate risk and equity risks.
Thus, banks should develop a framework that addresses these various forms of risk and at
the same time perform stress tests to evaluate the adequacy of capital.

The use of internal models by the bank for the measurement of market risk is highly
encouraged. Wherever banks make use of internal models for computation of capital
charge for market risks, the bank management should ensure the adequacy and
completeness of the system regardless of the type and level of complexity of the
measurement system as the quality and reliability of the measurement system is largely
dependent on the quality of the data and various assumptions used in the model.

Liquidity risk: Liquidity is crucial to the ongoing viability of any financial institution.
Capital positions can have a telling effect on institution’s ability to obtain liquidity,
especially in a crisis. Each bank must have adequate systems for measuring, monitoring
and controlling liquidity risk. Banks should evaluate the adequacy of capital given their
own liquidity profile and the liquidity of the markets in which they operate. Banks are also
encouraged to make use of stress testing to determine their liquidity needs and the
adequacy of capital.

Other risks: Although the 'other risks', such as reputational and strategic risk, are not
easily measurable, banks are expected to take these into consideration as well while
deciding on the level of capital.
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Monitoring and reporting

The bank should establish an adequate system for monitoring and reporting risk exposures and
assessing how the bank’s changing risk profile affects the need for capital. The bank’s senior
management or board of directors should, on a regular basis, receive reports on the bank’s risk
profile and capital needs. These reports should allow senior management to:

o Evaluate the level and trend of material risks and their effect on capital levels;

o Evaluate the sensitivity and reasonableness of key assumptions used in the capital
assessment measurement system,;

o Determine that the bank holds sufficient capital against the various risks and is in
compliance with established capital adequacy goals; and

e Assess its future capital requirements based on the bank’s reported risk profile and make
necessary adjustments to the bank’s strategic plan accordingly.

Internal control review

The bank’s internal control structure is essential to a sound capital assessment process.
Effective control of the capital assessment process includes an independent review and, where
appropriate, the involvement of internal or external audits. The bank’s board of directors has a
responsibility to ensure that management establishes a system for assessing the various risks,
develops a system to relate risk to the bank’s capital level, and establishes a method for
monitoring compliance with internal policies. The board should regularly verify whether its
system of internal controls is adequate to ensure well-ordered and prudent conduct of business.

The bank should conduct periodic reviews of its risk management process to ensure its
integrity, accuracy, and reasonableness. Key areas that should be reviewed include:

e Appropriateness of the bank’s capital assessment process given the nature, scope and
complexity of its activities;

o Identification of large exposures and risk concentrations;

e Accuracy and completeness of data inputs into the bank’s assessment process;
o Reasonableness and validity of scenarios used in the assessment process; and
e Stress testing and analysis of assumptions and inputs.

RVISORY REVIEW:

Rastra Bankshall regularly review the process by which a bank assesses its capital adequacy,

risk positions, resulting capital levels, and quality of capital held by a bank. Supervisors shall also
evaluate the degree to which a bank has in place a sound internal process to assess capital adequacy.
The emphasis of the review should be on the quality of the bank’s risk management and controls and
should not result in supervisors functioning as bank management. The periodic review can involve
any or a combination of:

Some

On-site examinations or inspections;
Off-site review;
Discussions with bank management;

Review of work done by external auditors (provided it is adequately focused on the
necessary capital issues); and

Periodic reporting.

of the key areas which will be reviewed during the supervisory review process are discussed

hereunder
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Review of adequacy of risk assessment

NRB shall assess the degree to which internal targets and processes incorporate the full range
of material risks faced by the bank. Supervisors shall also review the adequacy of risk measures
used in assessing internal capital adequacy and the extent to which these risk measures are used
operationally in setting limits, evaluating business line performance, and evaluating and
controlling risks more generally. Supervisors shall consider the results of sensitivity analyses
and stress tests conducted by the institution and how these results relate to capital plans.

Assessment of capital adequacy

NRB shall review the bank’s processes to determine that:

e Target levels of capital chosen are comprehensive and relevant to the current operating
environment;

e These levels are properly monitored and reviewed by senior management; and

e The composition of capital is appropriate for the nature and scale of the bank’s
business.

NRB shall also consider the extent to which the bank has provided for unexpected events in
setting its capital levels. This analysis should cover a wide range of external conditions and
scenarios, and the sophistication of techniques and stress tests used should be commensurate
with the bank’s activities.

Assessment of the control environment

NRB shallconsider the quality of the bank’s management information reporting and systems,
the manner in which business risks and activities are aggregated, and management’s record in
responding to emerging or changing risks. In all instances, the capital level at an individual
bank should be determined according to the bank’s risk profile and adequacy of its risk
management process and internal controls. External factors such as business cycle effects and
the macroeconomic environment should also be considered.

Supervisory review of compliance with minimum standards

In order to obtain relief as per this framework banks are required to observe a number of
requirements, including risk management standards and disclosures. In particular, banks will be
required to disclose features of their internal methodologies used in calculating minimum
capital requirements. As part of the supervisory review process, supervisors must ensure that
these conditions are being met on an ongoing basis. Likewise, the supervisors must ensure that
qualifying criteria as specified in the framework are continuously being met as these criteria are
developed as benchmarks aligned with bank management expectations for effective risk
management's and capital allocation.

Significance of risk transfer

Securitization or credit sale agreements with recourse may be carried out for purposes other
than credit risk transfer (e.g. funding). Where this is the case, there might still be a limited
transfer of credit risk. However, for an originating bank to achieve reductions in capital
requirements, the risk transfer arising from a securitization or credit sale has to be deemed
sufficient by the NRB. If the risk transfer is considered to be insufficient or non existent, NRB
can require the application of a higher capital requirement or, alternatively, may deny a bank
from obtaining any capital relief from the securitization or transfer agreements. Therefore, the
capital relief that can be achieved will correspond to the amount of credit risk that is effectively
transferred.

Credit Risk Mitigants
In case when the eligibility requirements are not fulfilled, NRB will not consider Credit Risk
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Mitigants in allocating capital. Similarly, CRM may give rise to residual risks, which may
render the overall risk reduction less effective. Where these risks are not adequately controlled
by the bank, NRB may impose additional capital charges or take other appropriate supervisory
actions.

Operational risk and Market Risk

The framework prescribes simple approaches for allocating capital for operational and market
risk which may not be directly aligned with the volume and complexity of risk. Thus, the
supervisor shall consider whether the capital requirements generated by the prescribed
approaches give a consistent picture of the individual bank'’s risk exposure in comparison with
the peer group and the banking industry at large. Where NRB is convinced such is not the case,
appropriate supervisory response is warranted.

Market Discipline

The framework requires banks to disclose various key informations about their business on a
periodic basis. It is imperative that the banks discharge their obligations under the disclosure
requirements in order to be eligible to claim benefits of CRM. In line with the utmost
significance of this requirement, the supervisor shall review the adequacy of the disclosures. As
a part of this process itself, the supervisor shall regularly review the website of the banks and
review the contents of the site. Wherever the review process identifies any shortcomings or
non-compliances, appropriate supervisory response shall be initiated.

6.4 SUPERVISORY RESPONSE:

Nepal Rastra Bank expects banks to operate above the minimum regulatory capital ratios. If NRB is
not convinced about the risk management practices and the control environment, it has the authority
to require banks to hold capital in excess of the minimum.

a.

Supervisory adjustments in risk weighted assets and capital

Having carried out the review process as described above, supervisors should take appropriate
action if they are not satisfied with the results of the bank’s own risk assessment and capital
allocation. In such a scenario, NRB shall be empowered to undertake any or combination of the
following adjustments in the banks risk weighted assets and regulatory capital computations.

1. Shortfall in provisions made by the bank against adversely classified assets shall be
deducted from the Tier 1 capital.

2. The loans and facilities extended to Directors, Employees (other than loans given under
Employee rules), Shareholders holding more than 1% percent shares and related parties
as well as loans, advances and facilities restricted by the prevailing rules and regulations
shall be deducted from Tier 1 capital.

3. In case the bank has provided loans and facilities in excess of its Single Obligor Limits,
10% of all such excess exposures shall be added to the risk weighted exposure for credit
risk.

4. Where the bank has been involved in the sale of credit with recourse facility, 1% of the
contract (sale) value shall be added to the risk weight for credit risk.

5. Where the banks do not have satisfactory Assets Liability Management policies and
practices to effectively manage the market risks, an additional risk weight of 1% of Net
Interest Income of the immediate previous financial year shall be added to the risk weight
for market risk.

6. Where the banks do not adopt sound practices for the management of operational risk, an
additional capital charge of 2% to 5% of Gross Income of immediate previous financial
year shall be levied for operational risks.
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7.  Where the Gross Income determined for computation of capital charge of Operational
Risk for all of the last three years is negative and where the banks themselves have not
addressed the capital charge for operational risk, 5% of the total credit and investments
net of specific provisions shall be the capital charge for operational risk.

New banks who have not completed a year of operation and hence whose gross income
cannot be measured reliably and where the banks themselves have not addressed the
capital charge for operational risk, shall also be required to compute their capital charge
for operational risk vide the same approach as prescribed for banks with negative gross
income. These banks may use the gross income approach from the second year onwards.
But, based on the reasonableness of the so-computed capital charge for Operation Risk,
during the first three years of operation, review process may require additional proportion
of capital charge.

8. During the course of review, where the supervisor is not satisfied with the overall risk
management policies and procedures of the bank, the total risk weighted exposures of the
bank shall be increased up to 5%.

9. In case the bank has not achieved the desired level of disclosure requirements, the total
risk weighted exposures of the bank shall be increased up to 3%.

10. Banks that do not meet the eligibility requirements to claim the benefit under credit risk
mitigation techniques shall not be allowed the benefit of CRM.

b. Corrective Actions for Non-Compliances

1. The failure on part of the banks to meet the provisions of this framework shall be
considered as a violation of the NRB directives and shall attract stipulated actions. The
nature of the enforcement action largely depends on degree of the capital adequacy of the
bank. The trigger points and the prescribed action in case of non-compliance shall be as
per the provisions of Prompt Corrective Action Bylaw,2074 propounded by Nepal Rastra
Bank.

DISCLOSURE
GENERAL:

The purpose of disclosure requirements is to complement the minimum capital requirements and the
review process by developing a set of disclosure requirements which will allow market participants to
assess key pieces of information on the scope of application, capital, risk exposures, risk assessment
processes, and hence the capital adequacy of the bank. It is believed that providing disclosures that
are based on a common framework is an effective means of informing the market about a bank’s
exposure to those risks and provides a consistent and comprehensive disclosure framework that
enhances comparability. The importance of disclosure is more pronounced in cases of banks that rely
on internal methodologies in assessing capital requirements.

DISCLOSURE PRINCIPLES:

Banks should have a formal disclosure policy approved by the Board of Directors that addresses the
bank’s approach for determining what disclosures it will make and the internal controls over the
disclosure process. In addition, banks should implement a process for assessing the appropriateness of
their disclosures, including validation and frequency. While deciding on the disclosure policy, the
board should pay due attention to strike a balance between materiality and proprietary and
confidential information.

a. Materiality

Besides the minimum prescribed disclosure requirements, a bank should decide which
additional disclosures are relevant for it based on the materiality concept. Information would be
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regarded as material if its omission or misstatement could change or influence the assessment
or decision of a user relying on that information for the purpose of making economic decisions.

b. Proprietary and confidential information

Proprietary information encompasses information (for example on products or systems), that if
shared with competitors would render a bank’s investment in these products/systems less
valuable, and hence would undermine its competitive position. Information about customers is
often confidential, in that it is provided under the terms of a legal agreement or counterparty
relationship. This has an impact on what banks should reveal in terms of information about
their customer base, as well as details on their internal arrangements, for instance
methodologies used, parameter estimates, data etc. The disclosure requirements set out below
by NRB aims to strike an appropriate balance between the need for meaningful disclosure and
the protection of proprietary and confidential information.

VALIDATION:

The disclosures of the bank should be subjected to adequate validation. In addition, supplementary
material (such as Management’s Discussion and Analysis) that is published should also be subjected
to sufficient scrutiny (e.g. internal control assessments, etc.) to satisfy the validation issue. If material
is not published under a validation regime, for instance in a stand alone report or as a section on a
website, then management should ensure that appropriate verification of the information takes place,
in accordance with the general disclosure principles.

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS:

Banks should at minimum, disclose the following information at the stipulated time intervals. At the
same time, banks shall be free to disclose any other information they consider important for its
stakeholders as and when they consider necessary, beyond the prescribed requirements.

a. Banks should provide the following disclosures as at the end of each financial year along with
the annual financial statements.

1. Capital structure and capital adequacy
o Tier 1 capital and a breakdown of its components;
o Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components;

o Detailed information about the Subordinated Term Debts with information on the
outstanding amount, maturity, amount raised during the year and amount eligible to
be reckoned as capital funds.

o Deductions from capital;
o Total qualifying capital;
o Capital adequacy ratio;

o Summary of the bank’s internal approach to assess the adequacy of its capital to
support current and future activities, if applicable; and

o Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of all capital instruments,
especially in case of subordinated term debts including hybrid capital instruments.

2. Risk exposures
o Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk;
o Risk Weighted Exposures under each of 9 categories of Credit Risk;
o Total risk weighted exposure calculation table;
o Amount of NPAs (both Gross and Net)
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» Restructure/Reschedule Loan
» Substandard Loan
» Doubtful Loan
» Loss Loan
o NPA ratios

» Gross NPA to gross advances

» Net NPA to net advances
o Movement of Non Performing Assets
o Write off of Loans and Interest Suspense
o Movements in Loan Loss Provisions and Interest Suspense
o Details of additional Loan Loss Provisions

o Segregation of investment portfolio into Held for trading, Held to maturity and
Available for sale category

Risk Management Function

o For each separate risk area (Credit, Market and Operational risk), banks must
describe their risk management objectives and policies, including:

» Strategies and processes;

» The structure and organization of the relevant risk management function;
» The scope and nature of risk reporting and/or measurement systems; and
>

Policies for hedging and/or mitigating risk and strategies, and processes for
monitoring the continuing effectiveness of hedges/mitigants.

o Types of eligible credit risk mitigants used and the benefits availed under CRM.

All banks should make following disclosures on a quarterly basis on their respective websites.

O

O

O

Tier 1 capital and a breakdown of its components;
Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components;

Detailed information about the Subordinated Term Debts with information on the
outstanding amount, maturity, amount raised during the year and amount eligible to be
reckoned as capital funds.

Deductions from capital;

Total qualifying capital;

Capital adequacy ratio;

Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk;
Risk Weighted Exposures under each of 9 categories of Credit Risk;

Total risk weighted exposure calculation table;

Amount of NPAs (both Gross and Net)

» Restructure/Reschedule Loan

» Substandard Loan

» Doubtful Loan
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» Loss Loan
o NPA ratios
» Gross NPA to gross advances
» Net NPA to net advances
o Movement of Non Performing Assets
o Write off of Loans and Interest Suspense
o Movements in Loan Loss Provisions and Interest Suspense
o Details of Additional Loan Loss Provisions

o Segregation of investment portfolio into Held for trading, Held to maturity and Available
for sale category

o Summary of the bank’s internal approach to assess the adequacy of its capital to support
current and future activities, if applicable; and

o Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of all capital instruments, especially in
case of subordinated term debts including hybrid capital instruments.

Disclosure requirements under this framework should also be published in the respective
websites of the banks. Such disclosures of the banks should also be updated to reflect the
capital adequacy position of the banks after the supervisory adjustments under the review
process.

Banks are required to report to NRB their capital adequacy computations, according to the
format as specified in Annexure of this framework on a monthly basis within one month after
the end of the month or as required by NRB from time to time. All such returns must be
validated by the internal auditor of the bank. If the monthly internal audit couldnot be carried
out, it should be disclosed on the monthly return. But, such returns at the end of each quarter
must be submitted with the validation from the internal auditor of the bank.

In addition to the returns specified above, a bank must inform NRB within 30 days of:

1. Any breach of the minimum capital adequacy requirements set out in this framework
together with an explanation of the reasons for the breach and the remedial measures it has
taken to address those breaches.

2. Any concerns it has about its capital adequacy, along with proposed measures to address
these concerns.

Full compliance of these disclosure requirements is a pre-requisite before banks can obtain any
capital relief (i.e. adjustments in the risk weights of collateralized or guaranteed exposures) in
respect of any credit risk mitigation techniques.

FORM NO. 1 CAPITAL ADEQUACY TABLE (Summary)

(Rs.In .....)
Particulars Current Period Previous Period
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital
Tier 1 Capital
Tier 2 Capital
Total Capital

Risk-Weighted Exposures

Regulatory Ratios

Current Period

Previous Period

Leverage Ratio

¥3




Common Equity Tier 1 to Risk Weighted Exposure Ratio

Tier 1 to Risk Weighted Exposure Ratio

Total Capital to Risk Weighted Exposure Ratio

FOR

M NO. 1A CAPITAL ADEQUACY TABLE

1. 1 Risk Weighted Exposures

Current Period

Previous Period

a Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk
b Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk
c Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk

Adjustments under Pillar 11

Add: 3% of the total RWE due to non compliance to Disclosure
Requirement (6.4 a9)

Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's adjustments of Pillar 11)

1.2 CAPITAL

Current Period

Previous Period

Tier 1 Capital (Core Capital) (CET1 +AT1)

0

0

Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1)

0

0

Paid up Equity Share Capital

Equity Share Premium

Proposed Bonus Equity Shares

Statutory General Reserves

Retained Earnings

Un-audited current year cumulative profit/(Loss)

Capital Redemption Reserve

Capital Adjustment Reserve

Dividend Equalization Reserves

Other Free Reserve

Less: Goodwill

Less: Intangible Assets

Less: Deferred Tax Assets

Less: Fictitious Assets

Less: Investment in equity in licensed Financial Institutions

Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests

Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits

Less: Investments arising out of underwriting commitments

U"‘QUODB_X'_'_':@ =h|D | |O|T|D

Less: Reciprocal crossholdings

Less: Purchase of land & building in excess of limit &
unutilized

Less: Cash Flow Hedge

Less: Defined Benefit Pension Assets

Less: Un recognized Defined Benefit Pension Liabilities

x|s|<|e|~

Less: Other Deductions

Adjustments under Pillar 11

Less: Shortfall in Provision (6.4 a 1)

Less: Loans and Facilities extended to Related Parties and
Restricted lending (6.4 a 2)

Additional Tier 1 (AT1)
a Perpetual Non Cumulative Preference Share Capital
b Perpetual Debt Instruments

XY




¢ | Stock Premium

Supplementary Capital (Tier I1)

Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share

Subordinated Term Debt

Hybrid Capital Instruments

Stock Premium

General loan loss provision

Exchange Equalization Reserve

Investment Adjustment Reserve

Assets Revaluation Reserve

—|T|I Q|| |a|O ||

Other Reserves

Total Capital Fund (Tier | and Tier I1)

0

0

1.3 CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIOS

Current Period

Previous Period

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures

(After Bank's adjustments of Pillar I1)

Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's

adjustments of Pillar I1)

Tier 1 and Tier 2 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures(After

Bank's adjustments of Pillar I1)

FORM NO. 2: RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURE FOR CREDIT RISK

(Rs.In .....)
Book (Specific ~|Eligible |\, _Risk Wnghte ;
A. Balance Sheet Exposures Value |Provision |CRM Weight Exposures
a b C d=a-b-c |e f=d*e
Cash Balance 0 0 0 0% 0
Balance With Nepal Rastra Bank 0 0 0 0% 0
Gold 0 0 0 0% 0
Investment in  Nepalese  Government 0
Securities 0 0 0 0% 0
All Claims on Government of Nepal 0 0 0 0% 0
Investment in Nepal Rastra Bank securities 0 0 0 0% 0
All claims on Nepal Rastra Bank 0 0 0 0% 0
Claims on Foreign Government and Central 0
Bank (ECA 0-1) S 0 0% 0
Claims on Foreign Government and Central 0
Bank (ECA -2) o 10 0 0 20% |0
Claims on Foreign Government and Central 0
Bank (ECA -3) 0 |0 0 0% 0
Claims on Foreign Government and Central 0
Bank (ECA-4-6) 0 0 0 0 100% 10
Claims on Foreign Government and Central 0
Bank (ECA -7) 0 0 0 0 150% |0
Claims On BIS, IMF, ECB, EC and on
Multilateral Development Banks (MDB's) | 0 0 0 0% 0
recognized by the framework
Claims on Other Multilateral Development 0 0 0 0 100% | 0
Banks
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 0-1) 0 0 0 0 20% 0

Y,




Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 2) 0 0 0 0 50% 0
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 3-6) 0 0 0 0 100% | O
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 7) 0 0 0 0 150% | 0
Claims on dor_nestlc banks that meet capital 0 0 0 0 20% 0
adequacy requirements
Cla!ms on domestic panks that do not meet 0 0 0 0 100% | 0
capital adequacy requirements
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 0-1) 0 0 0 0 20% 0
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 2) 0 0 0 0 50% 0
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 3-6) 0 0 0 0 100% |0
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 7) 0 0 0 0 150% |0
Claims on foreign bank incorporated in
SAARC region operating with a buffer of | 0 0 0 0 20% 0
1% above their respective regulatory capital
Claims on Domestic Corporates 0 0 0 0 100% |0
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 0-1) 0 0 0 0 20% 0
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 2) 0 0 0 0 50% 0
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 3-6) 0 0 0 0 100% |0
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 7) 0 0 0 0 150% |0
Claims secured by Commercial real estate 0 0 0 0 100% |0
Past due claims 0 0 0 0 150% | O
High Risk claims 0 0 0 0 150% |0
Investments in equity and other capital
instruments of institutions listed in the stock | 0 0 0 0 100% | O
exchange
Investments in equity and other capital
instruments of institutions not listed in the | 0 0 0 0 150% | O
stock exchange
Staff loan secured by residential property 0 0 0 0 60% 0
Intere:sft Receivable/claim on government 0 0 0 0 0% 0
securities
Cash in transit apd other cash items in the 0 0 0 0 20% 0
process of collection
Other Assets (as per attachment) 0 0 0 0 100% |0
TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0
Gross - - . Risk
Specific  |Eligible Risk .
B. Off Balance Sheet Exposures \B/OOk Provision |CRM Net Value Weight Weighted
alue Exposures
a b c d=a-b-c |e f=d*e
Revocable Commitments 0 0 0 0% 0
Bills Under Collection 0 0 0 0% 0
Forward Exchange Contract Liabilities 0 0 0 0 10% 0
LC Commitments With Original Maturity
Upto 6 months 0 0 0 0 20% 0
domestic counterparty
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1) 0 0 0 0 20% 0
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2) 0 0 0 0 50% |0
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 3-6) 0 0 0 0 100% | O
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7) 0 0 0 0 150% |0

Y%




LC Commitments With Original Maturity

Over 6 months 0 0 0 0 50% 0
domestic counterparty
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1) 0 0 0 0 20% 0
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2) 0 0 0 0 50% 0
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 3-6) 0 0 0 0 100% | O
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7) 0 0 0 0 150% | O
Bid Bond, Performance Bond and Counter
guarantee 0 0 0 0 50% 0
domestic counterparty
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1) 0 0 0 0 20% 0
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2) 0 0 0 0 50% 0
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 3-6) 0 0 0 0 100% | O
foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7) 0 0 0 0 150% |0
Underwriting commitments 0 0 0 0 50% 0
Lendl_n_g of Bank's Securities or Posting of 0 0 0 0 100% | 0
Securities as collateral
Repurchase Agreements, Assets sale with
recourse 0 0 0 0 100% | O
Advance Payment Guarantee 0 0 0 0 100% |0
Financial Guarantee 0 0 0 0 100% | O
Acceptances and Endorsements 0 0 0 0 100% | O
Unpal_d_ portion of Partly paid shares and 0 0 0 0 100% | o
Securities
Irrevocable Credit commitments (short term) | O 0 0 0 20% 0
Irrevocable Credit commitments (long term) | O 0 0 0 50% 0
Claims on foreign bank incorporated in
SAARC region operatl_ng with a buffer_ of 0 0 0 0 20% 0
1% above their respective regulatory capital
requirement
Other Contingent Liabilities 0 0 0 0 100% | 0O
Unpaid Guarantee Claims 0 0 0 0 200% |0
TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0
Total RWE for credit Risk Before
Adjustment (A) +(B) 0 |0 0 0 0
Adjustments under Pillar Il
Add: 10% of the loan and facilities in excess 0

of Single Obligor Limits(6.4 a 3)

Add: 1% of the contract(sale) value in case
of the sale of credit with recourse (6.4 a
4)

Total RWE for credit Risk (After Bank's
adjustments of Pillar I1)
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FORM NO.3 ELIGIBLE CREDIT RISK MITIGANTS

Credit exposures Deposits |Deposits|Gold |Govt.& G'tee of|Sec/G't |G'tee of|G'te Sec/G't|Total
with with NRB Govt. |ee of{domest e ofge of
Bank other Securities [of Other |ic MD Foreig
banks/FI Nepal [Soverei|banks |Bs n
gns Banks
(a) (b) () |(d) (e (M) (@ [(h) [(i)
Balance Sheet Exposures
Claims on Foreign government and
Central Bank (ECA -2) 0
Claims on Foreign government and
Central Bank (ECA -3) 0
Claims on Foreign government and
Central Bank (ECA-4-6) 0
Claims on Foreign government and
Central Bank (ECA -7) 0
Claims on Other Multilateral
Development Banks 0
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA
0-1) 0
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA
2) 0
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA
3-6) 0
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA
7) 0
Claims on domestic banks that meet
capital adequacy requirements 0
Claims on domestic banks that do not
meet capital adequacy requirements 0
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating
0-1) 0
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 0
2)
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 0
3-6)
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 0
7)
Claims on foreign bank incorporated
in SAARC region operating with a
buffer of 1% above their respective
regulatory capital requirement
Claims on Domestic Corporates 0
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 0
0-1)
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 0
2)
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 0
3-6)
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 0
7)
Claims secured by Commercial real 0
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Credit exposures Deposits |Deposits|Gold |Govt.& G'tee of|Sec/G't |G'tee of|G'te Sec/G't|Total
with with NRB Govt. |ee of|domest e ofpe of
Bank other Securities [of Other |ic MD Foreig
banks/FI Nepal [Soverei|banks |Bs n
gns Banks
(a) (b) () |(d) (e | (@ () |(i)
estate
Past due claims 0
High Risk claims 0
Investments in equity and other 0
capital instruments of institutions
listed in the stock exchange
Investments in equity and other 0
capital instruments of institutions not
listed in the stock exchange
Other Assets (as per attachment)
Total 0
Off Balance Sheet Exposures
Forward Exchange Contract
Liabilities
LC Commitments with Original 0
Maturity Upto 6 months
domestic counterparty
foreign  counterparty (ECA 0
Rating 0-1)
foreign  counterparty  (ECA 0
Rating 2)
foreign  counterparty  (ECA 0
Rating 3-6)
foreign  counterparty  (ECA 0
Rating 7)
LC Commitments with Original 0
Maturity Over 6 months
domestic counterparty
foreign  counterparty  (ECA 0
Rating 0-1)
foreign  counterparty  (ECA 0
Rating 2)
foreign  counterparty  (ECA 0
Rating 3-6)
foreign  counterparty  (ECA 0
Rating 7)
Bid Bond, Performance Bond and 0
Counter guaranteedomestic
counterparty
foreign  counterparty  (ECA 0
Rating 0-1)
foreign  counterparty  (ECA 0
Rating 2)
foreign  counterparty  (ECA 0
Rating 3-6)
foreign  counterparty  (ECA 0
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Credit exposures Deposits |Deposits|Gold |Govt.& G'tee of|Sec/G't |G'tee of|G'te Sec/G't|Total
with with NRB Govt. |ee of|domest e ofpe of
Bank other Securities [of Other |ic MD Foreig
banks/FI Nepal [Soverei|banks |Bs n
gns Banks
(a) (b) () |(d) (e | (@ () |(i)
Rating 7)
Underwriting commitments 0
Lending of Bank's Securities or 0
Posting of Securities as collateral
Repurchase Agreements, Assets sale 0
with recourse
Advance Payment Guarantee 0
Financial Guarantee 0
Acceptances and Endorsements 0
Unpaid portion of Partly paid shares 0
and Securities
Irrevocable  Credit  commitments 0
(Short Term)
Irrevocable  Credit  commitments
(Long Term)
Other Contingent Liabilities 0
Total
Grand Total

FORM NO.4 EXHIBIT OF CLAIMS WITH CREDIT RISK MITIGANTS

(Rs.In................)
S.N | Counterparty Category | Facility | Outstanding | Eligible CRM
Nature | Gross Haircut | Net
Amount Amount
FORM NO.5 OTHER ASSETS

S.No. | Assets Gross Amount Specific Net
Provision& Balance
Valuation
Adjustment

1 Cash and Cash Items in Transit 0

2 Miscellaneous Expenditure not written off 0

3 Fixed Assets 0

4 Interest Receivable on Other Investment 0

5 Interest Receivable on Loan 0

6 Non Banking Assets 0

7 Reconciliation Account 0

8 Draft Paid Without Notice 0

9 Sundry Debtors 0

10 Advance payment and Deposits 0

11 Staff Loan and Advance 0

12 Stationery 0

Yo




13 | Other 0
TOTAL 0 0
FORM NO. 6: RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURE FOR OPERATIONAL RISK

Particulars FY ... FY ... FY ...
Net Interest Income

Commission and Discount Income

Other Operating Income

Exchange Fluctuation Income

Addition/Deduction in Interest Suspense during the period

Gross income (a)

Alfa (b) 15% 15% 15%
Fixed Percentage of Gross Income [c=(axb)]

Capital Requirement for operational risk (d) (average of c)

Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 11%) in times

(e) 9.09
Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [f=(dxe)]

PILLAR-II ADJUSTMENTS

If Gross Income for all the last three years is negative(6.4 a 8)

Total Credit and Investment (net of Specific Provision)

Capital Requirement for operational risk (5%)

Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 11%) in times 9.09
Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [g]

Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [h=f or g)

FORM NO.7 RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURE FOR MARKET RISK

S.No. | Currency Open Position (FCY) Open Position

(NPR)

Relevant Open Position

INR

usD

GBP

EURO

THB

O INOO | OB W|IN| -

I

Total Open Position (a)

Fixed Percentage (b) 5%
Capital Charge for Market Risk [c=(axb)]
Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 11%) in times (d) 9.09

Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [e=(cxd)]
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FORM NO.: 8 Leverage Ratio

(Rs.In....)

Particulars

Amount

EXxposure Measure

1. On balance sheet Assets(net of specific provisioning)

2. Repurchase agreements and securities finance

3. Derivatives

4. Off balance sheet exposure

Capital Measure

1. Common Equity Tier 1 Capital (After regulatory Adjustment)

2. Additional Tier 1 Capital

%

C

Leverage Ratio

Note (if any):
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(M) STAH THINH [ARANADIE /a7 [IREAAT TRUHT FAGSAT ¥ Wiaqwqd Halt
ATl AT FEAA TS |

(&) T TIRATABIHERT /AT TARETAT TRUHT FAEwATs o[ AT B0 TRSH G
Qe AT FAfteRer A |
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(%) qATIR fqepra el glea aar vegeee, famr (fawee, Svel, dar/=as%, drew uve fnfesw
meﬁﬁaﬁn@ﬁ fare, WWW‘E’&HWHWH@ afeT,
WWW/%WqWWWWWWW
FRITET SANT/ QIR FE JaTE adT AT [qeauu TR0 Araegehar T Ararcrep!
ATITHT AFHTIAIA TSB! HTHT 0 IANT THH AT I TR0 S@TART TABoh AATTAT

TET FoATeh! qAXATTARIRIUl AT [ARERHAAT T Fleh |

Q) TET [ARANASIRIO T/ AT [ATHATHAAT 050 T HIATAHA TR I, |

R) ROWR T WATIHT AHT G SHI HUHT FATATE TAATABIHL T/ AT [ARELEAT
T AT, |

(3) ITUTH FHITTH JAXATABIHI T /AT TATELAAT TRTHT FA@eHT L AT HSA AR
LT HAH TS, |
) T TARANARIRI T/ AT [AEAHAAT TRUH FoAeedls ST AT AT a0l TS B
T AT AR TS, | TARETTAT a1 TARAT AR TRUHT Foliebl Fiar ferear
JAT SATSTR! AR RMAR T3 AUGH (HATHT AURT ATEITHT TAT FHollells AqA BoIHT
qRard T Al B |

(Q0) TUHRT (3) THISTH ATHVT MRUHT FAEEHT (FaRT Gg AR THINS, |
0. Holl AT AATATE FATASH T S ST

HAT AT SHILATATS ST ATLTTE R TATATAT T AT -

(%) I ATT@A HTHAT,

@) FHSIhl AT (Fearaval a1 #AfRTF AT AUAT FAl IR0 AATADR Foll AT a2l

FIH & qHTAN TUHN FIAFAR] Holl AT TRTHT Foll AT ST,

(A1) YAETEAT a1 GARAIABIHII TR FS(bl AT JIT TSR qRMI AR g5 JUGHH

)

fafaa wuar ¥
) STl <[hT ATHT |

(8) YURAATH FHAT IFGUHT PRAATET T YER TRP! ATITHT qIE URALT forwmT

favaw waaT |

TR-sifepy Teataer AT sgae T foemw o I

Q)

TATIR T ool B holl AT ATTHT FREVHT TEh! fadl S=te@e T il qiar T =
TS TG | FoAT A T fqeAraarar frdr feramdt &t foara o v arhd aer T
g | FHR &1 fadrel gEiad a9k Hed a1 faal GeR T Afedl [QadFel T oA T
TFAHE WA FH §rg AEl AW HATsd T THg | FfE fIarel aer §ed Feiel ol
THEAART FH AUAT HH TUSATT THH Tlel AfdE TUAT ATHRT /A Gqm&a r @9 a el TRt
G AT Ioei@ TS,

TR, T HeAT3H &I AT T Sifebg Trard arqaqepl THH G0 F997 feare fam Faeeaes
AT THEATEAB] AT ThHATS AThT /AR EAEdT AR SATST g g T el ThHATS
TR Sfepy Tt ATIAPT AT SAALATHT ATHIAS, |

R TP TR-SAfeby TRATTHT THR Wb (AT I FIAT AT Sl HaT THI |
TR-Sifepy TwIfa [T WU SEa=aTH qohle Rl GEIRART AIRT @eT TR ST HawTehT
AT fearataerd THaAs, |
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(%) ferdt Retorems TR Sy TEARaRr TUET PR TET TAT FRR TPl TR-Sfeby qEafa ferera fosy T
GEGH] BT THITH T, |

()

(@)

TTEhehl R FHATE TR-AThg AR TIHT PR T GEAed T&Tells ATard
FIHT FTATLAAT THATALT THIAE |

AT TEATHN ATHAT gl TR-A(hg THfdl faem® THId @a TeATsaadians
ANIRE HeATFA TRISAIAS, |

T, T3 HATIAFATAE AMAR T Wl del Hilg THradl Tearg RIS qred
ol

fordt TReTor/ TR-SAfepy Trafa foems qremaar S Rl T Tt SHERIT T AXATH]
o &ReTT & T A T |

qeafqers § o v, wiferes SOHT AT fAT dree |
TG FHR T FAUFT FEaiaers aaraera fEdl oy T uHe | S AT JATeTeeTS

ATAYAE AT AT Bl IJTANH] AT FoaTeAb AATE e RIS TF Sebells THA
ST IRTSAIAS, |

TR-difepg TFafaerT FTHT TR TPl TR faaT qRewr g (R-Sfepg qwataw smee
aferepr o) @g fRar T TR-Sfke Rfa dmETEH AT Wed AT RRAr TETe
THIAT Tgehl TRICI THA (HiAT T ATSH] §IS) WA S a6l grg 9l THAAT ToaA
TR FFEled FT T FEegd R gATErERl ATl ATAERT geiead  qRET
aATelTS | Rt/ REAur RBal T s A1 FE9TTer arer Qe A |

qaTaR fqepr deeeer U srgeHr AT Credit Sale /Purchase/Re-purchase @am Takeover T
IS | TR, T Sobel AThepl GoIBIT TAT TUHT TR T bl TATSTATAIT “&F” FTH]
SFE YATE THl JATGR dEIiead aiedrsaressl  Credit Sale/Purchase/Re-purchase dem
Takeover TaTeR faera Fehellg TRt I 9T AT IETHT 9Tl ASTTAT T T T |

9.
R.

TATIRENT Frafedd FATH €30 FS AT FAElbl o1l g |

qATIR faeh Shel FRIAR F THT (Hiqer ¥ TEGFT ATHT Afereal TTATIH] HTaT
TEd HA FHeIl AMATR AlgwaA UH faere A7 Credit Sale/Purchase/Re-purchase
qAT Takeover T Tk |

Credit Sale/Purchase/Re-purchase d4r Takeover W1 fa=/fad TFeg#T  qaigR
faepTa SeFebT ATHT FT AT T FFEAT T TG | AT I FREAR T

TS |

aifde Fuer af<qw #@fearr Credit Sale /Purchase/Re-purchase @am Takeover
el F T e |

&1 @itg (Credit Purchase) &1 T %l IMehald AGASIX T I AT Sebel
fA 995 | AT IR AT FFAteda TTeehebl TeH(q THT [Aqais |

TRl 9T T ATLATHT (g faqawor fauz /rg &= @ivg T |

fepfar, STl srae, faTept ol FRIARPT AT, THHIHATE! &1qad, Hell
afreReuTeR feafq srfe faarores fafaq sqar faqas |
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. O @G I JATR [T bl Fl NIRRTl [T Sqaer qar Fl A
LT FHINAHPT AT AT AT FTIH TIAES |

. HAl @ivg T fAaT =T ol AT Tedl TAT FEATATS RIS AT/ FTTH! 1<
I(h g ATIR el FRTSTAES GHAd Hol BIZAAT  ATETIF IS |

qo. Credit Sale /Purchase/Re-purchase TaT Takeover ®RIERH AeaTiies faawor
HeaTiier Aty FHT quel fAfaer qu feAta o Seer gwatead gufeasror
faamTaT qored TS |

9. TaTUR fqepr Sheed g@dr #ei @ied/famr (Purchase and Sale) a7 &eerattara
GiEhdl T FAT IITST AGHAT AT FAAT A ATl @ik T+ (Credit
Repurchase) STd &l aedTHT faslehdl FeITel T=AT %eil Repurchase wRTE=siel
Contingent Liability BT FTIHT ATHT fadrd [qazurer Feariad qriacd ¥ o@r gl
fawrofiepl  sE=iAT S@TSHIT ¥ I Cotingent Liability &g dSirepry oram 1+
ST AT 400 SfeTeT = SHEH R GG T |

R qAEIR g e FREAR gE TR ¥ quutz a9 fEfaHesr Credit Sale
/Purchase/Re-purchase T41 Takeover I¥=41 sqadl @ (Hhd g |

TIEITHT TATIAT T FoATATH] TEehT oo qAT fair FAEeel AT el fairg S (Financial
Guarantee) T STETRHT FEATA ot/ FfaaT fad a9 (8T SR T aTe-aT |

T 97 gOaaquaard e qar faxie a=amessT & faq faq gvEer &9 dRER
THFTET |

TR, T TERIT TEMT @ faTAFHET AwiReleh FRIAR (ATTEN /AT T 1T TATTHRT FATST |
AR BIRR/ATTET R

JATIR e Sobel A7 SOaTquadTe siep e fadira FRATET T A9l FRIARATS (Hatad el
ATILTHT TTAT TS A¥e HRIER /AT (Interbank Transactions/Borrowings) &1 TTAT AT T
qTgHe | AiRedeh HTadhl AT TEHT © [TAF+ AT g |

9%. % AT (BankGuarantee) S¥=T

Q..

(F) TEATA S THT I AT (Bank Guarantee) aTIdehl ¥ Beneficiary &g ohTT faq
U SFRITHT AT ITET 9Bl AT 13 [GATT hTHT (o /Afed Tr=edT 31 agaa I
| AT, International Chamber of Commerce, Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantee (URDG)
IR R b THHAAEEHT gbdl 99 URDG T SUHT HaEATEThl HAATHT TET hTHT
Tl o s |

(@) TEE TET G AT B [GATTqT SFeh AT AT T G Beneficiary @Tg STl &9
U HAETHT TAT AR (AT AR AAT e JardR (qebrd Sl a9 oSBT bl
QAT a1 T Sebel ATG9T fGURT Sehepl @TATATE gl T Gwatvad Beneficiary ATg Sehm=T T+
Tfepeeg |

() T IR AT STAT IXebT STATAT ATIqeh] FEATIad STIcaeTs GolehIoehl AT T
T JATSTAHT AN 00 FIATTS FMGH AR J&H T{IHS |

ToAAF, THE FAFR ATHT AT ALY TeH TRNIHAATE TATE g Holl FeeIwerar

AT HAT GATAATAITG  GRATHT FRABT TG a1 HAITIHA  TEHI TaIABTIRT  AfeTapiaT
MHE TEHl B, FEIAT a7 GLATHT F I [BIGHET FAT FaTE T T S | T FHTSTTRT
AT AferspieT W@MMHE =Tl KO WiqeTd vl del @@IHcd 9UHl ®H, HFdl a7 qe] &R
EEC
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95. THSTIAl AF AIHA BNl THH HPTET I TFEH T

TR Foliebl THH HPTET TaT GFateda ST F @I @Il STHAT I I | 97 aTeehepl Aa<araT
T FFIRTHT ATTAT Ubrg=qdT =eh /97 / faacia Areawane arh geatead gofiel @rarar e
T ol THH T TS, |

9. faeeir Radt/ QReToHT FT FATE T YR AR
qatgR fawa S@a g% FEW TH qatEd fEfawer fazamr @ fdr e e gaw T
S |

0. TS ST T Feaeare T

Q) GTETSHT FIehT T AR UTebebl SATTATS YRR 79 U2+ & | a%, JeTdel Ay
TATHEATIT S| SAT9ARAT TAH AR ATARAT AT GoilehR0 T STem Il A

ol
(%) STt IeAEA, JRV qI7 [0 A IAHa® AN,
(@) el F=el G219 AN g4 sy a9 fqive Iama el Iam,
(M) el IEET,
(9) HAABR I,
() For IcaTes ¥l S,
(=) T ST q&] IAEH I,
(@) AT TRFRF! rafedd Hepraare A9 99 IT TH HlSehd Fheloles,
() qfeaed fazel HqeT e T e T gedey,
(%) AT,
() FARA, THAT, ATSALT TMATHT ATHFATT H TRATSTATES |
() TG TS GSAHIT T FrI(ead [ATR faebTe Sehepl Foarers QAT (07 THI |
(3) IARETEAT AT TAXATABTHRTT TRUHT FATH! TAATE TR T AT |
(¥) I=/Moratorium afae STSTdTs oI & dsiied samel Thaare Interest Capitalized
Term Loan (ICTL) ¥fr¥e#T B¢ or@ie T |

(%) RATSTATRT 79T gaTe faeeraor e ICTL &7 ehTr safy aeafead qarar faeme dee dra
T |

9. 9FTERT AT AP GH! fTawor Y |1 bl JaTe T GE-aHT:

(%) HA AT T TRATSTAT/FHRTRT TATIAT TR AT ST/ AR /@i fead Initial
Environmental Examination (IEE) ¥ Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) ATasas
O IRATSTHT/ SARTHl EhAT FFfeaq Hebraare a1 gfqasd @ied WUl ATaRHAT T9T 1EE /
EIA 3a9de T8 GRATSHT/SANTH AT qarar e 9% Al Foll ol T
TATERUTT TATAH! fAeeroor T Fofl JaTe THIAs |
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H gETA FIAAHT WUHT FAEATH 1T depare S Guideline On Environmental &
Social Risk Management (ESRM) For Banks And Financial Institution, 2022 %1 9Tt
g1 T AEIE A qSHT T ANELAA Joold X ARG ATATERT qoT ATHISIE
ATHITSTF SREaH FHAR! [aeeor T HAT AR T9 T AREHITH AT 91 Raiids
T ST IS, |

() Guideline On Environmental & Social Risk Management (ESRM) For Banks And
Financial Institution, 2022 @ s g=T 99 aHISTHST Giqaan e a9 A AUH 30
femfiry S ufeaeror faamrar o1 TRREFTTE |

TAT TP ST THFITTAT IE TN ITHEAGH AT FHER g

ST [CURT dFXITHT THMYTAT Jooi@ Wb IRHAR] dGl ThRHB! AT FHT fad
ek / BH /FET / GRATATS F T FaLmdT fTEar RIS oIS a1 &l § FTHHT 764,
HUTHT AT, HITH TATSH, @ AN, ATEA, STAATSATH] qTH, ST, AT B TAE@d AATH
faoaes T FUAT Jooi@ EAINS, |

Rrdr weaT TR

FA AAGHINH AHAIIR T I FFI0T THA AGA A5qdTle GRETTETId TaUH faar
FIATEANTT FeRaTe AT TFafead FTATETH qE@l SETIs, |

wfee Mew

qATIR faFTa Shdel & YO0 FIAS AT AT Wwal F&IHl Holl SUANT T HUATs Holl FaTg o
feo, |

qATgR faebTa Sehel AT AT of@ied &l 9 deare sl qual NFRS 9-Expected
Credit Loss Related Guidelines, 2024 st T 99, |

FAT ITIEHT IR faRoT TSE A=

TS ST AT A, T&, = T AR TATRTHT FAl TR TN o a9 BIH. .9,
R T 3 AMARHT [qEARUET TAATE GG AUBT QU [GATT TG Sehepl S qAqr fa-i gwdr
forae faamr T % e fFanmT Tereaas |

ISl T a9
Q) TF STHATE TATT ST TRTHT IETAHT IS I TRURT G -

THEHT (M9, 2050 H Foll 9T AT F¥dl Faedl Mo 7. 3 are SRl ARTH
fadere qar &1 gvend fafg R0cq q@ AETAEE SN AUHT J9 faues gEated aee
aTTEe |

() IUEET (@) THIAT @RS TRUFT LT T IROATHITH AT THT FH FRATT T
fEeT IR 9T TR WIS, |
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AR (g ST USd Wed, BH, HEAT AT ATIG T TUH AEheed] THedTs I

HATATATERT b &TTHT TATE g Pollehl A= AT AT T b U, 045 I THT 9 o [GUHI AfIFR
JANT T TETTRT (ST AT TRUR |

1.

R

THA AEd ol QT : TAER [TF> Sl TIE TMeeh, HH, HFAT a1 ATT_T qoawd TUH
MEFeed] THEATS J&TT THd Follehl AMBUHT AldhaH ATHIATS Uhd TTadh Hal GrAT (Single
Obligor Limit) i |

FAT qrqe qur Yraarer Jrr fraR

AT TS ek, BH, FFIAT a7 AT TrI=d TUHT Aehesdl GHeeTs HTAT amaned (Fund
Based) #wi d19a ¥ TReproHAT wmaniea (Non-Fund Based) faemes & T w1 WTATHE Goirept
FEHT 4O UTTNATFHH! AHT HTIH T Y& TH FaTegd | T ol qrqE AT Fradresl GrHr
AFATTHT IR TTATHE GSilehl ATARAT FTUTEF HoAl FTde IAT iadrepl JrAT (LR T I |

FAl qrqe qaT Fraarer AT ge
TETIHT FIT ATIC AT AT AT gaT 7. I A Feoi TN GAT AN ga -

(F) FUTA FIHRE! STHAT /GIENTT, TATA AT S HUMTAR! faqmr T faea e, wiaarer
fabra S quT a=RIted fam (T AdeT TUT G 9UHT dwRited Sgdei
(Multilateral) fa<irr @eaTe® qor evRifted viied (Rated) Sl et STETHTET o=
e 9IRS il AT9e q97 qfadres | 9, qaraR faere Seare AR W dHT a9
Fobel ST TR ASIHHT Jooi@ AUHT FIT qHA HAT T{H TN AT AR
FEIETT FEITS ST T ST (Guarantee) AT STeTiRa 9E qaTaR e Sebel YaT T
FHSTHT GSIIhITH! AT TUMAT TH GATSTAST AT S STGH AR (Zero Risk Weight) 9aT+
T AiFg, |
TR FrARifeT T (Rated) dF FAT GYH AT TATTTAF AVSTHAIS T
The Banker 9/7a7e7 Ge% a9 eils HIEATAT 19T T+ Top Thousand World Banks # &=147
&I Sfe<ar a FHAT FUFE FFEATE TERTTAE |

T T HUHT AEFETATS USe THE I T

FAT AAE AT AT AT FASHP! AT AT GRS TUHT AEFeeH GHEATS  JeTIH

HATITHT U3¢ THE AT T -

(F) Tl FHEIRIA Al FFIAID] Toai UfeTeTed a1 ATl el YAX AU 90 I 39 FFIIes,

@) F ATch, FEITH GoaTcish, TEH [ATHaE FFITE G, ATHART FHET AhaR, HHE
TSR AT T ATk, odATeAh, YA, IEhaR aT WATSIehT ThTHRHT T T 3ATTehT
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UTEe a7 FFAIET |
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A Afh AT ATl THTERHT TS TR ATTHT a7 GEruR [9e AU 9id a1 I, BT,
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oo faxira Tear e faamr qor S quiasr e goeaas |

FT FHE! T fergn e
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AT e TIST UTesh, BH, FHAT a7 AT qHwd AUH YEheed] GHedTs daT o () A

TIFTR THA TTEh Holl AHTART TG Holl A9 a1 raeT Y& TAT I FHaeddl Jeorud

AUl HAITAS T AL AGLITEE Iod g Fad Afgbirad SGH @Al AT ATHIET @l
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FEH T T4 | A% Fa1 F 3 (F) THISTH JAT8 TRTHT HSl A9 a1 Giadmhl FHAT AT a7

AN e |

AT Holl R ST

Q) SifEH I TR AN FRIT 9 AT A (AHEsd] AaedT W AR el
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(3) T U QAPT TRATAATEEHT ATHT el ol STRITATRT FETHT YO FIITTATH FIl TaTE
T 9T SFFAT TRTHT T | AT ST FoAT GIHT ATSHT FAT A=_T TG0 JATE Thr I6H
A NI F Foare gersq s |

el T TS
Q) TG SdharE TFATT T TRUHT F2TET IS @RS TR F -

Tehiekd [AEeT, 050 & Uhdl UEH qoT ST Holl H9e qoT Fiaarel dHA1 HgiRor
THE] FIET e\ {3 d¢ Rl TRuS fqeerd dgr | qe=na fAfq R0y @
AT HUHT T Faua?T Fwafead qequr gia=es |

(k) SUGT Q) THITH @RS RS A9 qa7 IROATHINTT T T HTH HRATET T
e THINTH WU T A, |
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AU AL Fp
P FEAAT
o aur fad g faee fam

GELI I AT

JgT At qun foxia feRvEses gier T Jaen

TH, 045 T T 9% of [qUehl ATTPR TN T IBTAHT (T ST TRTHT 3 |

1.

Tt faaxor T3t =ae
AT TETIHRT AL faiia faerues qar T+, |
F. AqMF a9

a9 I TcAd aukl ITeA q TAdefd HAh dURl TAR HATTIFHH! AATATS
TATIAS, | d¥ FEATIAT AUHR! qThT AT FRATIAT URT [AIdeRd AUR AR daTs
AIF a5 AT, |

= ~

g, 9 debel dlebebl TS J4THe Sr=m (Statutory Form) &7 39T fera=

TG el AIBETH grer ¥ fafy war faxdr faaror qar T 9Eg | a9uER JaR ARew
foreira faamoredr S@maRieror e qar fadird Segr el UH, 093 |1 qlfepUshl AT

I TRISAIAG, |
T, gEfead <@l ATISUSH AR I

el AT faira faarores A faxia gfqasaw= (NFRSs) @R TaR I 99 | 7919
[T gfqaa AT qHTEET AVNH SFeSHl Aeiead fadrg qidaaaa (IFRSs) @5 AT
TIAT fATae |

g A A [gEaRues g Ta

FIAAT SARAT T AFTHT AT @I e sedeurs; fadira faavor arfte gfqass
qRETehTHT JeRIfRTd TRl AT AT qiederT AT JodIecHT FRmEges T 99g, | 9T,
FAATIRUR] SATARRIET AN [ ATl faaRor, qThT a7 Al fqaror, faeqd e
faa=ur (Statement of Comprehensive Income), & YaTe faa=er, sfeEd™m wuwl qRad=er
foeRer ¥ 79 Moo F. q SHISHS! ST qladl T THE [add TeHrs ATaRed [qaxo
TiftaareaeehT qfTehTaT S qAT O ST FEeT UF, 093 A7 qieusr aRaaty i afrard
TIAT JHITT TS, |
T, FH o qiqdaad JehreTd T A

@) ThIEa faxia gfqasd @@ mad yH@ faig aRdwweedl dand faag giqaed (@i
Tiqaed) T FATTAHRT AT qBURT SATHT E¥eF FAHTTR! HigAT adrd JUH! fAfaer ©
feferT 9 U AMZaEaepT 3fHe qRpraT AfaTd STRT THITT T T Tk Ui S
o fadirar g fqawe favrr 7 gwafead quicaso faamrars a9 Sude RS I9d |
Y, yearew fairg e faeqd faerer a9 Seber ifeiauenT gr=raT AT Taargaa
T TN | T faeqa amaid O gfqasd Jaargear ARausr SeRT aEEE Jerer
e gfqae a1 q0d Iword IS, |

RN



k) =ad faxi gfqasd g el AHa T ATRARE d@radiedare. FHI TR
AT JHTTH THIAS, |

(3) &P ATMIF FURT ATAT FEATeIT FEATH! AARSHT A=ARH ol qfqaad T A@ra€raro
quepl faxirg foaeor = Sf@ua R TEerwaAT HROT GoATE dTfcTehles TTAT TLATHT ATE
GfeTarawepl eV UTHTHT TR ool Tehebl QIaTAT FehITeTd T |

(¥) yarw o gfqaes gt &l STh Aaidedl wHERl aiFd, hHERE grEied
GEET qAT ATTHY TAAHT THI0 @eies TaH [AIHAHN] GHTANT FHTATS FHELT TR
AT FHIRTT THIAS, |

(%) TEAATIRUTHT SATAHIHT AT AARTHT AeAed T Gfqaed TehrerT &l “qaieaerer T°
[T qaT ey d@EraeEd 99/9e 1 Haed feuAr afvskd fadi faeror R 91
TG T SHERTH HIAE TG T T{IAS, |

(%) T, Hifq, o qar AT ot TRusT fave aHa qardr faw St saaedrae
FHIH GHTEST T (o GiqaeTd1T B Th] AaLITHT Graliead aTelrs ATa9deh
FRATE! TS, |

. T TSRl TATSTH A¥aT=IHT

T AT SHITTH AT AT @Il ATAR of@Tgd, HedTg qdr TEIceo T Hll,
fAées et 7 Rl q9r qnacass qu FOHT faira feeRor g A |
TANT T UTgAs, | a9 Sehepl fatqer (S swifew a9 Sepepr fafeer faummesar o1 T 9
T GHIH T T TATIET 9 Sebebl qeaiedd (qaeTd FHiiTH F g4g | 91, a9 Sebepl
frder i o9 el Mg faamT qon FEagesar 991 T 9 fafa= qors wRmes
TAT THTITH T I TN TR aRor qeeedl o7 & aiq fqeemere a9 fAaemer amar
> C\ \?; l

AT FATSIAH] AT TR IR G [oa=or qeaee 1

7q g aatead qaTaR faera Sl AT TSRl Mg qaR R q= ofEn
faaRues TAR T AT TATTHT AT |

TG Fepel Aol graT ¥ SNTFAT FH IRATA T TITg qFereaH T

fairer faraorept o SfI¥eF =T YW WREHT AT ATa &7 ofF HTaH TG TG Aebel dAlbepl
FATHT FH aREde T 9Ed BF | O, AAGEEEHT Seoid AU ‘e’ ofideRaT e I
AEALTHAT ATAR AT eMUFae FHEL T FIFAS, |

. e faair faavores Ter T

AT ATF fEATaehl ATIRAT TIAR TR alNep (o [Favo a6 J@IaIeTdare IR
FGTINE BT U AUAS, IR ATH] YRISTE Gidaed, I Jiqaed IR FaeqTI=eh]
ST 9T FIehT ATARHAT TH slebel qlieh(EUeh SIETHT TR UMRUHT faeira fqawues «nfds a9
THT AUH! 3 AfedAqT Frfegd IR [qIRmHr Ergaer T 97 T4 99g, | I
PR OTE ST AT T SHE e Waﬂwﬁwﬁaﬁmﬁﬁﬁmma‘r
THINTH AT T AT a9 FHT AURI ¥ AfeAT T (RIE 99 AUR! ATATHAT TEMAT
97 T HEANT) @RI FF e I 99s | 91, gEnEag fade faEree,
AETINETRDT ATTH Aiqdad qaT @R e Ud (Long Form Audit Report, LFAR)
AGTIETT TFI GURT QY GAlTT I8 Sehepl Frafead qURAer faaqmresar 991 T g |
AT TR TATHT TR AT 9T T FASATS TIR TN amish fedma (Annual
Accounts) Sk gaTeareTaT %WW%memmn
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R faira foawor qar ik smaR a9 W@ dAEria
) fa<ira faaror qar el A faxia gfqae=we (NFRSs) aHINTH TaR I 9, | F9Te of@m
YTTaGHTA S FHTAST AR SFFEEHT Aeaaiegd faira qfqagad (IFRSs) @Ts ATl FIHT
faas; |
) faarer qurR TRl q9ATeA samitdes qurd fadia gfqaaadE (NFRSs) 7T Seifad saaeeTe]
FYTHT TET AR [aFE S Foaras AfAqare qiRd RIS A GRS g, |
gH@ @I (Significant Accounting Policies) $TIHeFAT Seoi@ I I98 | d@HIIdes aRadd
T 9eAT J9rd fadra giqeaead e (NFRSs) &1 STeFHAT @l 9kadd 9 didbdg | aRkadd
TR F@HItdesed! faazor faxdira faawurer or@r avewir feufy s=7a Basis of Preparation

@I Changes in Accounting Policies ¥=RTd Jeei@ I |

3 S FHA A FHIRT T iEA (Actuarial Valuation) TRISET A9Te fadiia gfqass A
(NFRSs) & qragmd Feq [Tl TATSHT AR W JAiquleE SHes (Assumption) g
HATHT TRIS TG | Y, AARE AGMIREAVEE I TG TAT ATATEE TATV TR qI=Te
AT AAIET TAHA T AT FHAST TG |

¥, MIRASRT GHIENT

FEATT JAAFIT T FGTHINT FTHITH FAF g4 3 HATRIATS b qaT faxir dwar qeeedy U,
093 YT qH bl [HEYHAHITHST TUME AT AT PIUEEHT ThH SShig T arehl &bl
HATRTATE  SETTAHITSTHE] AIAAHT FHENA T FEAH AUH IHAAE AT faqeer 19
Jrps, |

(%) ¥ dfedr NFRSs Compliant faxir fgaver @™ &l Opening Statement of Financial
Position @1 T a9l faxia fqa=oAT NFRSs a#itsH fafqe ofiveesd qwmeE T
AfS=Iq H{ATHTHT THH STFAT TRHAT AT aRTeRE THAATs Statement of Changes in Equity #THd
afs=ra HATHT (Retained Earning) @TAT @< T¢I (HaHA®RT ®W (Regulatory Reserve) AT ST
T |

) dfed@l NFRSs Compliant [ faarer qaT &E Il dUeedl [add [Favveedl @
FHITTHH! (aa=eRT TS T HIEa@RT ®9 (Regulatory Reserve) HT Te6H STHAT/ @4
T |
() () TATIR faehTa Sehehl A@HIG THINTH o@T3e TRUHT FAThl AT AR a9

bl G THITTH WrawTET e (Accrual Basis) T @rsH TIRT AT ATRTHIHET
AIF a9 TAT AU Y Gl aTq TUFT TS ThH ATehedbl AT YT g aAtehl STl
AT SRTERET THHAT AT SHATITATIARB] AFFL, FHA GG qa7 TAE B
(AR SALT PV T W FHANAF IAGMIE BIY) AT FTHAT TWH A Feal T
Fichl IFAATE Ai>ad HATHT (Retained Earning) @< T [AIWASRI HITAT STFAT I
98 | I AT THEH YT g TUHT (HIHAeEr #vare |fsad §ATRT (Retained
Earning) T fRaT 79 Afes; |

() JATIR AT g ool FIST WA= J9Td @Ikd g1 a7 Financial Closure g+
FATT TS TSR] TGP AT TEATHIAT T,

JIEHTar AT (Accrual Basis) T @l TRUHI UH A@TT/Moratorium Period &
ATAAT ISR &1 Yol =Tl ThHATe  Interest Capitalized Term Loan (ICTL)
ofITFAT Gg AT THINS, |




ICTL &7 “f@ieh AUH Gsilehd TS SRTARb] IHHAT TaATAd ATCATHTARD THH Hadl
T Flhr THAATS Afeaa HATRT (Retained Earning) @< T Interest Capitalized
Reserve (ICR) @AM @i T 998 | J&¢ o@ied 9uH Interest Capitalized
Reserve (ICR) =g fara=srr #19 (Regulatory Reserve) si=iiia &q«s | ICTL =T
@I TUH ISl TS THH I HUIe=Td It (hHars ICR are wars dfad qATR
fe@TeAT |16 ATIes | 9%, ST {Seheor MRTH Yo AMEE ar | Fw_T q&l AT
TAfaga TRASATR gHAT W S URATeR HEi e g0 gfawra gveer woar
TN U FFIAT ICTL AT W@t IFHeTe ICR 91 werg dfaa qareT feamesn
I g | W @ ofeRe TRudr e IRASETR gEHT Aradnad w9
FSATATHT ATTHT FFLTHT ICTL AT @bl IFI0 IFAArs ICR a1 =ers dferd HATR
feamas T A Fibne | THET Frtegd @l IaeiEs WIBATHINH TEhl B

1. At the time of Income Recognition

Accrued Interest Receivable a/c Dr
To Interest Income Cr
2. At the time of Interest Capitalization

Interest Capitalized Term Loan (ICTL) a/c Dr
To Accrued Interest Receivable (AIR) a/c Cr
Retained Earnings a/c Dr
To Interest Capitalized Reserve(ICR) a/c Cr
3. At the time of Recovery

Cash/Bank a/c Dr

To ICTL a/c Cr

ICR a/c Dr

To Retained Earning a/c Cr

(3T) FATA EXF HoIHT ATHT QAT FHINSTH J@Tga T gl drrr (Impairment Loss)

T TF Fepepl T UTHINA | R FHITH FEH g Foll AreEr Faedr (Loan Loss
Provision) #I fasqa faa=or g FIHTEAT IR T 9+g | NFRSs aHIN® J@rsy g
FA BT ARG THA 397, (e 7. I STHISTH BAR g HSAl AT AT THH
A3 HH WUAT FH AUSIG YA ATME FGHT qis=q qATHRT (Retained Earning) @rarars
g T AIHARR HOAT TEAT T 995 | NFRSs aHIGH @@rsd g4 &si &l
AT THH TE¢ TTUAT T TG TehH [HaHTHNT Hare qisad qATHRET fhar T
s |

qataR faer Seher quTer fairr wiqeema (NFRSs) st Fair value through profit
or loss ®T <I@TgT TXHl AMHIET AT A= F gerae<dT Fair value gain (unrealized
gain) STHT S<h ATHRT ThAATs dsad HqATHT (Retained Earning) @rdrars @ I
IR HTAT STHAT T I | [MIATHENT STHT ST#AT AUHT 7FA NFRSs aHiH
Frafeaa grataeR Fair value gain @r&el ar Fair value l0ss ST S@ATHT 1 THAATS
AN FTHT (HAHASRT FITaTe qfsad qATRAT fRAT T AiFs; |

FEATTHTARP! ATHL, HUATT Sg JAT L P (IR SHIST BT T YR

R




JUATTE SURENIE PIY) AT AT TRPT T hadl T sl THAATS IR ATehy FHART
TEql ThH T ofeby gwata fasRl AURT FUHT o1 W@YASTART AT TANT ] ATHT
T Srvare afs=ra ARt @raraT fEar a9 afe |

(I) faira forazoreer AlS=rq H{ATHT /a1 A= (RO AT HATHT T FFel(rgd G2 S B
Trafd aRTERH THH Asad qATRT @ATATs @9 T (HIHAERI PIOHT SFT T T4, |
TN HYHT I TUET & T F qErdal ged (Carrying Amount) ®T &8I STTH
g |

(F) ATHT @I STHITSTH Goodwill w@Ts= &l “@rg= &l aqaT Goodwill &1 faaret
I (Carrying Amount) SRTEREN THH Afoad HATHRT GIATdTs @ TR THTHRT HITHT
SEAT T 9N | AT, Goodwill T ETHT HTRITT (Impairment Loss) ATRT wreT femerar
g9 «@rsd I Goodwill FT fFATET HeA (Carrying Amount) STdel SAAZATAT &1 AT
TRTAXHT TFH HIHAHTE FITATE Ffsaa TATRT GIATHT Rl T dfehes; |

(T) ATHT F@THId FHITH Merger/acquisition @ fafsfa Bargain Purchase Gain &1 @@Ts+
THT F@Tg &6l qUHT &bl fharal Hea (Carrying Amount) aRTER! THH Alad
HATRT @TATATE @ LT (AT HITHT FTHAT T 998 T &7 TH Bonus Share =T
T JATSRT AT | JANT T+ 4fb & | @19, Bargain Purchase Gain &I &HaTE
BonusShare FETH(qeT TN FHAtregd FAREET0 faaqmraT Je1 71 drel faeqa faawor afeq
qT T IS | T AT TR T STUHT FFRATAT Bonus Share ST T TehHae
e FIvare disaa AATRT @arET fhal T9 dfees, |

(@) ATET JEEIT FHNTH FHANT @bl @Tg &l dMHiThd qeATs9 (Actuary Valuation)
FuifeTy fas™T 9UsT Actuarial Loss @Ts Other Comprehensive Income HT @TgH ST
HITITHT |1 SRTREF] THH Ao HATHT @ATAls @ T [AIHAHN BITHT ST T
T | Actuarial Loss FH WUHT FH AUST IHH MIHAHRI HUeTE Fl>aq HATHT @IATHT
fomdt 7 aferea |

(T) @I THINTH e @ TehH ATRT AT Qe «@rg= 9% Other Comprehensive
Income WTHd a7 ATh Ifwdrar wmrgd WE fEdT femma ewnider @t oo
HOMCHE HUHT &7 IRTERPT Afsad HATRT @IATels @9 T HIHRTHRET BT THEAT T
THE | F ATE TTAT GET SNTHAT AR @IS TUHT AT AT AT RIS
TFH (FAATERT FTHT STHT AUH THH T g6l g ) Iaaeny HeHr @< 10
fserd HATHT @TATHT ST T AihAs; |

() AT Il TaRATaTehdl aratead  qaaser faaner i fevawifaaer e
FIR-HRI HITHT GHRETS IS, |

() Afsad HATHRT @ T FHAATHRT FITH] STEHT AUH THH [FAATSRT Hoare O i
HATHTAT FRAT g faedT AUAT MaAaeR] Hiuere fhdl g4 IHH Al HITH] STHT HUH
TR VST TET B |

FTor ATy FITAT STHAT TUHT THH T FaTHT Sledgd <l TIH TF Aebel [GUHT TR
STEehehl JALATHT G T SIS |

I HTIHT STEAT URT JAT @ UH! T Fled BITAT AUH! RadTh! [aaur ATHT
fafrer fara=urert <r@m gvaedT feoadf (Notes to Accounts) AT Seet@ (Disclose) I, |
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4.

AT HreT fe@TeET d@rgs A9s Other Comprehensive Income HThd <i@Tgehd g4 1T 9f;
Retained Earning AT SI@TSHhH &al aT AT faaRr 9 T @IEHA el 0 Hiqerd & General
Reserve T STFT I, |

ISl ¥ F9rH
Q) T depere A SRT TRTHT TETTHT (Heees el TRUH 3 -

THIEHT a9, 050 H J@T Ald qd7 o fqaRuess! gi=n qw=dr saaedr M =,
¥ a1 SN TRRuer fHeew dar @1 geend fAfg 05y U9 HETAE™ SR qUST I
farerrevT FFafead TRl 9RaTes |

() JUEET (@) THIAT @RS TRUST G99 T IRATHITH AT THT FH FRAET T
e Fwifa® 9U TeH AT, |
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Name of the Infrastructure Development Bank

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Note Year Year Year Year
Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 4.1
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2
Placement with Bank and Financial
Institutions 4.3
Derivative financial instruments 4.4
Other trading assets 4.5
Loan and advances to B/FIs 4.6
Loans and advances to customers 4.7
Investment securities 4.8
Current tax assets 4.9
Investment in subsidiaries 4.10
Investment in associates 4.11
Investment property 4.12
Property and equipment 4.13
Goodwill and Intangible assets 4.14
Deferred tax assets 4.15
Other assets 4.16
Total Assets
Current Previous Current Previous
Note Year Year Year Year
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 4.17
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.18
Derivative financial instruments 4.19
Deposits from customers 4.20
Borrowing 4.21
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9
Provisions 4.22
Deferred tax liabilities 4.15
Other liabilities 4.23
Debt securities issued 4.24
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25
Total liabilities
Equity
Share capital 4.26

oy,



Share premium
Retained earnings

Reserves 4.27
Total equity attributable to equity
holders

Non-controlling interest

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

Contingent liabilities and commitment 4.28

Net assets value per share

Name of the Infrastructure Development Bank

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended ......Asar 20.......

Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Note Year Year Year Year

Interest income 4.29

Interest expense 4.30

Net interest income

Fee and commission income 4.31

Fee and commission expense 4.32

Net fee and commission income

Net interest, fee and commission income

Net trading income 4.33

Other operating income 4.34

Total operating income

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans

and other losses 4.35

Net operating income

Operating expense

Personnel expenses 4.36

Other operating expenses 4.37

Depreciation & Amortization 4.38

Operating Profit

Non operating income 4.39

Non operating expense 4.40

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense 441

%



Current Tax
Deferred Tax

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank
Non-controlling interest

Profit for the year

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

Name of the Infrastructure Development Bank

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended ......Asar 20.......

Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Note Year Year Year Year

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
e Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
e Gains/(losses) on revalution
e Atuarial gains/(losse) on defined benefit plans
e Income tax relating to above items
Net other comprehsive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
e Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge
e Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation)
e Income tax relating to above items
e Reclassify to profit or loss
Net other comprehsive income that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
c) Share of other comprehensive income of associate accounted as per equited method
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank
Non-controlling interest

Total comprehensive income for the period

L9



Name of the Infrastructure Development Bank

Group
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
5
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earnina
Other

reserve

Total

Non-controlling

interest

Total equity

Balance at Sawan 1, 20...

Adjustment/Restatement
Adjusted/Restated balance at Sawan 1, 20.....
Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
Gains/(losses) on revalution
Atuarial gains/(losse) on defined benefit plans
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge
Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation)
Total comprehensive income for the year
Transfer to reserve during the year
Transfer from reserve during the year
Transactions with owners, directly recognised in equity
Share issued
Share based payments
Dividends to equity holders
Bonus shares issued

Cash dividend paid
Other

Total contributions by and distributions

Balance at Asar end 20.....

Balance at Sawan 1, 20......

Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
Gains/(losses) on revalution
Atuarial gains/(losse) on defined benefit plans
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge
Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation)
Total comprehensive income for the year

Nl



Transfer to reserve during the year
Transfer from reserve during the year
Transactions with owners, directly recognized in equity

Share issued
Share based payments
Dividends to equity holders
Bonus shares issued
Cash dividend paid

Other

Total contributions by and distributions

Balance at Asar end 20.....

Bank
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
b2 2 35 o
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Balance at Sawan 1, 20...

Adjustment/Restatement
Adjusted/Restated balance at Sawan 1, 20.....
Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
Gains/(losses) on revalution
Atuarial gains/(losse) on defined benefit plans
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge
Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation)
Total comprehensive income for the year
Transfer to reserve during the year
Transfer from reserve during the year
Transactions with owners, directly recognised in equity
Share issued
Share based payments
Dividends to equity holders
Bonus shares issued

Cash dividend paid
Other

Total contributions by and distributions

Non-controlling

interest
Total equity

Total



Balance at Asar end 20.....

Balance at Sawan 1, 20......

Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
Gains/(losses) on revalution
Atuarial gains/(losse) on defined benefit plans
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge
Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation)
Total comprehensive income for the year
Transfer to reserve during the year
Transfer from reserve during the year
Transactions with owners, directly recognized in equity
Share issued
Share based payments
Dividends to equity holders
Bonus shares issued
Cash dividend paid

Other

Total contributions by and distributions

Balance at Asar end 20.....
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Name of the Infrastructure Development Bank
Consolidated Statement of cash flows

For the year ended ........Asar 20.......
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Fees and other income received

Divided received

Receipts from other operating activities

Interest paid

Commission and fees paid

Cash payment to employees

Other expense paid

Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities

(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Placement with bank and financial institutions
Other trading assets

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers

Other assets

Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities
Due to bank and financial institutions

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposit from customers

Borrowings

Other liabilities

Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid
Income taxes paid

Net cash flow from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investment securities

Receipts from sale of investment securities

Purchase of property and equipment

Receipt from the sale of property and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Receipt from the sale of intangible assets

Purchase of investment properties

Receipt from the sale of investment properties
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Interest received
Dividend received

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipt from issue of debt securities

Repayment of debt securities

Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities
Repayment of subordinated liabilities

Receipt from issue of shares

Dividends paid

Interest paid

Other receipt/payment

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at Sawan 1, 20.......
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held

Cash and cash equivalents at Asar end 20.....

Name of the Infrastructure Development Bank
Notes to the consolidated financialstatements

for the year
ended...... Asar........

1 Reporting entity
General and background information of infrastructure developmentbank and its subsidiary.
This shall also include the principal activities and location of the head office of the reporting
entity.

2 Basis of Preparation

2.1 | Statement of compliance

2.2 | Reporting period and approval of financial statements

2.3 | Functional and presentation currency

2.4 | Use of Estimates, assumptions and judgments

2.5 | Changes in Accounting policies

2.6 | New standards issued but not yet effective

2.7 | New Standards and interpretation not adopted

2.8 | Discounting

3 Significant Accounting Policies

R




3.1 | Basis of Measurement
3.2 | Basis of consolidation
a. Business combination
b. non controlling interest (NCI)
c. Subsidiaries
d.Loss of Control
e. Special Purpose Entity (SPE)
f.Transaction elimination on consolidation
3.3 | Cash andcash equivalent
3.4 | Financial assets and financial liabilities
Recognition
Classification
Measurement
De-recognition
Determination of fair value
Impairment
3.5 | Trading assets
3.6 | Derivatives assets and derivative liabilities
3.7 | Property and Equipment
3.8 | Goodwill Intangible assets
3.9 | Investment Property
3.10 | Income tax
Current Tax
Deferred Tax
3.11 | Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities
3.12 | Provisions
3.13 | Revenue Recognition
Interest income
Fee and commission income
Dividend income
Net trading income
Net income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss
3.14 | Interest expense
3.15 | Employees Benefits
3.16 | Leases
3.17 | Foreign Currency translation
3.18 | Financial guarantee and loan commitment
3.19 | Share capital and reserves
3.20 | Earnings per share including diluted
3.21 | Segment reporting
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Cash and cash equivalent 4.1
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Cash in hand

Balances with B/Fls

Money at call and short notice

Other

Total

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Statutory balances with NRB

Securities purchased under resale agreement

Other deposit and receivable from NRB

Total

Placements with Bank and Financial Institutions 4.3
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Placement with domestic B/FIs

Placement with foreign B/Fls

Less: Allowances for impairment

Total

Derivative financial instruments 4.4
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Held for trading
Interest rate swap
Currency swap
Forward exchange contract
Others

Held for risk management
Interest rate swap
Currency swap
Forward exchange contract
Other

Total

Y



Other trading assets
Group

Bank

4.5

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Treasury bills
Government bonds

NRB Bonds

Domestic Corporate bonds
Equities

Other

Total

Pledged
Non-pledged

Loan and advances to B/Fls
Group

Bank

4.6

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Loans to bank and financial institutions
Less: Allowances for impairment

Total

4.6.1: Allowances for impairment

Balance at Sawan 1
Impairment loss for the year:

Charge for the year
Recoveries/reversal
Amount written off

Balance at Asar end

Loans and advances to customers
Group

Bank

4.7

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Loan and advances measured at amortized cost

Less: Impairment allowances
Collective impairment

Individual impairment

Net amount

Loan and advances measured at
FVTPL

Total
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4.7.1: Analysis of loan and advances - By Product
Group

Bank

Current Previous
Year Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Product
Long Term loans
Personal
Business
Working Capital
Overdraft (Personal)
Trust receipt/Import loans
Cash Credit Loan
Short Term WC/Demand Loans
Personal residential loans
Real estate loans
Margin lending loans
Hire purchase loans
Auto Loan
Deprived sector loans
Bills purchased
Staff loans
Other

Sub total

Interest receivable

Grand total

4.7.2: Analysis of loan and advances - By Currency
Group

Bank

Current Previous
Year Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Nepalese rupee
Indian rupee
United State dollar
Great Britain pound
Euro

Japanese yen
Chinese Yuan
Other

Total
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4.7.3: Analysis of loan and advances - By Collateral

Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Secured
Movable/immovable assets
Gold and silver
Guarantee of domestic B/Fls
Government guarantee
Guarantee of international rated bank
Collateral of export document
Collateral of fixed deposit receipt
Collateral of Government securities
Counter guarantee
Personal guarantee
Other collateral
Subtotal
Unsecured
Grant Total
4.7.4: Allowances for impairment
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Specific allowances for impairment

Balance at Sawan 1
Impairment loss for the year:
Charge for the year
Recoveries/reversal during the year
Write-offs
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency impairment
Other movement
Balance at Asar end

Collective allowances for impairment
Balance at Sawan 1

Impairment loss for the year:

Charge/(reversal) for the year

Exchange rate variance on foreign currency impairment
Other movement
Balance at Asar end
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Total allowances for impairment

Investment securities 4.8
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Investment securities measured at amortized cost
Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI

Total

4.8.1: Investment securities measured at amortized cost

Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Debt securities

Government bonds

Government treasury bills

Nepal Rastra Bank bonds

Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments
Other

Less: specific allowances for impairment

Total

4.8.2: Investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Equity instruments
Quoted equity securities
Unquoted equity securities

Total
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4.8.3: Information relating to investment in equities
Group

Bank

Previous

Current Year Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Fair

Fair Fair Fair
Cost ;/alu Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value
Investment in quoted equity
........................................... Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each
........................................... Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each
Investment in unquoted equity
........................................... Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each
........................................... Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each
Total
Current tax assets 4.9
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Current tax assets
Current year income tax assets
Tax assets of prior periods
Current tax liabilities
Current year income tax liabilities
Tax liabilities of prior periods
Total
Investment in subsidiaries 410
Bank
Current Previous
Year Year

Investment in quoted subsidiaries
Investment in unquoted subsidiaries
Total investment

Less: Impairment allowances

Net carrying amount
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4.10.1: Investment in quoted subsidiaries

4.10.2: Investment in unquoted subsidiaries

4.10.3: Information relating to subsidiaries of the Bank

Equity interest held by NCI (%)
Profit/(loss) allocated during the year

Accumulated balances of NCI as on Asar end........

Bank
Current Previous
Year Year
Fair Fair
Cost Value Cost Value
Bank
Current Previous
Year Year
Fair Fair
Cost Value Cost Value
Bank

Percentage of ownership held by
the Bank

Current Previous
Year Year
Group
Current Year
..Ltd  ...Ltd. ...Ltd  ...Ltd.
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Dividend paid to NCI

Previous Year

..Ltd  ...Ltd. ..Ltd ... Ltd.
Equity interest held by NCI (%)
Profit/(loss) allocated during the year
Accumulated balances of NCI as on Asar end........
Dividend paid to NCI
Investment in associates
Group
Current Previous Current
Year Year Year
Investment in quoted associates
Investment in unquoted associates
Total investment
Less: Impairment allowances
Net carrying amount
4.11.1: Investment in quoted associates
Group Bank
Previous
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Year
) Fair . .
Fair Fair Fair
Cost Value Cost ;/alu Cost Value Cost Value
.................................. Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each
.................................. Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each
Total
411.2: Investment in unquoted
associates
Group Bank
Previous
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Year
) Fair . .
Fair Fair Fair
Cost Value Cost ;/alu Cost Value Cost Value
............................... Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each
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4.11.3: Information relating to associates of the Bank

Group Bank
Percentage of Percentage of
ownership held by the ownership held by the
Bank Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
........................................... Ltd.
........................................... Ltd.
........................................... Ltd.
........................................... Ltd.
4.11.4: Equity value of associates
Group
Current Previous
Year Year
........................................... Ltd.
........................................... Ltd.
Total
Investment properties 4.12
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Investment properties measured at fair
value
Balance ason Sawan 1, ........

Addition/disposal during the year
Net changes in fair value during the year
Adjustment/transfer

Net amount

Investment properties measured at
cost

Balance as on Sawan 1, ........
Addition/disposal during the year
Adjustment/transfer
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Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment loss

Net amount

Total
_ 4.13
Property and Equipment
Group
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Cost

As on Sawan 1, 20X0
Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization
Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revaluation
Balance as on Asar end 20X1
Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization
Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revaluation

Balance as on Asar end 20X2

Depreciation and Impairment

As on Sawan 1, 20X0
Depreciation charge for the Year
Impairment for the year
Disposals
Adjustment

Ason Asar end 20X1
Impairment for the year
Depreciation charge for the Year
Disposals
Adjustment

As on Asar end 20X2

Capital Work in Progress
Net Book Value

As on Asar end 20X0

As on Asar end 20X1

As on Asar end 20X2

3




Bank

Particulars

Land

Building

Leasehold
Properties

&

Computer
Accessories
Vehicles

&

Furniture
Fixture

&

Equipment

Machinery
Others

Total 31st Asar

20X2

Total Asar End

20X1

Cost
As on Sawan 1, 20X0
Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization
Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revaluation
Balance as on Asar end 20X1
Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization
Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revaluation

Balance as on Asar end 20X2

Depreciation and Impairment

As on Sawan 1, 20X0
Depreciation charge for the Year
Impairment for the year
Disposals
Adjustment

Ason Asar end 20X1
Impairment for the year
Depreciation charge for the Year
Disposals
Adjustment

As on Asar end 20X2

Capital Work in Progress
Net Book Value

As on Asar end 20X0

As on Asar end 20X1

As on Asar end 20X2

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Group

4.14

Particulars

Goodwill

Software

Purchased

Developed

Other

Total
Asar end
20X2

Total
Asar
end

20X1

Cost

As on Sawan 1, 20X0

Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization

Disposal during the year

Adjustment/Revaluation

Balance as on Asar end 20X1
Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization
Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revluation
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Balance as on Asar end 20X2

Amortization and Impairment
As on Sawan 1, 20X0
Amortization charge for the Year
Impairment for the year
Disposals

Adjustment

As on Asar end 20X1
Amortization charge for the Year
Impairment for the year
Disposals

Adjustment

As on Asar end 20X2

Capital Work in Progress
Net Book Value

As on Asar end 20X0

As on Asar end 20X1

As on Asar end 20X2

Bank
Software Total X(S);arl
Particulars Goodwill Purchased | Developed Other | Asar end ond
20X2
20X1
Cost

As on Sawan 1, 20X0
Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization
Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revaluation

Balance as on Asar end 20X1
Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization
Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revluation

Balance as on Asar end 20X2

Amortization and Impairment
As on Sawan 1, 20X0
Amortization charge for the Year
Impairment for the year
Disposals

Adjustment

Ason Asar end 20X1
Amortization charge for the Year
Impairment for the year
Disposals

Adjustment

As on Asar end 20X2

Capital Work in Progress
Net Book Value

As on Asar end 20X0

As on Asar end 20X1

As on Asar end 20X2
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Deferred Tax

4.15

Group Bank
Current Year Current Year

Net Net
Deferred Deferr Deferred De;‘er DeJer Deferred
Te erre ed Tax Tax _rlfe _rl_e Tax
Aax t Liabili Assets/ Aax t Laxb'l Assets/

. SSELS ties (Liabilitie SS€ .t.'a ! (Liabiliti
Particulars 5) s fties es)
Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items

Loan and Advance to B/Fls

Loans and advances to customers

Investment properties

Investment securities

Property & equipment

Employees’ defined benefit plan

Lease liabilities

Provisions

Other temporary differences
Deferred tax on temporary differences
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate
Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on year end of ........

Recognised in profit or loss

Recognised in other comprehensive income

Recognised directly in equity

Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on Shrawan 1, ........

Origination/(Reversal) during the year

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in profit or loss

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in other comprehensive income

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in directly in equity
Previous Year Previous Year

Net Net

Deferred Deferr Deferred rD:Jer rDeeJer Deferred
Tax ed Tax Tax Tax Tax Tax
Assets Liabili Assets/ Asset Liabil Assets/

. ties (Liabilitie iti (Liabiliti
Particulars 5) s mes es)

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Loan and Advance to B/Fls
Loans and advances to customers
Investment properties

%



Investment securities

Property & equipment
Employees' defined benefit plan
Lease liabilities

Provisions

Other temporary differences

Deferred tax on temporary differences

Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses

Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate

Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on year end of ........

Recognised in profit or loss
Recognised in other comprehensive income
Recognised directly in equity

Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on Shrawan 1,

Origination/(Reversal) during the year

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in profit or loss

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in other comprehensive income

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in directly in equity

Other assets 4.16
Group Bank

Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Assets held for sale

Other non banking assets

Bills receivable

Accounts receivable

Accrued income

Prepayments and deposit

Income tax deposit

Deferred employee expenditure

Other

Total

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 4.17
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Money market deposits
Interbank borrowing

)



Other deposits from BFIs
Settlement  and  clearing
accounts

Other deposits from BFIs

Total

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.18
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Refinance from NRB
Standing Liquidity Facility
Lender of last report facility from NRB
Securities sold under
repurchase agreements
Other payable to NRB
Total
Derivative financial
instruments 4,19
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Held for trading
Interest rate swap
Currency swap
Forward exchange contract
Others
Held for risk management
Interest rate swap
Currency swap
Forward exchange contract
Other
Total
Deposits from customers 4.20
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Institutions customers:
Term deposits
Call deposits
Current deposits

=



Other

Individual customers:
Term deposits
Saving deposits
Current deposits
Other

Total

4.20.1: Currency wise analysis of deposit from customers

Group

Bank

Nepalese rupee
Indian rupee
United State dollar
Great Britain pound
Euro

Japenese yen
Chinese yuan

Other

Total

Borrowing

Group

Bank

421

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Domestic Borrowing

Nepal Government

Other Institutions

Other

Sub total

Foreign Borrowing

Foreign Bank and Financial
Institutions

Multilateral Development
Banks

Other Institutions

Sub total

Total

Provisions

Group

Bank

4.22

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Provisions for redundancy

R



Provision for restructuring
Pending legal issues and tax
litigation

Onerous contracts

Other

4.21.1: Movement in provision

Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Balance at Sawan 1

Provisions made during the

year

Provisions used during the

year

Provisions reversed during the

year

Unwind of discount

Balance at Asar end

Other liabilities 4.23
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Liability for employees defined benefit obligations
Liability for long-service
leave

Short-term employee benefits
Bills payable

Creditors and accruals

Interest payable on deposit
Interest payable on borrowing
Liabilities on deferred grant
income

Unpaid Dividend

Liabilities under  Finance
Lease

Employee bonus payable
Other

Total

qo00



4.22.1: Defined benefit obligations

Group Bank
The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position are as follows:
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Present value of unfunded
obligations
Present value of funded
obligations
Total present value of
obligations
Fair value of plan assets
Present  value of  net
obligations
Recognized liability for defined benefit obligations
4.22.2: Plan assets
Group Bank
Plan assets comprise
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Equity securities
Government bonds
Bank deposit
Other
Total
Actual return on plan assets
4.22.3: Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Defined benefit obligations at Sawan 1
Actuarial losses
Benefits paid by the plan
Current service costs and interest
Defined benefit obligations at Asar end
4.22.4: Movement in the fair value of plan assets
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Fair value of plan assets at Sawan 1

909



Contributions paid into the plan
Benefits paid during the year
Actuarial (losses) gains
Expected return on plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at Asar end

4.22.5: Amount recognized in profit or loss

Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Current service costs
Interest on obligation
Expected return on plan assets
Total
4.22.6: Amount recognized in other comprehensive income
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Actuarial (gain)/loss
Total
4.22.7: Actuarial assumptions
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Discount rate
Expected return on plan asset
Future salary increase
Withdrawal rate
Debt securities issued 4.24
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Debt securities issued designated as at fair value through profit or loss
Debt securities issued at
amortized cost
Total
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25 4.25
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Redeemable preference shares
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Irredeemable cumulative preference shares (liabilities component)
Other

Total

Share capital 4.26
Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Ordinary shares
Convertible preference shares (equity component only)
Irredeemable preference shares (equity component only)
Perpetual debt (equity
component only)
Total
4.25.1: Ordinary shares
Bank
Current Previous
Year Year
Authorized Capital
...................... Ordinary share of Rs.
100 each
Issued capital
...................... Ordinary share of Rs.
100 each
Subscribed and paid up
capital
...................... Ordinary share of Rs.
100 each
Total
4.25.2: Ordinary share ownership
Bank
Current Year Previous Year

Percent Amount

Percent Amount

Domestic ownership
Nepal Government
"A" class licensed institutions
Other licensed institutions
Other Institutions
Public
Other
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Foreign ownership
Total

Reserves
Group

Bank

4.27

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Statutory general reserve
Exchange equalization reserve
Corporate social responsibility reserve
Capital redemption reserve
Regulatory reserve
Investment adjustment reserve
Capital reserve

Assets revaluation reserve
Fair value reserve

Dividend equalization reserve
Actuarial gain

Special reserve

Other reserve

Total

Contingent  liabilities and
commitments

Group

Bank

4.28

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Contingent liabilities

Undrawn and undisbursed facilities
Capital commitment

Lease Commitment

Litigation

Total

q0%



4.28.1: Contingent liabilities

Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Acceptance and documentary credit
Bills for collection

Forward exchange contracts
Guarantees

Underwriting commitment

Other commitments

Total

4.28.2: Undrawn and undisbursed facilities

Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Undisbursed amount of loans
Undrawn limits of overdrafts
Undrawn limits of credit cards
Undrawn limits of letter of credit
Undrawn limits of guarantee

Total

4.28.3: Capital commitments
Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the bank but provision has not been made
in financial statements

Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Capital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment

Approved and contracted for
Approved but not contracted for

Sub total

Capital commitments in relation to
Intangible assets

Approved and contracted for

Approved but not contracted for

Sub total

Total

904



4.28.4: Lease commitments

Group Bank
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Operating lease commitments
Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating lease, where the bank is
lessee

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

Later than 5 years

Sub total

Finance lease commitments
Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating lease, where the bank is
lessee

Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years

Sub total

Grand total

4.28.5: Litigation

Explanatory paragraphs are required for litigation contingent liabilities as per their own case of
each bank

Interest income 4.29
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Cash and cash equivalent

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Placement with bank and financial institutions

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers

Investment securities

Loan and advances to staff

Other

Total interest income

Interest expense 4.30
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

90%



Due to bank and financial institutions
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposits from customers

Borrowing

Debt securities issued

Subordinated liabilities

Other

Total interest expense

Fees and Commission Income

Bank

431
Group

Current
Year

Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year

Loan administration fees
Service fees

Consortium fees
Commitment fees

DD/TT/Swift fees
Credit card/ATM
renewal fees

Prepayment and swap fees
Investment banking fees
Asset management fees
Brokerage fees
Remittance fees

Commission on letter of credit
Commission on guarantee contracts
issued

Commission on share
underwriting/issue

Locker rental

Other fees and commission income

issuance and

Total fees and Commission
Income

Fees and commission expense

Bank

4.32
Group

Current
Year

Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year

ATM management fees
VISA/Master card fees
Guarantee commission
Brokerage
DD/TT/Swift fees
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Remittance fees and commission
Other fees and commission expense

Total fees and Commission
EXxpense

Net trading income
Bank

Group

4.33

Current Previous
Year Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Changes in fair value of trading
assets

Gain/loss on disposal of trading
assets

Interest income on trading assets

Dividend income on trading assets
Gain/loss foreign exchange
transaction

Other

Net trading income

Other operating income
Bank

Group

4.34

Current Previous
Year Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Foreign exchange revaluation gain
Gain/loss on sale of investment
securities

Fair value gain/loss on investment properties
Dividend on equity instruments

Gain/loss on sale of property and
equipment

Gain/loss on sale of investment
property

Operating lease income

Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver

Other

Total

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other
losses

Bank

Group

4.35

Current Previous
Year Year

Current
Year

Previous
Year

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to B/Fls
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customer
Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment
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Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with banks and financial institutions

Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment
Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets
Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties

Total

Personnel Expense
Bank

4.36
Group

Current Previous
Year Year

Current Previous
Year Year

Salary

Allowances

Gratuity expense

Provident fund

Uniform

Training & development expense
Leave encashment

Medical

Insurance

Employees incentive
Cash-settled share-based payments
Pension expense

Finance expense under NFRSs
Other expenses related to staff

Subtotal

Employees bonus

Grand total

Other operating expense
Bank

4.37

Group

Current Previous
Year Year

Current Previous
Year Year

Directors' fee

Directors' expense

Auditors' remuneration

Other audit related expense
Professional and legal expense
Office administration expense
Operating lease expense

Operating expense of investment
properties

Corporate  social  responsibility
expense

Onerous lease provisions
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Other

Total

Depreciation & Amortization 4.38
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Depreciation on property and

equipment

Depreciation on investment property

Amortization of intangible assets

Total

Non operating income 4.39
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Recovery of loan written off

Other income

Total

Non operating expense 4.40
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Loan written off

Redundancy provision

Expense of restructuring

Other expense

Total

Income tax expense 441
Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Current tax expense
Current year
Adjustments for prior years

Deferred tax expense

Origination and reversal of temporary differences
Changes in tax rate

Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses
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Total income tax expense

4.41.1: Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit

Bank Group
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Profit before tax
Tax amount at tax rate of.......... %
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose
Less: Tax effect on exempt income
Add/less: Tax effect on other items
Total income tax expense
Effective tax rate
Statement of distributable profit or loss
For the year ended
(As per NRB Regulation)
Bank
Current Previous
Year Year

Opening Retained Earning
Add: Adjustment
Add: T/f from acquired institutions
Less: Bonus Share Issued and Cash Dividend Paid
Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss
Appropriations:
a. General reserve
b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund
c. Capital redemption reserve
d. Corporate social responsibility fund
e. Employees' training fund
f. Other

Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment

Regulatory adjustment :
a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+)
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+)
c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+)
d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+)
e. Deferred tax assets recognized (-)/ reversal (+)
f. Goodwill recognized (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+)
0. Bargain purchase gain recognized (-)/reversal (+)
h. Actuarial loss recognized (-)/reversal (+)

119



i. Other (+/-)
- Unrealized Gain on trading assets measured at Fair Value
Through Profit or Loss

Total Distributable Profit or (Loss)

5. Disclosure & Additional Information

5.1 | Risk management

Credit risk

Market risk

Liquidityrisk

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

9%



5.2

Capital management

Bank or Financial Instituion shall disclose following information in regard of capital
management:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Qualitative disclosures

Summary information of objectives, policies and processes for managing
capital, terms and conditions of the main features of all capital instruments,
especially in the case of innovative, complex or hybrid capital instruments.

Quantitative disclosures

1.

Capital structure and capital adequacy

o Tier 1 capital and a breakdown of its components;
o Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components;

o Detailed information about the Subordinated Term Debts with
information on the outstanding amount, maturity, and amount raised
during the year and amount eligible to be reckoned as capital funds.

o Deductions from capitla;
o Total qualifying capitla;
o Capital adequacy ratio;

o Summary of the bank’s internal approach to assess the adequacy of its
capital to support current and future activities, if applicable; and

oSummary of the terms, conditions and main features of all capital
instruments, especially in case of subordinated term debts including
hybrid capital instruments.

Risk exposures

o Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational
Risk;

o Risk Weighted Exposures under each of 11 categories of Credit Risk;

o Total risk weighted exposure calculation table;

o Amount of NPAs (both Gross and Net)

Compliance with external requirement

Whether during the period it complied with any externally imposed capital
requirements to which it is subject and the consequences of such non-
compliance in case the institution has not complied with those requirements.

5.3

Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

54 Operating Segment Information

1. General information
(a) Factors that management used to identify the entity’s reportable segments
(b) Description of the types of products and services from which each reportable

segment derives its revenues

. Information about profit or loss, assets and liabilities
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All

Particulars Reportable | Reportable | Reportable | ........ Other

Segment1l | Segment2 | Segment 3

Total

(@) | Revenues from external customers

(b) | Intersegment revenues

(c) | Net Revenue

(d) | Interest revenue

(e) | Interest expense

(f) | Net interest revenue(b)

(9) | Depreciation and amortisation

(h) | Segment profit /(loss)

Entity’s interest in the profit or
loss of associates accounted for
(i) | using equity method

(i) | Other material non-cash items:

(K) | Impairment of assets

() | Segment assets

(m) | Segment liabilities

An entity shall disclose the following about each reportable segment if the specified
amounts are included in the measure of segment assets reviewed by the chief operating
decision maker or are otherwise regularly provided to the chief operating decision
maker.

(@) Investment in associates accounted for by the equity method

(b) Amounts of additions to non-current assets other than financial instruments,
deferred tax assets, post-employment benefit assets and rights arising under
insurance contracts.

3.Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities
(a) Basis of accounting for any transactions between reportable segments.

b) Nature of any differences between the measurements of the reportable segments’
y p g
profits or losses and the entity’s profit or loss before income tax.

(c) Nature of any differences between the measurements of the reportable segments’
assets and the entity’s asset.

(d) Nature of any changes from prior periods in the measurement methods used to
determine reported segment profit or loss and the effect, if any, and

(e) Nature and effect of any asymmetrical allocations to reportable segments.
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4.Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and

liabilities
(@ Revenue
Total revenues for reportable segments XXXX
Other revenues XXXX
Elimination of intersegment revenues (Xxxx)
Entity’s revenues XXXX

(b) Profit or loss

Total profit or loss for reportable segments XXXX
Other profit or loss XXXX
Elimination of intersegment profits (XXxXX)
Unallocated amounts:
............ XXXX
............ (XxxXx)
Profit before income tax XXXX
(c) Assets
Total assets for reportable segments XXXX
Other assets XXXX
Unallocated amounts (XXxX)
Entity’s assets XXXX
(d) Liabilities
Total liabilities for reportable segments XXXX
Other liabilities XXXX
Unallocated liabilities (XxxXx)
Entity’s liabilities XXXX

5. Information about products and services
Revenue from each type of product and services described in point no. 1(b) above

(a) ............. XXXX
(b) .............. XXXX
(c) ............... XXXX

6. Information about geographical areas
Revenue from following geographical areas

(a) | Domestic XXXX
Province 1 XXXX
Province 2 XXXX
Province 3 XXXX
Province 4 XXXX
Province 5 XXXX
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Province 6 XXXX
Province 7 XXXX

(b) | Foreign XXXX
Total XXXX

7. Information about major customers

Information about the extent of its reliance on its major customers, if revenue
from a single external customer amounts to 10 percent or more of the entity’s

revenue.
Particular Revenue | Segment
Customer 1* XXXX Segment 1
Customer 2* XXXX Segment 3
......... XXXX Segment 2
Total XXXX

* The entity does not need to disclose the name of the customer

5.5 | Share options and share based payment

5.6 | Contingent liabilities and commitment

5.7 | Related parties disclosures

5.8 | Merger and acquisition

5.9 | Additional disclosures of non consolidated entities

5.10 Classification of Loans, Advances & Bill Purchase and Provisioning

Classification of Loans, Advances & Bill Purchase and Provisioning

(Amount in Million)

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Total

Advances

Total

Loan and | Provisions | Loan and | Provisions

Advances

1. Performing Loan and Advances

1.1 Pass Loan

1.1.1 Pass Loan (other than
Restructured/Rescheduled Covid
Related)

1.1.2 Pass Loan
(Restructured/Rescheduled Covid
Related)

1.2 Watch List

2. Non-Performing Loan and Advances

2.1 Restructured / Rescheduled

2.2 Sub-standard

1%




2.3 Doubtful

2.4 Loss

3. Total Loan and Advances (1+2)

4. Staff Loans

5. Accrued Interest

6. Grand Total (3+4 +5)

5.11 Statement of Principal Indicators (last 5 Fiscal Years)

Indicators Unit | FY.....| FY..... FY..... FY..... FY....
Core Capital NPR
Supplementary
Capital NPR
Total Capital Fund | NPR
Risk Weighted
EXxposure NPR
Earning Per Share
(Average share
outstanding) NPR
Market Value Per
Share NPR
Book Net Worth
Per Share NPR
Number of
Promotor Equity
Shares Nos.
Number of Public
Equity Shares Nos.
Number of
Permanent Staffs Nos.
Price Earning Ratio | Times
Dividend (including
bonus) on Share
Capital Percent
Cash Dividend on
Share Capital Percent
Net Profit / Gross
Income Percent
Net Profit / Loans
and Advances Percent
Return on Total
Assets Percent
Return on Equity Percent
Interest Income /

Loans and
Advances Percent

\ 5.12 \ Events after reporting date.
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5.13 Disclosure effect of transition from previous GAAP to NFRSs

1. Reconciliation of equity

Explanato
ry Note *

As at As at
01.04.2073 31.03.2074
(End of last
(Date of  period presented
Transition) under previous

GAAP)

Total equity under Previous GAAP
Adjustments under NFRSs:
Impairment on loan and advances
Fair value & employees benefit accounting of staff loan
Lease accounting
Measurement of investment securities at fair value
Revaluation of property & equipment
Recognition of investment property
Amortisation of debt securities issued
Deferred tax
Defined benefit obligation of employees
Goodwill/Bargain purchase gain
Interest income
Other

Total Adjustment to equity

Total Equity under NFRSs

* Explanatory note is required for each line item presented in adjustment on which

transition effect has been arisen

2. Reconciliation of profit or loss

Explanatory
Note*

For the
31.03.2074

year  ended

(the latest period presented
under previous GAAP)

Previous GAAP

Adjustments under NFRSs:
Interest income
Impairment of loan and advances

Profit/(Loss) for the year
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Employees benefit amortisation under staff loan
Defined benefit obligation of employee
Operating lease expense

Amortisation expense of debt securities

Other operating income

Interest expense

Depreciation & Amortisation

Other

Total Adjustment to profit or loss

Profit or loss under NFRSs

Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive income under NFRSs

* Explanatory note is required for each line item presented in adjustment on which
transition effect has been arisen

3. Effect of NFRSs adoption for the statement of financial position

As at 31.03.2074
(End of last period

As at 01.04.2073 presented under previous
(Date of Transition) GAAP)
Y b= Y
% X 2] ° .5 A ° 2 g8 .E R E’_
. c 9 = = = SEExY T© o
Particulars s 2% ga £ 2 s@ayg 3 ¢
oz > < 8%2 2,38 ¢S > < Et%z o 0
xS £< £ L g EgEES L< SWEL E U
w < o O wkF = 8&55% o C O vl & < @2
Assets

Cash and cash equivalent

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions
Derivative financial instruments
Other trading assets

Loan and advances to B/FIs
Loans and advances to customers
Investment securities

Current tax assets

Investment in susidiaries
Investment in associates
Investment property

Property and equipment
Goodwill and Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets
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Other assets

Total Assets

Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Instituions
Due to Nepal Rastra

Bank

Derivative financial instruments
Deposits from customers
Borrowing

Current Tax Liabilities
Provisions

Deferred tax liabilities

Other liabilities

Debt securities issued
Subordinated Liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity

Share capital
Share premium
Retained earnings
Reserves

Total equity attributable to equity holders
Non-controlling interest

Total equity -
Total liabilities and
equity

* Explanatory note is required for each line item which has been impacted by transition

4. Effect of NFRSs adoption for statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income

B For the year ended 31.03.2074
> (the latest period presented under
> previous GAAP)
S
= = o 8 [
_ g 2. _2°4 E&g

Particulars 3 S g S < o 3
> et b LL & o L
L a O We=cZz a2

Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense
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Net fee and commission income

Net interest, fee and commission income

Net trading income
Other operating income
Total operating income

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans
and other losses
Net operating income

Operating expense
Personnel expenses
Other operating expenses
Depreciation & Amortisation
Operating Profit
Non operating income
Non operating expense
Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Current Tax

Deferred Tax
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total Comprehensive

* Explanatory note is required for each line item presented in adjustment on which
transition effect has been arisen

5. Effect of NFRSs adoption for statement of cash flows

For the vyear ended 31.03.2074
(the latest period presented under

> previous GAAP)

(@]

© Previou Effect  of Amount
Particulars ‘_g_ *?8 s GAAP Transition as  per

53 to NFRSs NFRSs

Net cash flows from operating activities
Net cash flows from investing activities
Net cash flows from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the period

* Explanatory note is required for each line item
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Format for Interim Financial Reporting

Name of the Infrastructure Development Bank

Unaudited Financial Results (Quarterly)
......... Quarter ended of Fiscal Year 20...../20.....

Rs. in '000'

Statement of Financial Position

Assets

This Quarter
Ending

Previous
Quarter Ending

Corresponding
Previous  Quarter
Ending

Cash and cash equivalent

Due from NRB and placements with BFIs
Loan and advances

Investments Securities

Investment in subsidiaries and associates
Goodwill and intangible assets

Other assets

Total Assets

Capital and Liabilities

Paid up Capital

Reserves and surplus

Deposits

Borrowings

Bond and Debenture

Other liabilities and provisions

Total Capital and Liabilities

Statement of Profit or Loss

Up to this
Quarter

Up to Previous
Quiarter

Up to
Corrosponding
Previous Year
Quarter

Interest income

Interest expense
Net interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense
Net fee and commission income

Other operating income
Total operating income

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other
losses
Net operating income

Personnel expenses
Other operating expenses
Operating profit
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Non operating income/expense
Profit before tax

Income tax

Profit /(loss) for the period

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Distributable Profit

Net profit/(loss) as per profit or loss

Add/Less: Regulatory adjustment as per NRB
Directive

Profit/(loss) after regulatory adjustments

Ratios

Capital fund to RWA

Tier 1 Capital to RWA

CET 1 Capital to RWA

Nonperforming loan (NPL) to al loan (As per NRB Directive)
Total loan loss provision to Total NPL (As per NRB Directive)
Cost of Funds

Credit to Deposit Ratio ( As per NRB Directive)

Base Rate

Basic Earnings Per Share

Diluted Earnings Per Share

Return on Equity

Return on Assets

TEEHIT: Return on Equity @97 Return on Assets & foazwr sifife sawT @R ‘Tiﬁ | ¥ I®
HATAETH! UM T AANH HAafaet o q91 Al srafret AEa Ao T4 S |

Segmental Reporting

The reportable segment of each bank may differ from the other; the commercial banks should
publish the segmental reporting as per the requirement of NFRSs in their own format.
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Name of the Bank or Financial Institution

Comparison Unaudited and Audited Financial Statements as of FY ....... [eeesenens
Rs. in
'000'
Statement of Financial Position As  per | As  per Variance Reasons
unaudited Audited 0 for
Financial Financial In In % Variance
Assets Statement Statement amount

Cash and cash equivalent

Due from NRB and placements with BFIs
Loan and advances

Investments Securities

Investment in subsidiaris and associates
Goodwill and intangible assets

Other assets

Total Assets

Capital and Liabilities

Paid up Capital

Reserves and surplus

Deposits

Borrowings

Bond and Debenture

Other liabilities and provisions

Total Capital and Liabilities

Statement of Profit or Loss

Interest income

Interest expense
Net interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense
Net fee and commission income

Other operating income
Total operaing income

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and
other losses

Net operating income

Personnel expenses
Other operating expenses
Operating profit

Non operating income/expense
Profit before tax

Income tax

Profit /(loss) for the period
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Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Distributable Profit

Net profit/(loss) as per profit or loss

Add/Less: Regulatory adjustment as per
NRB Directive

Profit/(loss) after regulatory adjustments

Brief explanations on accounts head of the Statement of Financial Position
Assets Side

1.

Cash and cash equivalent

This account shall be used for presenting the total amount of cash-in-hand, balances with
other bank and financial institutions, money at call and short notice, and highly liquid
financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date
that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the
licensed institution in the management of its short term commitments.

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Statutory balances held with Nepal Rastra Bank for compulsory cash reserve, securities
purchased from Nepal Rastra Bank under resale agreement and other deposits with and
receivables from Nepal Rastra Bank shall be presented under this account head.

Placement with bank and financial institutions

Placements with domestic as well as foreign bank and financial institutions with original
maturities of more than three months from the acquisition date are presented under this
account head.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative instruments like interest rate swap, currency swap, forward foreign exchange
contract etc. held for trading as well as risk management purposes shall be presented
under this head.

Other trading assets

Trading assets are those assets that the licensed institution acquires principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term, or holds as part of a portfolio that is managed together
for short-term profit shall be presented under this account head. The other trading asset
includes non derivative financial assets. It includes Government bonds, NRB Bonds,
Domestic Corporate bonds, Treasury bills, Equities etc held primarily for the trading
purpose.

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions

Loan and advances given to bank and financial institutions shall be presented under this
head. Specific impairment on loan and advance to bank and financial institutions shall be
deducted.
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7. Loan and advances to customers.

Under this head, sum of the outstanding amount of all loans and advances extended to the
customers other than BFIs as well as bills purchased and discounted less the amount of
impairment allowances shall be presented. Loan to employees provided according to the
Employees Bylaws of the licensed institution shall also be presented under this head.

8. Investments securities

Investments made by the licensed institutions in financial instruments shall be presented
under this account head in three categories i.e. investment securities designated at fair
value through profit or loss, investment securities measured at amortized cost and
investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Investment other than those measured at amortized cost shall be measure at fair value and
changes in fair value shall be recognized in profit or loss, or other comprehensive income
as per the business model adopted by the infrastructure developmentbank for the specific
securities. Where income from the investment is received in the form of bonus shares, the
valuation of investment shall be made by increasing the number of shares only without
changing in the cost of investment. The financial institutions shall disclose following
particulars in respect of investment in shares and debenture/bond.

a. Following particulars shall clearly be disclosed in respect of investment in shares of
other companies
(1) Name of the company

(2) Type of share (ordinary or preference), in case of preference shares, including
the rate of dividend.

(3) Total number of shares subscribed (including bonus shares if received).
(4) Face value per share

(5) The cost price to licensed institution.

(6) Fair value of the shares at the end of the fiscal year.

(7) Where a company, in which the licensed institution has investment in shares, has
not declared dividend for previous 3 years, particulars indicating the same.

b. Following particulars shall clearly be disclosed in respect of investment in debentures
and bonds of other companies

(1) Name of the company

(2) Rate of Interest

(3) Installment of Debenture/bond subscribed.

(4) Face value per debenture/bond.

(5) Maturity date of debenture/bond

(6) The purchase price of the debentures/bond

(7) Fair value of the debentures/bond measured at fair value

The infrastructure developmentbank shall recognize impairment loss if any on the
investment instruments measured at amortized cost. The calculation of impairment loss
shall be as per requirement of NFRSs.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

The infrastructure developmentbank shall recognize, measure, present and disclose the
investment instruments as per the requirement of NFRSs.

Current tax assets

This will include any advance payment made by the licensed institution towards income
tax liabilities or other tax liabilities to the taxing authorities.

Investment in Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are the entities that are controlled by the bank. Investment made by the bank
in its subsidiaries shall be presented in this head under separate financial statements.
Since, the investment amount is eliminated in consolidation process, no amount shall be
presented under group financial statements.

Investment in Associates

Associates are those entities in which the bank has significant influence but not control
over the financial and operating policies. Investment made by the bank in its associates
shall be presented in this head under this account head.

Investment properties

Land or land and building other than those classified as property and equipment; and non
current assets held for sale under relevant accounting standard shall be presented under
this account head. This shall include land, land and building acquired as non banking
assets by the Bank but not sold.

Property and equipment

All assets of long-term nature (fixed) like land, building, IT equipment, fixtures and
fittings, office equipment and appliances, vehicles, machinery, leasehold developments
and capital work in progress owned by the licensed institution shall be presented under
this head.

Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill and intangible assets like computer software both purchased and internally
generated, trade mark etc. shall be presented under this account head.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets recognized as per NFRSs on temporary deductible differences, carry
forward of unused tax losses, changes in tax rate etc. shall be presented under this account
head.

Other Assets

This account will include any other tangible or intangible asset not mentioned above.
Assets held for sale, non banking assets (other than land or land and building), restricted
deposits with central banks, accounts receivable, interest receivable, accrued income,
prepayments and deposit are some of the items to be included under this head.

Liabilities and Equity side

1.

Due to bank and financial institutions

The balances in accounts maintained with the institution by other local and foreign banks
and financial institution shall be presented under this head. Interbank borrowing,
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interbank deposit, balances on settlement and clearing accounts as well as other amount
due to bank and financial institution shall be presented under this account head.

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

This account head shall also contain the amount of payable to Nepal Rastra Bank.
Amount payable to NRB shall include amount of refinance facilities, standing liquidity
facility, lender of last resort, sale and repurchase agreements, deposit from NRB etc.

Derivative financial instruments

It includes all derivative liabilities. Derivative instruments like interest rate swap,
currency swap, forward foreign exchange contract etc. held for trading as well as risk
management purposes shall be presented under this head.

Deposits from customers

All deposit accounts other than deposit from BFIs (local and foreign) and NRB shall be
presented under this account head.

Borrowing

All domestic as well as foreign borrowing other than interbank borrowing and borrowing
from Nepal Rastra Bank shall be presented under this heading. It includes borrowing from
Nepal Government, borrowing from other domestic institutions, borrowing from foreign
bank and financial institutions, multilateral development banks etc.

Current Tax Liabilities

The liabilities recognized for the purpose of current income tax, including fees, penalties
shall be included under this head.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when as a result of a past event, the licensed institution has a
present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provision
for redundancy, provision for onerous contracts, provision for restructuring, pending legal
issues and tax litigation, credit commitments and guarantees etc. shall be presented under
this account head. Followings are the additional clarification on accounts presented under
this account head.

(a) Provision for Redundancy

It shall include benefits payable as a result of employment being terminated or based
on a dismissal plan of the licensed institution. Provision for employees' termination
benefits like voluntary retirement scheme shall be presented under this account head.

(b) Provision for restructuring

Restructuring includes sale or termination of a line of business, closure of business
locations or relocation in a region, changes in management structure, fundamental
reorganizations that have a material effect on the nature and focus of the bank’s
operations etc. The provision of restructuring that is recognized as per the requirement
of NFRSs shall be presented under this account head

(c) Pending legal issues and tax litigation

Provisions recognized for any pending legal issues and tax litigation matters shall be
presented under this account head.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

(d) Onerous contracts

Provision for onerous contract is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived
by the licensed institution from a contract is lower than the unavoidable cost of
meeting its obligation under the contract. The provision amount that is recognized for
onerous contract as per NFRSs shall be presented under this heading.

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities are the amounts of income taxes payable in future periods in
respect of taxable temporary differences, shall be included under this head. Deferred tax
liabilities that are recognised as per requirement of NFRSs shall be presented under this
account head.

Other liabilities

Any residual liabilities not captured above, shall be presented under an appropriate head
in this account. Liabilities relating to employees benefits like liabilities for defined benefit
obligation gratuity and pension fund, liabilities for long-service leave, cash settled share
based payment liabilities, short-term employee benefits etc., Creditors and accruals,
Interest payable on deposit and borrowing, unearned income, unpaid dividend etc. shall
be presented under this account head.

Debt securities issued

Debenture, bond or other debt securities issued by bank shall be presented under this
broad account head.

Subordinated Liabilities

Liabilities subordinated, at the event of winding up, to the claims of depositors, debt
securities issued and other creditors shall be included here. It shall include redeemable
preference share, subordinated notes issued, borrowingsetc.

Share capital

The amount of paid up share capital of the licensed institution shall be mentioned under
this head. Amount credited in share capital by issuing bonus shares utilizing the
accumulated profit and reserves shall also be disclosed under this heading. This shall
include paid up amount of ordinary share capital and equity component of preference
share capital. The convertible preference shares which includes an option for the holder of
the shares to convert the preferred shares into a fixed number of ordinary shares at any
time after a predetermined date, irredeemable preference share and perpetual debt
instruments, the equity component that is recognized and measured as per NFRSs as
equity as well shall be presented under this heading.

Share premium

The amount of money collected on issue of shares in excess of its face value shall be
presented under this heading. The outstanding amount in this account shall not be
considered eligible for distribution of cash dividend.

Retained earnings

The accumulated profits which has not been distributed to shareholders and has been
ploughed back in the licensed institution’s operations and is free for distribution of
dividend to the shareholders shall be presented under this heading.
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15. Reserves

Licensed institution shall include the amounts received from allocation of profits or
retained earnings in connection with maintaining reserves or created from any other
process. Normally, amount shall be credited to this heading having debited the
accumulated profit and while using these reserves, the concerned reserve account shall
have to be debited. Followings are the additional clarification of account head under
reserve.

(a) General Reserve:

General reserve is the statutory reserve. In this reserve, the amount transformed
from appropriation of net profit according to the Banks and Financial Institutions
Act, 2073 shall be included. No type of dividend (cash or bonus share) shall be
distributed from the amount in general/statutory reserve. Approval of NRB shall be
required in order to use the amount in this reserve.

(b) Exchange Equalization reserve

(©)

Exchange equalization reserve is a statutory reserve. A bank which has earned
foreign exchange revaluation gain on foreign currency other than India currency has
to allocate 25 percent of such revaluation gain to this reserve as per provision of the
Bank and Financial Institution Act. Any amount allocated to exchange equalization
reserve as per the provision of the Bank and Financial Institutions Act, shall be
presented under this heading.

Fair Value Reserves

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of
financial assets that are measured at fair value and the changes in fair value is
recognized in other comprehensive income, until the assets are derecognized. The
cumulative amount of changes in fair value of those financial assets shall be
presented under this account head.

(d)Assets Revaluation Reserve

Any reserve created from revaluation of assets (such as Property & Equipment,
Intangible Assets, Investment Property) shall be presented under this heading.
Revaluation reserves often serve as a cushion against unexpected losses but may not
be fully available to absorb unexpected losses due to the subsequent deterioration in
market values and tax consequences of revaluation.

(e) Capital Reserve

(f)

The capital reserve represents the amount of those reserves which are in nature of
capital and which shall not be available for distribution of cash dividend. The
amount from share forfeiture due to non-payment of remaining amount for the
unpaid shares, capital grants received in cash or kind, capital reserve arising out of
merger and acquisition etc should be presented under this heading.

Special Reserve

Any special reserve that is created as per the specific requirement of NRB directive
or special instruction of NRB shall represent special reserve. The amount allocated
to this reserve by debiting retained earning account shall be presented under this
heading.
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(g) Capital Redemption Reserve

This head shall include the statutory reserve created for making payment towards
Redeemable Non-Convertible Preference Shares.

(h) Dividend Equalization Fund

For the purpose of maintaining uniformity in dividend payment, certain amount of
profit during the year of profit making may be transferred shall be presented under
this account head. Dividend may be distributed by debiting this account with the
approval of the Board of Directors and endorsed by the General meeting.

(i) Capital Adjustment/Equalization Fund

Any amount that is allocated from the amount retained profit to a reserve that is
created for the raising capital of the Bank as well as calls is advance amount to
make up minimum paid up capital amount shall be presented under this account
head.

(J) Corporate Social Responsibility Fund

The fund created for the purpose of corporate social responsibility by allocating
profit shall be presented under this account head.

(K) Investment Adjustment Reserve

It is a regulatory reserve created as a cushion for adverse price movements in bank's
investments as directed by the Directives of Nepal Rastra Bank.

() Actuarial Gain/Loss Reserve

Actuarial gain or loss that represents change in actuarial assumptions used to value
employee obligations shall be presented under this account head.

(m) Regulatory Reserve

The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the Bank to this
reserve as per the Directive of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRSs
and which shall not be regarded as free for distribution of dividend (cash as well as
bonus shares) shall be presented under this account head. The amount allocated to
this reserve shall include interest income recognized but not received in cash,
difference of loan loss provision as per NRB directive and impairment on loan and
advance as per NFRSs (in case lower impairment is recognized under NFRSS),
amount equals to deferred tax assets, actual loss recognized in other comprehensive
income, amount of goodwill recognized under NFRSs etc.

(n) Other Reserve Fund

Any reserve created with specific or non-specific purpose (except stated in above)
shall be presented under this by disclosing accounting heads.

16. Non-controlling interest

Non-controlling interest (NCI) is the portion of equity ownership in a subsidiary not
attributable to the parent company, which has a controlling interest and consolidates the
subsidiary's financial results with its own. The bank who has a subsidiary and
consolidates the financial statement of subsidiary in its own shall present the equity
portion of the subsidiary that are attributable to the shareholders other than the bank under
this account head.
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Brief Explanations on Accounting Heads of the Statement of Profit or Loss Account

1.

Interest income

The interest income recognized as per NFRSs shall be presented under this head. This
heading shall include interest income on loan and advance, investment securities except
on those investment securities measure at fair value through profit or loss, cash and and
cash equivalent, due from Nepal Rastra Bank, due from BFIs, loan and advances to staff
etc.

Interest expense

The interest expenses recognized as per NFRSs shall be presented under this head. The
interest accrued on deposits collected, debt securities issued, borrowings obtained,
subordinated liabilities, amount due to bank and financial institutions, due to NRB etc.
shall be presented under this heading.

Fees and commission income

Fee income is earned for diverse ranges of services provided by the bank to its customers.
Fee income arises on the execution of a significant act completed or from provision of
services like asset management, portfolio management, management advisory and service
fees etc. Loan documentation fee, loan management fee, consortium fee, commitment fee,
card issuance and renewal fees, prepayment and swap fee, remittance fee, investment
banking fee, asset management fee, brokerage, commission on letter of credit,
commission on guarantee, locker rental income, etc. should be presented under this
heading. The fees and commission income that are integral to the effective interest rate on
the financial assets are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate and shall
not be recognized as income, however immaterial amount can be recognized in profit or
loss account as income.

Fees and commission expense

Payouts on account of fee and commission for services obtained by the bank shall be
presented under this account head. This account head shall include card related fees,
guarantee commission, brokerage expenses etc. The fees and commission expense that
are integral to the effective interest rate on the financial liability are included in the
measurement of the effective interest rate and shall not be recognized as expense

Net trading income

Trading income comprises gains less losses relating to trading assets and liabilities, and
includes all realized interest, dividend and foreign exchange differences as well as
unrealized changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities shall be presented under
this account head.

Other operating income

Receipt of all other operating income not specifically provided under the income heads
above shall be booked and presented under this head. This shall include foreign exchange
revaluation gain, gain/loss on sale of available for sale securities, dividend on available
for sale securities, gain/loss on sale of property and equipment, gain/loss on sale of
investment properties, operating lease income, gain/loss on sale of gold and silver,
finance income of finance lease etc.
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7.

10.

11.

12.

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses.

Impairment loss recognized as per NFRSs on loan and other losses shall be presented
under this account head. It shall includes impairment charge/reversal on loan and
advances to customers, loan and advances to bank and financial institutions, investment
securities, placement with bank and financial institutions, property and equipment,
goodwill and intangible assets, investment properties etc.

Personnel expenses

All expenses related to employees of a bank shall be included under this head. Expenses
covered under this head include employees' salary, allowances, pension, gratuity,
contribution to provident fund, training expenses, uniform expenses, insurance, staff
bonus, finance expense under NFRSs, cash-settled share-based payments etc.

Other Operating expenses

All operating expense other than those relating to personnel expense are recognized and
presented under this account head. The expenses covered under this account head shall
include office administration expense, other operating and overhead expense, directors'
emoluments, remuneration and non audit fee paid to auditors, professional and legal
expense, branch closure cost expense, redundancy cost expense, expense of restructuring,
impairment of non financial assets, expense of corporate social responsibility, onerous
lease provisions etc.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its
useful life. Amortization is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an
intangible asset over its useful life.Depreciation measured and recognized as per NFRSs
on property and equipment, and investment properties, and amortization of intangible
assets shall be presented under this account head.

Non operating income/expense

The income and expenses that have no direct relationship with the operation of
transactions shall be presented under this head. The income/expense covered under this
account head shall include loan written off, recovery of loan, redundancy provision,
expense of restructuring etc.

Income tax expense

The amount of income tax on net taxable profit shall be recognized and presented under
this account head. This account head shall include current tax expense and deferred tax
expense/deferred tax income.

Brief Explanations on Accounting Heads of the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income

1.

Fair value reserve relating to investment in equity instruments

Net changes in fair value of equity instrument that are measured at fair value and the
changes in fair value is required to be recognized in other comprehensive income shall be
recognized and presented under this account head. The changes may be subsequently
reclassified to profit and loss in accordance with the relevant NFRSs shall also be
deducted from the fair value reserve.
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Changes in revaluation reserve

Changes in revalued amount of property and equipment, and intangible assets shall be
presented under this account head.

Cash flow hedge

When a derivative is designated as the hedging instrument in a hedge of the variability in
cash flows attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or
a highly probable forecast transaction that could affect profit or loss, the effective portion
of changes in the fair value (losses) of the derivative is recognised and presented in Other
comprehensive income under this account head. The changes may be subsequently
reclassified to profit and loss in accordance with the relevant NFRSs shall also be
deducted from the fair value reserve.

Net actuarial gain/loss on defined benefit plans

Re-measurement gain/losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income and shall be presented under this account head.

Income tax relating to these items

The income tax relating to the items shown in other comprehensive income shall be
presented under this head.

93¥



AU AL Fep

PRI FEAAT
o Tt faira e T faam
GENGEC A
FRISRAT Hfed NRGH ABRT T T T

qataR fabTe Skl FREWAT Hied ®ol, qodrdd, avedr, aoR, sreey qdr fagefr
fafraa amader Sifes aEITIET TERET TUTT A6 Ak U, R0US BT THT 9] o fquar
ARIPR YITT TRT AT S99 ST TRTHT T |
q. EH FFEIT

FEIT ATHAT A SM@Hb! qfe=Td, HOH, ATTHT, FTAM0H, [FIeA0 ¥ Raridgar am
qqe WIfgH IO §3EAl AR T FREFEITH A8 TH8 | YWEEN SdiaH

SHARATIHH] AN qaATAR fTeprer Siepehl Twqul &7 FHeA T quf TaH Tehidhd 9afd dqemo
T 998 | R gUTad ¥ 98¢ SIaH FaeAraaard THEHN JFed a4 W
SfEH aerayld d¥ e U Jiqagar sah THa-e |

SifEgw FaeaT FEwHA (Risk Management Program)

Sy

Tl FEIHT BISHNHET [qUIee FHeA T S@H  Faeddd F3edT HaH
THIE:

F) FeATAd ARG T = Fazadaere ing IR (Oversight),
g) Hifq TaH IERARTa fauael AT,
T) GAEERI S FFema #1d (Risk Managmenet Function),

o) SUIh FETAIA AT JUTAT, ¥
¥) FAEHRI ATARE (AT Jrer Tad S (Limit)

qATaR faeT& Sl q=aTeder ATATaer G=ATer S8+ T =neel raw (RiskAppetite)
Feares e g A (Tolerance Limit) afg=ms 18 sifgw worifa qa s |
AR THY SAMGH ALATIAR AN oA FrATT ITREAT FAa, |

qataR faer AT dwatted @ Hedd gadd siad (Material Risks) @1 amHeT
T AT qAT AT G oo qrafqare @ied gaads ¥ ol qiq qdr
Frfata FETHT 99 qUHT THICE TAREAST T9 qdT AEGeTF IFGUAT A=A ®
THT T IE | T FEATHN SAMGH FFETI q¥ag A, S T Gehare
FEATEIT T Iod FIAAH FAA §IG | FATH FodATadk QAT T =
FEATITIAA FIEH TFed] e HITHT THIFHT THIIF T AFeThdT 989 TGP
THIH FTAT TIT BARA TS, |

qaTaR fae Sear gH@ Siew #fawa (Chief Risk Officer - CRO) a1 a&d qwTe

U AR @A T WA SGH AT PR Faedl T T | TR ATRR

T FRERH [aRTEaRT dERes gq T AEededl I aR 9o SiaHd

FATATIAHT AT GETgg a1 MER ThIe/WERTEIHl ezl 9 afebes | Sifaw

HAEITIA B FRTHT TBAHT (qUAEE GHEATS, |

%) @Al Aq qaT FEfEe qSEr U SEmEtaE T qeEedr Genare
LTI T,

934



@) AT [ae dhepl qe FTNT THSETH HAYT SAGHPT HATHT STTHT T
qgr =l Sifgaar Muaedesdrg a0 TaIHT 9T RIS,

) SIfeH =T qiqaes TR T4 T T Jiaded Jigy A= Iafq ¥ asarde
gtafaar g9 9, T

) SIGH SAFEATIT TR T JeTeweh! THTGRRT FA=ITHT U3 AT |

qATR fqepr Sehehl ATHR, Wbl TaH PTG A& g4 T YHE i@ sAfreserer
FH, W?ﬁwsmumqm|waﬁmﬁmﬁﬁﬁmaﬁﬁﬁ
WWWWWWW

FANTF FTH T ANGH AT FEAATE FHl [ IqHpl @T%ﬁaﬁ%ﬁr (Conflict of
Interest) T AAATIH TG | TR, SEH FAIUAATS  SMGH T
faamT /gl AT FTEHETTRr T9ET faq g3 | SIEH awra= e A SAaanded
1 (Main Business Function) afesr gzamerT (First Line of Defence) &1 &uHT 389
AEAYTF B | AR TAP FHART ANGH ATEITATHT AT AT-ATF AT
T g Sitad FERta (Risk Culture) &1 faema THa+s;

SREH WG FeT S@HATs G841 “oeq T4 =eel sir@d” (Risk Appetite) d&r
e g A (Tolerance Limit) i T8+ T Seifas Fae ar=qives (a1 qorrelr
(Internal Control System)®@H U+ | ATRE [AIAT GoTeirsl Feedr I
AT AR g TR FEATHT TATARRT @I gIa-Hl F=aTedeh qifa /Sas
FEATIA Iiafd yfqeg gaaes; |

T o YR Haqa wi@wes (All Material Risks) =T =Haaamest @it
HTATTTHT TEehl '*ﬁ'i%f R TaH HE SM@H ATEHdd] HAReT SEH G
ge=r (Risk Governance Structure) @mardeRr fawa ST ATt ghaeT qaw T
AIF aT FHT TP Ueh HieAT T grafead qaRaeror faanmar o7 THae |

3 e R
TATART SAMGH SAEATIAHT ATV FEATA TETAGHINTH FIGHBT AH0T TG, o~

) AT @ |

(@) == e |
([) dqTAdT G |
(1) &SR SEH |

(€)

TeE? MG |

=) faeelt fafvaa sifaw |

) I SIEH |

¥, ol WIGH LTI qFT SqqedT

Q@

T FFATT ST TRTRT “Foll JAT el aaedr (Mg 7. R)” T “Uhet ek
JAT & bl A9 T Glagrhl FrAT MR egaear (MEew | 3) qur
TR SFedr (I F.5) TS T FSl qAT AT TET SREH R T
ATIRHT FIHT feTae g |

FAT SAM@HH! e, AOH, TATH ¥ Fa=0r T G609 g7 T G I9g<h Al
TAT FATAT ATAFT TR TS, |

3%



AT GATTH! g5 | TATdR [ah@ Sehebl ATHR TIH BRIARP! (ARSI
HTITRHT =0 ATLATIAATS TATANAT Foll ATGTAR T AT, |

qataR faee §% o w9 qFEg Fdes: Business Solicitation, FT HeATsH, il
Hrepla, w1 FATE JAT WUETHT AR AR AT FBEEE gElgg g I
ZAtedd THl g9 B, |

AT AT oAl FATE &, Holl FAIHI0 Tl a7 (qFA ol adr a9 Tl Foll
foreelooT ¥l HeATsAeH T ATIRES dF TH gAa"g | SF JATSTT a1 ¢l
AT FAT YATE &9 &1 TET SE9d a1 FATTTHT 5 Holl IJUANT gTAT qaT A&
IR AT e Gl TAT fqeloo 787 THA TPl I G |

qATaR faebTa SF P TR FOAT IEATE HeATST FATSTATT ol AITGH HeATsH Il
(Credit Risk Rating System) @0 fa®r Fwaferd T=ael WHl g9 9 | A=Al
JUITATS UTedh ¥ FGATIR 1@ TaH [qeadiqaarars TaasRl & GHeH a1 a1, |

T gearsaars /el Due Diligence &1 TR U1 faqu=s, | =T I&dr
HeATE UMl TAR TN AT Jehtd AATIETATS THA AR T T |

FAT FEIRIT BESATT, Fofl SHIAIH]  AATHA, Holl Hled UTAH  GIEAT  FFwl
FETSATAEEH] AT JIT SATHIT aAATRI FAATA IR ATTAE FEIH T TASTART AT
eIl I bRl Hol gemad aFwl & (Credit Administration Function)
FaAFA T B |

TFIOT FolEoehl Uohed qIT &I TTAT ATadeh TR g Adedl I, | ]

qARTAA R TS TEHEITH F¥eleel AaLATAAR] IO T[T T ARl FTHT [T
3
qATaR fqepra kel geaTerd AiATder 9F TRET “ded T Amedr wraw” (Risk

Appetite) da1 ITEF g4 FHET (Tolerance Limit) waH [Haw+ vl =a<ares
QUAATS AT TR FEATST AR FoIl GHEE (& &I, Jead, g e
drAT afe) faRer 79 @wHa gfa e g o

qATaR faehTa SRET (HeRg ol FeNferd SHaaTameT AT St Wi qar gtRar
FTATAITAT T8h! IS, |

el FATHl EHHT FTGHFT AT T gHE TFaET o/ar S g7 |
T, FEATT Seheeel HAT-ATHT TaTe FREHP! aeewor T TS |

qatgr faer F@wer Unique Document Identification Number (UDIN) I ﬂn‘oﬁr
SETIRRET R WA SR THITE, | 9T ATde THIGraed FLATHhl JadTsaHl
?%‘cb‘rUDINportaIWWQTWWWWWWWWWW
T FIH] IoiE IS, |

Y. TS AW TG T G Fawn

(P)

FTARA AR, URAT, YOS TAH a8d USATHE SRU fOied  qoarad JiaH
EATATIAHT AT IFad AMfq TIT FATtT FAFEIT T TG | of@l, a1 giard,
TR TAH TR qAT Sfehy BRER Tl T GooTed UHGEEH] ScA g ae
SIREAATs TAT Afad qHeA IS, |

LT ATHT PRI T FoATAT SANGHATS AT TH TATTRNT AT E
=0T gurmell qur e YUTETel et TIHE | ATRRe dETeieTdd Jodd
9T/ T/ FATATRT AGTIET YiqaaTH T oAt Qg HATs GRS

939



(=)

LI T AT AUHT IUTAESHT TSIl Fr=gH] THT (ool / giarhan
THTALT I |

I yiafgare g7 T Foarad SaAdrs gAE0 T FaeTdATs del TATAhRT
TS iRl fAferer qur quicasvers atedd T e yfata geeedl AnTEeE
Information Technology Guidelines) ST TRUeT & | |7 ARG FHIH ATNE
AGTIRET TRIST T, T ATl Fqaae a9 Siehebl siob UL faaRTHT T97 TS, |

SGH AT FIATE oA G¥elg SGHEEH] A [TATAT TTAT g Haed
qfed afdel TadEea Hecd U FAAES: (T UATR Yepid, TR, geere
U fadira &fq anfe) =rafead e @ gurmel dAaaed THaq 3 |

3fera Disaster Recovery ¥ Business Continuity Plan s T fafae fefasearr
JHTIEEH] AT AT (H=aedTehl FHAR=adr T aE | & ASTAES aTtie ST
s (Drill) T8 sramafues T g |

FA FHEATT T A AARAT, USd HHEET AR HT Tk TITAAT 6T H1F T q4n
FHANT AT (HATHIATRT FRI IA g T FHAN] TFIG SGH AU AT
FHAT JEEATIT UIH F&AT AMATHT 18 FATFHRT I G |

TXAAT NGH T T AT T2

Q@

Frafafs T9T ANTELA Afeded! ITYH qRAAT ARG AL Aifd wEr=aT T
3

TRAAT A=A SGH AR TH ATl AT FFIq qaT Icders qehml odfd
(Maturity Period) =T s fafa= a@a s=mere (Time Interval) AT afieeor T
TG | 99 YAeEel Afag gend e wrA W9 awiteHer avdar faERe
(Liquidity Profile) 3wifass FqaT qam T8 T8« (3@, &, Id ¥ AR FE@T)
U HUHT T [GAraT 79 Sepepl b AL Fa9RTH T8I, |

T gHfd q9r TSl IRl ARl ATIRAT [AFATTER AT A=A
FATeRRor T B |

(@) 20 [a FFHPT hTAl AT TUHT ¥R TAT 1T |

@) 0 fa 7= aET 450 [aAgFHP! AhTl AdTd TR F¥T J9T A |

(M 950 [&F AT FEr 90 [TFAAFHH! qhTH! AT HUHT AT qAT 3T |

() R0 fad 9T F&l § a9 TFH! HThIAT dAdfd TUHT JEAT qAqT I0TA |

(3) 9 AV HRTEE! TThTAI AT AUH FF JIT ITA |

fAfY=ra Rl saty FUHT FFafa a9 fcadTe ITAaT (3) THINTHST 9T STITAHT
THTALT T IS, |

TaTeR T Sl avedr TFaRl Sadrs SIATE T I did qieerad (
el HETHT FUHT MerT qar qatde q6i1) AT Eeefl qETAT Ta76 HUH Foll ATach]
#ard (Credit to Core Capital and Domestic Deposits - CCD) 0 gfera AT REGIRIEY
T JIMETHT T |

TR &Sl AT ¥ a9 a7 T 9vaT F&l Faferepl HOrds el eepl ar faaefr e, fa<ira
T AT A HErEN faeell HErAT 3 a9 a7 A7 Wear d@l Aatgel dreererd A/
g |

935



(%) &AT/Fq a=Tas A (CCD Ratio) &1 AT q9T AT A=l HadT .

(%) @l /Frq IR FaTd CCD Ratio T A HA 3ie TTHT TS, |
) HITGeh ST ATERAT AT AT ATEAT EAHT A |
() gd® AEATH q TA AATTRIH] Todd FrEed (AEse [9ar aegd) &
HTERAT [IAF FFT AT (=T e |
) T FAT ATERT FHAT FUA AL S U, 045 BT THT 2% IAR gl
TAMEAG, | T AT AMSAT AT IhH TR e T |
(JeeF AigwTH! HITGF AT FAT FHINAT BT — 0 JIAAA FTAH g Wk rad
TFH) X FF W

900 X 9%

THT .

7Y qErEl galTT#E T CCD Ratio 7977 7@l GrdiHa Gofl#l &FAT Ileer
TTATTAT FITH TUH GIIHF [oAlcis Taq F1 TI7 qr9e 7 @9 [7e9F %07
GIET feaerl eFaenrs g gie | dv, FIHRT FEIST U9 §FYT 497 0aH FPO @
FISHIS WE I FITH TAT GIT WE GoAr g 7 TTAT GAHE GAT TIAT FAAAF
I & GHT GHFIT T @l & |1

qATIR e SFAT aYeAdTel THY aRITIHT AT qea-aiiae atafa (Assets
Liabilities Committee - ALCO) ST [afiTee HX=d1 &aH @bl g9+ | qaidr
F& 916, T TRAdT SAMGH JTed GIHTS T@d TR ATaedd JUTIAEEh] AqATIT Teh]
EINE, | TATUR (9 Sehebl dReraT (Rfqehl qARTacebeTIRUehT el 23 a9
fercrept 9y famforT S ufeaetor faammr qoreT o |

ATl AXAATHT =TT Y¥ebl GHRIAT ATGeTE HW [araq Contingency Funding Plan
TSTHT TR IS, |

F=ATA® AT T Iod TS dReldl qgT dReldl SI@d qredr gladed Hatad
TOHT FIIE q9T GARA T UHg | GEta el oawara afafaer sraswed
FARAH (TTIET T HUUES TARAR! AT JATGF SYHT Goureler  FAfq THET a7
T |

qEITAT; FodTas qafaare @ied “degd 9 =edl sad” (Risk appetite) @
uredg T (Tolerance Limit) do7 famae Mm@ diedl dHT THAATS HATSR
ﬁmmmzwﬁrmﬂm dHEs (T afqard Te
Ao, ST AREAT qT HA /A e AT ST A ER T g

uEr

TR SIGH LA T JHHT ST T

Q@

(R

AT TaH AT &l IRIARESHT ATSH IARACEART FRY (ST g Tl FATT
TR AMGHP! HAACATIAHT ATV FEATEH ATLAF AT AT Frafard gawa, |

HY ZFaeda (Treasury Management) I J¥efedd SIM@H  FTHA, HAT TaH
fareerooreer @it Middle office =am9eT MU« | a=ar Office FIM =AM FFawdl
14 (Treasury Functions) aTe wd=r &l a1 I Office o SfgH =Ha=amas
faamT/ UepTgaTs FHA RIS THIE |

EEN



G, SqToEX WIGH AT T G FqedT

Q) SR AT IARFEEare A g SiiEHars SYgEd @are FFEgd 9 Fa
1 3fera Hifq qar wEfafy gAae |

(R) ASGATE IO g SMGHATs FATET T @M FHINHET JUIeE  Aqeqea
THIEG -

>

(<P)

()

ATSIEIHT AUH IRAATH] HRI JAGT g4 gardee adr agaee (Interest
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foamur Jwifad (39, 99, T T A9R WA FHE] TAR T ATHE FHATT
quepl 9¥, fedfrT a9 Sepept S FaiRaeror faaqmmaT Jor TS |
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FREFEN YHE, AT URNIHN 9T FHAREEH qad a9 qEdr HaRe THoAs |

qATIR fqepT Sehare FTAFNT THEATS YA T qefd, <1, SW9 a97 d= qadr

EeedT faawor T A FERIHT qURT H I AREdRT fawer ey U, aiedew

ot queRr T e A9 qHIE qUHl U AiEAAT T9 Sebebl e qor fadia g

forae faamr 7 % Fuiaer fFanTers Suee IWeHIAs |

FEFR THEA AE FERT G ek TF Shald SOMTaTauTd A= & I Femr
TR FUHT FTH T §ad | O, T THIA GoaTedeh ATATH qF el fag T feq
femT gfqere @R O ATHT AT FRATS FASTelTs et Trebf o aes |

A S A1 faeira AeATET FRAFERT THE AHT o AAANIF ALATH] ToATeAE, FTHRT
THE, AT TR, FHAR 9T AT FH TIET @ FTH A qST G | a8 q% A
fairr eaTel ‘qatar faerd S AT AT AT AALATH A GLATH] FATAF & A9
AT TTET TATCHRT WA S |

T YATSIAHT AT T@TIF FEAT AT HATRT AT T FE9T T GoaATeAd HeT
T HETATS, AT, |

=[hT TSilebl  FIqerd a1 FIeRT el g9 T AR gRO A SIRGAT |1 HEITH
ToATAF U5 ek FAFN THE AT F I deebl FHAT IS0 I g ana
il

T FEFNT Afaed 98 ek TuHr 9 wfeAtad afqard s9Er egqta e aws |
T AT AARATTHT T8 AAT (bl TGee AT [k WUl A AfeAma
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AT THAT TR TRHE I | Rl FHIGHG AT AT FHERT AT
fafreraTaciar T8 Seorg TIE |

ToaTA% QAT T FAFNT Afdehd (HIh &1 qRAHE T o= Fradre! FauaHr &R
TERTATHT AT oes T FIAT Jeold T I8, | FRATArs faiiar 9RO Far i
T e Joold Tl Felfad el aawdT a1 fafqasraeiie e aaiid g1 w9l
fferames T Aeprell 9Teg FAWT T8 BT GERTAT T U I | GEIh FHAIEEHAAT
TG FAFERT AR IEHT ah WUH AT AsTel @IeaTs AU FaT Jiaem qrs+
qT G JHT FRATHHT Foel@ TIAE, |

¥, FHAREES qIAAT T I TR0 FFIET g
(1) IATH FEHRART AR ¥ FaLT T T I |
(R) FH=RIEE Gearel feq faafeaesr Teraer nfafafuar dov= g7 arew &9 ¢

(F) FHARIES Y& aT AIel TIHT JATdR (G ebepl feq faaied g7 &+ a0
fepfersrepr wfafafimr FavT g1 &3 |

(@) ATl (el =0 @k AEHATER] PRIEAAT TAL a7 AYcAeT FTAT Felid &
£ |

() ATHT ITEhTT JIR M, qhaR, |0l o a7 fa anfs & fopfawmepr faxira
@ AuH g 99 ool AT fAheaw quURasEArs dohtd | T
ST faqas; |
TR, Meedn quiaesds sl fad @nd TEaus § 991 THE RGeS
AISAE TIHT AR MRUHT JIAR/ HOIAETH! FRIERD] gHAT I9  fehlaweT
yfeemer AR & & |

(9) TR IR Tehl TRATHT ATARTh o0 F U TATTAT TUIHTATT STHT a1
F=ATAT T 8o |
AT AT FTH TH W hid [ ATdT

FHEARN Al LT qMeeh A HeT U LA ATF TG/ HH T a7 97 SAEa@nIE
TMATafedT "o gl dfed aeamadane fafga @eld [aa-s, | AT Feare feaer
TideRe 99 FA AUHT A oiars AT TOHT HH T [arad @ G qaig |
FHA FATeAF gH I3+ al AT+ THIwdl Saen

FEIT AT FEATHT ATTepieT TMHE AT HI-0HT TEhT FEATHT FRTAaTadl FHART T

IpATE TRATTATTIT FRATHT ToATAS / TeeATehY g IS T |

FHANA AT a7 [FIH Joete T FRATEHT GLbl TUAT bl Tiqaad qaraaiore

FHAT TG ehehl AT eATeATS ITAS TRISTI, |

= = c ~
FHARI ATFT T8 ¥ A GETANT T B 91 FeTaaepT SAfeh it ®Tgar g+ Bharsaraar
et g qree 3 |
FAATH] AN TG
FUAT FLATHT FRIARFT [AATTATHT I el T FEATHT TEIANT T JAT B qTT
AR AUH FFAT a1 GAEd g albl Tedl HFEIATR [gards Faararel SqH

FRIERAT FAOE g9 e S | fAseed FHH fqafqerar awed arh Ardeded
FHATIATE THA T TCT I FAAT JAT ATTGRT ST & £ |
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(aY

ARG T PRIERH! Jiqaad Teaq

TRATH! JET =l Ao T qiqaed quf Ta¥ qoed guvs | FHES qThd
FOHT AT fabTa Sepepl T Ao ¥ FRTSIAHT SafhaTd S99 999 T qree
T |

MAIar HEH TETd

S - e T , TR T
FAH T TG | A5 Farare Haa weawdty aft oredr sREReE qrataadrafatadr
ATIPR, A TATAR, 9T T YTEHET HUH 7T HRISH] [a0) AT a7 AS Haehl
farfrr =@reer AT YART T qreT S |

TR, gATAd FAAR AITHT W Sy FREAR TEET fqaRuee a9 qers
IUA TRTIET G 9T FURT AT 2 |

fTo78T ¥ I EER I

FHANEES  TEHATH [FAAT ¥ FFIAE GAaTaq 95 el TaH qur=ared
HATIRHT ATTATIF HBRIER THIAS, |

TR FEIH] ATEIT AT AT/ THTD] AR (AT

F) FUARIEST FURh THINTHER! TERY T qaedl T 9 gaqagdl dafed
FEATER T 3 |

g) FHARS T9 FeeTHT JIfhUaRT ATEREs ATTad FYAT qref=T ¥ A9<eh! [Faear
i o gHTE quwr 9y featwe afqard suEr ww Sk @ qur faei g
fraee fawmT 7 d@ quiasror faammr qees |

) FA HUARS I ATARVEEER! Tl ARHT AT graed1 faawor T oy aifvoar
FRATEN AP TATHHR TG Sehebl SIAH [AHNTHT vl TSI I, |

LI a7 FoaTeAcheh] THMER JRARH Tad a7 § Fiqerd wval &5 ITIhas IR gqrRu
T FREA e GRATH FHAIB! AT F1I TP FALITHT TN FHART Hel T
FHART T /TSR] TEMIFT TE F1 T 8o |

F 9f S Jur T FET T WO A AR AAT A (AEeware MR
[ Feree A WU AGAT FHEE] FEUESHT FHId GEATH FHAN Tde a
AIAE TAHT TEART g 919+ & | FEATS SRAT HHA FaT [AaHaera a69a
T Fed IRATS TS, |

Job Specification T Know Your Employee T¥=aaTd==Ta SM@H (Operational Risk)
ATEIIE] AT AT T THE AT SFAEATIT Teehl TaIaehTerars freare
TFraT (AR=Iq ARgar 91 dq9a TWehesdie F-grEd g4 TR S Hrafear (
Job Specification) TR T AR TH I°g T HHAR! F¥ewl (qaror Hatad s
saTataeE T Ao IS, |

FHART AT AT T
Q) TATaR faehra Sebel FHATIH @rle, qeaT, FagaT qAT TEEATIA &l dfedH

afdfmrereT ®E  (Certification Courses) fau#l wu wr&dr &9 draarars qdd
TR T foe Ieieg |

() ATRAT FHATNEEH! TAAT ATHATGHT AT ThF aY Fe FHANT qoAd/TAT Gobl A%

FAqH 3 Ui TRH aieH q9r gfa faeEr @= T ues | g%l @ Wal
TR TcEs qradr T G
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()

(W)

AT q9T g faehre @@= TUAET T AT TR FA FHART GHATS AR e
TS |

qMA qam gfa faeprq @=are TRATHT Jd FHAKIEST qedT ATTIgHT A
HIAX T T T ATALAF a1 (HATS I+ |

ToATAF ATATTHT AT, Toaredh T THE FIABN ATIRdH (G2 THI FerdT
F U GH T ATRAT FRATH TRATE FAMEed Te AT a7 GEHATHT GedTT
garehl gfafafa Augersr @< a9 dvATa THE T TS I |

yrafwes afes # (Core Banking Functions) & weaer @wafead adraT o
AfeATaFHT el a1 faeel arfad qoar s Fe=dr @= FAELT T s, |
FT qHEL T e |

e Yerd GEATH! FATE el A&l GeAThl @, Tassr T faeaqaadrarg
AR FATST TS, |

et aiferd qar TSRl ghAT AT TR Afeby AMAH TaTdeh FEATEE T
T by gfReegE, AU ATdE UHIGrardd ORAT, WU A S, A9
TRER ATATSIAT T ATMAH AT AC, ATRTEAT HIHH, HHAR ATGHT FEAWMT
TRIGAT AR @ qIT G ATl AMAT FoaTaAs &l dRT @eellg arerd qar
afa faema @oET EEYT T UTEAE | 919, WA AT ATATET A e
AThT AMAH FoaTdd T& AN @eee I8 qid GHrEel T4 984, |

HIH HANHAA AT AN TUAT FHAREEH LT AWALGAT TMFY ATAR @
g AHHHT XN dAlehl IHHATS FHATIR] AT AT HITHT STFAT T AT
TR AT G I, |

ToaATeTd AT FHANEEH TEAT A THEI=IHT FATATT TG AN TIS

©. ATAE FATT/IT-TTATT T Faem

Fep T faxi WX FEI=IT UA, 093 HT THT I3, [, 9, KO T & AT WUH[ T
AR Foe1eAh AT AT STAThaeAT S8Td aHIsH g R0 AT/ IT-afAfd
TS TR HH, HAed T AFHR THT I G |

Q@

(k)

XIS ATHT  FTH  FRATGATS  FATGRRT  FIAT  Foora—d T ool
TSI TETAHT FHATT a1 IT-JHATT | TS T TS |

A& FHTT
o) SteH e afAfd

FHAT AT graer Frafq

THITT STETehI0T (HaReT Fwaedr AtAfd
GUE (%) AT AP B AMGUHT FUAT G B @I TATTADRT AT THT TS
T2 FEFN FoaTahdl FATHEHT JI-MAT TST ITH T areT [Iebl AT
ol
=TS AR AAT FoaTdd ARG ATed AT B 907 ATARE FAT a7
IT-FIafTaT THTET & TS B |

&) FHINTH AHAMT TS TN q@raaeqs FiAfaar 3 5= ¥ 9w |qrafaan
AEYTHAT AR AHAT A [a90s aafeh dfed wwiET 3 3f@ aem ¥
ST 9T g e |
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(3) THEeId T T GoaATAFed! AT T ATHT GAHT Profile TR T HTehT
ATIRHT FoATAREeATs IUUThH ATHTHT e TN IS, |

(=) FIATTHT GeHeThl 95k AT GooTadh AHGHl Taeel I3+ od&h AT Tl
&I g T dlH IS, |

(@) T FEFR JHE IEHT Al a1 qd7 939 geRarare Hafh Tal Hredn
gHE®l fawTaar afafqer T | AEE FEET THE SRl Jodl de
FHARIG agaT al Fa1 Gq9(d &l Ad FAFN THEH GATSTHad TEd
qgqfd Atafdqer fawTadr SEwERr gHEe T4 |
R, AT FEERT THE AT FHhead qeal a1 AT9d FEERT THE THE T4 T
ATEITH ATITHT &l FaTead ATATT THIAS, |

() U3l QAFTAT FATAF &N GoaATelF Ahl ATAITHT FATTEF g IS S |

() ATARE QTR [IIRTHR IHE@ ¥ FHAREEH HUAFIET HedTsd HHA
AT AIATA 3 @I [Tt JHEe T RIS AT T, |

() TSN GATAF Ueh TG Ha Tal AR U3¢ AA{THT FoUSTh @ 13+
ol

A ATATT Frerel T

ToATAE AfAfaer AR-FTIFRT FoATAEH] ATTETHT TSl F@TIqero dfafa To+ T

g | Al AR Fee-Aliad ATANE @O [aHRTR IHE g | A1 arAfde

FATHRT  ATTIF  TAATHT THIET, ATRANE (AT, GO0 FFI=dl FEHRA

AGTILIEATRT GV FF= T faeqd gohel T4 YR (qerd Sl awaraaere

ATF9TF e farg | FRATHN ATARE T AT AWIREREEd Al AATHT (a8 a8

e TS | (steed U971 T gfqasd ¥ a9 afafds gfqasd SR I=aras atafad
e gahd UG | J@IaOe AAITHT FEFEN THEATS Geddl AT 6

TS DAY ATAYIRAT ULHl AARATHT ATHIAT TIAFl TIHT STATSH aTeT IR
AT & |
RIS RCA LR

(@)  gAIAd HAA THITH FEATR FHT foxiT @dn, Ardiee aeor, d@raeiero
AT T ATAh AGTIRIETITAT HATSUHT [TTASTHT ATl FqAT THTET 77 |

TEFIHT AIATST T FHIHAR FaedIAdTs AG9deF [aed [ad T AT FFeal
QRTE FoaTesd ATATTAT T T |

(@) dTET A@MIRERA U9 TPl TGN YITIGTAT AR FaT/ FRIqes
IIX FHIEAT T GIRTCHE HIH AT FALATITATS a9 & |

() AYE A SAepare AU JAT  GURAAT TN YiqEaTHT  SFearsues
3T/ FRATETH! FATIIT AT/ AHTH GEvadT FUIET T JaT O fqogeset
ARG T AT FefaeTs ATHERT TRISH |

(°)  ATNes faxir fFaRorers 9el ¥ J97d aq1sd STaedaddls 9edanT 1 |

() HRIARS eX-6dd Tl T TS AUHl qEIH GoaTdd qATTATs [a9aed
TATSTH! TTT RIS ST ¥ FAl aRMTH0T TR FIehT SATRT TET I SH=]
Fre AT Hafaa 99T qHTe T |
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(%)

(F) YHfd FAT JAT AU A ApATE ARI TRTH FAHAT HALATES AT
T /AR AT ATATGSr GHTET TR A AT g SHERT T

JTaETHT Joet@ I 9 |
(@) HATIRE G =] [qeqd F GUTell TaR T Trehl STaRAT AT
AGTIRIETIT RIS I |

() I FH FRATEHT atadar, faqeatadn, sfiteacaar, g9Eesiar S&dr &
ATATAT T/ THUH A FHIEAT T F=ATAEF ATATATS ATALAF ¥R (& |

() FAATES fadTT faawurer e T gourae qidia aHe Yiadae q9r T |

() oF qar faxir dear R U9, 093 7 TR &9 THEAT UF, R0%3 H TH
&Y% AT e HUH! FIAES T |

FHAT AT T a1 AaaT AHT Trdl Aaed

ToATAF AT T ST TR BTAFR] GoaTelbebl FATHEHT TIAT “HHATT JaT Fiaem
GfAfT” Tod T TS | Ih ATAITHT ARATRI THE PR ATdRd, @l TFedl [aaqmTe
faeri gHq@ a5, SHeRh Fdl [aaRTE [q9Ria gqE 95 aiad s |

Jrgfaer HTH Hded ¥ IReIId
(@) FEATR! “OTieHtAS R Wiq” @ 9 F=arasd aAidars AEaeds Tedie |

(@) FHAT T THIAT TH0 FHAREEH TETHE FAATR AT TdT [F9wor T ¥
ATaT a9l eaT T FoATeAsh At FHeT Giqaad g7 4 |

() FEIH “Orietad fHaRe St sHiTE g=fad wed qar difq Heemer Sfefad
g T 9 IFGUAT bl ATIRET Fled AT AAITHT [FHRTET T |

(&) TR FHANREA FHTEA T I HY [qax0, T T GG TeATsad TRgades THd
forepTa T AT FHIH (ASTe@edl FATFET HeATeT TR TARTEAR T |
(3) IHINh AT qEewdT FTdee A, BRI, (HAfh, TELATIAT, FE AT, agar, gt fawra,

FREFEET T3, W‘{HWW?WWWW :ﬁfaammww
AR T FEETAF AT ey ar W

() FHHARI A TIT FERA FHAT FAATRT HTET T T Succession Planning a1l
SRR AT FoaATAE AT qHE (ORI T |

(@ YHE FEAFRI Aahd ARG TEIead FaT qiadr GEeaH Giatael ged aEEHT AR
ferm a3 B

SGH TIEITIT FHAfq el el

TATAF T T AT T¥ AR ool GATTHaHT T3l SIMgH AGqrad arafa
TST T I, | QAT TIET T Foarad (q9ead) faaqnrer fFania yqe a5 T #
fersrererT famiTer wo@ a1 Sifaw sqaeroe el F T A S WUAT ATk THE a9
aied g | AETIRIET FHfded FaTsTeh SaH FAaaTId (el 9o Ga g5 | ArAfaer
I3 A AT FRIET T TEF T IS, |
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G.

FrAfaerT HTH FHded ¥ IR

(P)

)

fomr SifeH dfe=m= 97 HaeardId JuTelie] Tarqar 3T IUIhHAT qRegHl AT
GfATfaaTs IFERT RIS T ITAH T [aehTe AT qhTa o |

AP TPl UG, AMAId FaedT T ARGYAS FAHT TAREdrdd T Feh]
TATCTATHT TFI-IHT qoaTeieh IA{THT G¥hTa T T |

a0 qur AT & FEI ARed B Al G gAhd T T A qiEfaH
ATALAH T T T |

SifEw qafd JarR gSiiel qaredr, AT goil faeever 9gia (ICAAP), =maaitas
fFafia =0T Gahe agr [geauor W F==a1ad qHlqars ATaeded T, 9T (T |
IR AFEATIAHT AT FId A6 Shard TR RSN TG/ ARIAaeT,  Gearer
[HEROT e AT AHT, ITIh T AT ATATF Al TIH FAAT (bt TRl
AT F=arad atafaars qwTa fa |

FEATel afHa S9AT qard 9007 (Stress Testing) =T GleRl TiRUTH AT FARA T FlehT
HTARAT AITHAT ATATSAIA  ATaedqeh Al AT a1 fqura gRarer @it g
fafaar T¥hE TemT |

=T FIHTTETE HUHT ATCTAR TATATSTART ATHT q9T SAtereqdr faeervor TRy g==mees
qfafqaT saeas qehTa Afeadl Jfqasd 9o T |

Frfa de=ET, 7 qEafaes IREATd Aaedl, AFare YT T Afhd 37, Grraesd!
UEARHT g 1§/ BT ¥ q¥Id aTacd At (ALCO) ae WUl HIAaadl FFaweAl
Fartae FoAT T/ afaer T ge=ras atafaar gfqaeT ger T

FITAPT F &TAT JA g1 U a7 TREdHel GATHT faxii @ q qe
TERFHT FFEIHT AFTT T Aehl FRIFLUHI AT & H&AT A qFqeread T 99 &l
AEITF qh1d Aled Foardd FIFaar Jiaaad qe7 T4 |

(F) FoATAREH! EFHAT TETT THITH oIl ATIdT /TR BITHAT AT e JaTe T 98

I
(§) FeATAE ¥ TSRl THTER IRARET TS,

() ToATAF AT (ARl THER YRAREGT I AFeIE, AThaR, Tolwd T
THAEd] TUH a1 ARl goas fadi w@rd quesl o, wH, Rl ar

FTITATS,

(3) T=ATAF AT (ATl THTER IRARET e 0 FIATTATT Tel IR [ATehl FH,
FEAATE ¥ LT,

(¥) FoATAE AT (STl THTER IRARH T STHAT adebl ATch, ®H HHIAdg a1
. ;|

(@) SETF AATATAT TATIR faera Sepept TeaTder, ARG, A@IINEF, FIAT ToeATEHhIR

AT FHEATNATE FAT TAT ALHTTHT AT G T T T2l TRUH G -

e



Q) HEAIF AT GEITIE GHEHT JAGAT a1 =[hT Goilbl & JATH] Th FITeTaAS=T
T IR TRt ARG AT [ATehT IRAReRT T T FHARATS,

() FEIUH, Th Gd o1 9=l d¢7 JIR [AqUsr aAfeh /H /HFIAT/ T,
FAFN JHE, TeTaare] A@AREd, FAl TedEdR qadl FHARI a1 a&l
ATche! TRARFT TG a1 FoATdAd FAMAT a1 FAch 9 ATHR qTTH FH,
FEA] AT HETATS |
(3)  THT YSIBl YIRFT T FAeaa=T a6l 937 [qushl el ¥ qardnr e
SepepT HHEMT HIVHER WUH al STHAA a9&l a1 a7 [hiaqas fada @nd
TUHT Zfeh, BH, HFIAT a1 FEATAT,
(¥)  TE el (e fEURMHT e Uep qiaqerd Weal ofdl Yo% gl T¥ehl YUl T
FHARIT T GATas==T Fe7 a7 fag Farfaer fauer ®F, FEHT a7 YRATers,
() HXTEH, F=oAH, HEABN THE T (ASTH GRARFT JIAGTR WHAAT  TEhl
rafaert fadrar G gearere fadr T Fell gaE T e 39 |
TR, TATIR e Sehepl AT Weld T fag 3 o yiqerd 918 Wi ar ST
AR T qAT AU ARPR qAT TATA I b HOTABT [IGTHT bl JaT T T
GUSHT TUHT F I AGITSl aTeT AT S |
(&)  FEFE YHE ¥ YAHR [GF@ bl HHANEEATS JATIR [qebra Sehebl AT
fafraraTaet @R iaurach qadr geT T A7 fAE9Ter Srer e i S |
SUUTh HaTTH AR FXPREH! IMId 3¢9 T TH T(IAT AUH [ahrradas
TRAT AT FFIATS FAT TG T TG Sl g [aagaig, |
(T) AT FEATHT XTIk / FooTeAeh /FHATRT TAT [ASThT TR AR el Fb @ivg
T TS B
(@) HAT JAEH HAAT FAT AATEA TR AT JAR TR FAHT TEH fFar
TATSHHATATS FAT TIET /TR BITHT AT Fraam TaT T e S |

(@ SWIHH T FAAAT T FASAST AT AR faebra Sweea —_—
(Related Parties) %1 g1 TR THIS, |

R.  HTARE(EAT AT YMEAT F¥IH Fae
Q) FET HATHA UAGl ATEAT ATEHR A-ATHT G ATARE AT (AT T AR
THIG, |
() AT-ITHT FEITHT FIMET THIE TS T AR (eafqare A Fq6 SFFTHT e
IS, |
Q0. FEYUT ¥ AT
(F) FoATAbesd ATHT IIHT THHTT Foie a9 (Self-Declaration) 1%/ TRTTHT foa=or

(AT £.9) Aledeh! TTHHNT TAT THITeIT G ATHT ToaTeAbeseh] TeI=dd{l qAR
TR AT/ FeRaTarert ST (AT €.%) Afedqs! faawe a9 FHar Je7 TS |

(@) FATARA AR AT ATHI IRARET Taed qdT AT a7 TRARHl STHAAT el
&/ FAHT AT fafaer g qar fad dxamevare fausr we gweedr @
faezor e sqar anfye a9 wuTa quewr fafaer 3w featas geerae atafaar ot
TR FRTETIE T AT |

(M IHE FEFERT AdEd a9 AEd TRET FHAREE HARh T T Ml =
7. £.3 FHITSTHST WU MRS AT Te] 7, |
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1.

R’

2.

9¥.

.

9%.

() FoATed, THE FTAFRT Afdbd q9T AlIdhd TRHT FHANIES T ATl IRaReEr qrHeT
TEHN TA AT G T oo a7 fai GeArene fuer Wkl faewor v At a9
T AUHT Y fedTT srmafas T TS, |

et difeT qHIRTH Tomede ATAfTH! e8], qouieie, dbicdd qoulde dSHHT
JUREI WU A9d G S5k AT, FeAred AHN WE kA AT GHTHE GHT T
IfTRIA, HraTser a7 TAILTRT @9 UAH FEITH! HTHAT a9 ¥ [GaeTHT TH & aR @
AT o qiauT deh AAHT AT A FoATAPewd AThTd HIgal g4 A1 T T MM
e G TeBtaeRr giaem fo ared S 1 A9d wifded T IR anfae giaur fausr @veHr d%
qqT A< F=AT ¥ UH, 093 FI THhT 3 F JUSHT (9) B FALAT Jeaud TRl A
THIeId FATARAE HHASIX AT |

THATTATAYT T HHHAT TEHT TATAR [T Sehebl TEANac qoalTeleh /AT Jaled qoaAToAhesel
fofrr #RER T SATAUAIT AREET B G FhRepl AT, 9T JAT AT AT
qfqemes o argd S | YIS FEATHT IR BHARESH YEAad dodrede arafae
faorsr ° FEifTERr qiketad foq a9 arar aied | fai FRERET gSraeEgT T8
Febeh! dX FALATIRUTAT TASA b TIT [AEBITA FLHT GRATHT oo, Jevd Foareld gl
THE FAFN AgHd AdH ATHNEed I TH GG, Faq7 Ja0 a7 ATdH
qfagres I HATH FAAER FARGATR G HUH TIH  ATERITFA qE
AT gig T e G |

wferar gt e &7 afe qar 9 Geanl gY a1 qUsr ArhEr wH, R a9
TTEs qHAATE [auell adre HeT R AT 91 s qur e arher wears
AGTIETRAT (e T g o |

TR, RIS ITUHI GUSH AMIHF TF I HU 9 A@IIIETRAT FIeh T A(hrs | 7l
IR EANET IS JATR [IehTe Sehepl TR J@TIRIETF (HAfch TUHI gHHT A
HTH GEI T T AL ey a1dm O S |

(1) FATAF, THE FUFN Adohd a1 I=d AALATId qehl TINIHNI RTET FHel, 8T
TS ol BX ol AT ORTAAT YATTHT ATHAT Foll ATeeh [AoTewepl SAThITd ATHHT 7 F
fepfaraept &1t fermr arge 9

TR TXEWT HOT9A, HEl A9a, ga=rare! faamEr a1 Credit Card FS11 @F a9 sga<arer s
AT T ST |

YT §% T8 HITGFHFl 97 g7 TOF GRIEAFRIaE Tara e |
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TAAAIAALT FEATETA AR GRATHT (@R (Entity Profile) S=TAMIE T Aar

Particulars

Detail Informations
(Not exhaustive)

Update Frequency (in
SIS)

Deadline for
Update (in SIS)

A. | Entity Details Page
Organization Chart, Within 7 days of
Authorised & Paid up Capital, Change
1. Primary Information | Contact details As & when change occurs
Within 7 days of
Committee Name, Members Name, Change
2. Details of Committee | Designation, Start Date, etc. As & when change occurs
Within 7 days of
Ownership type, Percentage, Host Country Change
3. Ownership Details Name, Name of Investors etc. As & when change occurs
. . Within 7 days of
4. Subsidiary/Associate | Type of Subsidiary, Name of Subsidiary, Change
s Details Holding percentage, etc. As & when change occurs
Name, Father & Grandfather Name, Type,
Representation from, Contact details, PAN,
) Term, Biodata, Declaration on Code of Within 7 days of
5. Details of Board of Conduct, Citizenship Certificate, Change
Directors Qualification Certificate, etc. As & when change occurs
Within 7 days of
Change
6. Details of Auditors Name, Type, Contact details, etc. As & when change occurs
} Within 7 days of
7. Details of Name, Designation, Father & Grandfather Change
Management Team Name, Contact details, PAN, Biodata, etc. | As & when change occurs
8. Details of Chief Name, Designation, Father & Grandfather Within 7 days of
Executive Officer Name, Contact details, PAN, Biodata, Change
(CEO) Appointment letter, Citizen Certificate, etc. | As & when change occurs
. Detalls_ of Within 7 days of
Compliance and Name, Designation, Father & Grandfather Change
Reporting Officer Name, Contact details, PAN, etc. As & when change occurs
10. Annu_al General Within 7 days of
Meeting Reportand | Attachment of AGM Report and Change
Resolution Resolution As & when change occurs
. Within 7 days of
11. Policies and Policy Name, Category, Effective Date, As & when change or Change or update
Procedures Approved by, Attachment of the document | update occurs
Type, Location, Contact Details, Vault When branch opened, closed | On the date of operation
B | Branch Details Page Capacity, etc. or relocated start, close or relocate
c | Branchless Banking Related Branch, Agent Details, Contact When BLB opened, closed
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Details Page

Details, Location, etc.

or relocated

On the date of operation
start, close or relocate

Related Branch, Location, ATM Capacity,

When ATM opened, closed

On the date of operation

D | ATM Details Page etc. or relocated start, close or relocate
Base Rate, Deposit Type, Deposit Interest
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